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Summary of Internal Audit Activity

Since September 2023 Status
Internal Audits 5 completed;

8 in progress;
17 not started

Audit Investigations 9 completed; 
7 in progress

Bi-annual Follow-up In progress
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Executive Summaries
Completed Audits
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Conflict of Interest
MUHS

Summary Observation
1. Inconsistent documentation practices associated with Oversight 

Management Plans and Project Management Plans, including incomplete 
plan review documents and delays associated with obtaining signatures and 
uploading documents to eCompliance.

Management Action
MUHS COI Office will update policies/procedures/practices to establish consistent 
documentation standards, including a timeframe for obtaining signatures on management 
plans and entering documentation into eCompliance. Due Date: February 1, 2024

1 2 3 4 5
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Conflict of Interest
UMSL

Summary Observations
1. No established deadline for requiring submission and review of disclosures at time 

of hire, which could cause potential conflicts to go unreported and unmanaged for 
several months.

2. eCompliance not set up to send notifications to all departments for determination of 
additional management measures.

3. Absence of a reconciliation process between eCompliance and PeopleSoft led to 
an investigator working on a project with expired training for an extended period.

Management Action
UMSL COI Office will establish deadlines for new hire disclosures, implement consistent 
condition notification, and ensure a process exists to confirm all projects are consistently 
entered into eCompliance. Due Date: April 1, 2024 

1 2 3 4 5
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Athletics Standard Financial Controls
MU

Summary Observations
1. Re: the increased use of prepaid cards for per diem – Internal policy is missing current use parameters 

and does not include adequate controls or enforcement of controls related to the segregation of duties 
around custody, authorization, and reconciliation of cash equivalent payments to student athletes and staff.

2. Gift and scholarship journal entries are not supported by sufficient documentation.  One Card transactions 
and expense reports are not monitored after employee termination to ensure resolution in a timely manner.

Management Action
• Enhance internal business policy to establish, implement, and enforce appropriate use controls for oversight and 

administration of prepaid cards;
• Work with campus and System to make sure policies and procedures related to prepaid cards are aligned;
• Work with Financial Aid office to enhance documentation in gift and scholarship posting entries; and
• Work with Accounts Payable Shared Services to ensure consistent resolution of outstanding One Card 

transactions and expense reports.
Due Date: August 30, 2024

1 2 3 4 5
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Hospital Network Segregation Phase II:
     Firewall Technical Controls

MUHS
Summary Observations

1. Existing firewall software is out of date.
2. Multi-factor authentication for admin access has not been implemented.
3. Several firewall rules in use could allow excessive access.  
4. 920 rules appear to be unnecessary.
5. 357 rules need to be reviewed for deletion or migration to the Firepower firewall.

Management Action
Management is configuring changes to increase security and comply with CIS guidance and 
reviewing/modifying firewall rules to conform to best practices. The existing firewall will be 
retired, and Firepower firewall implemented within 90 days. Due Date: September 30, 2024 

1 2 3 4 5
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UM System Ethics and Compliance 
Program

Current UM System Compliance Framework

• High-Level Oversight
• Policy and Procedure Integration
• Open Communication
• Training and Education
• Monitoring and Auditing
• Responses to Detected Errors
• Review and Refine
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Prevent, Find, and Fix: A New Lens*

Activities that “Prevent”
1. High-Level Oversight
2. Policy and Procedure 

Integration
3. Open Communication
4. Training and Education

Activities that “Find”
5. Monitoring and Auditing
Activities that “Fix”

6. Responses to Detected Errors
7. Review and Refine

*Note: One new project in 2024 will be to evaluate this framework and update it as needed to comply 
with federal guidance on effective compliance programs and best practice compliance and internal 
control frameworks to meet the unique needs of the UM System.



1

High-level 
Oversight

oCompliance program 
policy

oReview oversight 
structures

Policy/Procedure 
Integration

Fraud
o Non-retaliation
o Clery
o Courtesy Appointments
o Foreign Gifts/Contract 

Reporting
Others as needed

Open 
Communication

Developing 
communications network
ECAS website update

Training/Education

oCode of Conduct
o Search Committee
oOthers, as neeeded

Monitoring and 
Auditing

Research grant 
monitoring*

oHigher Education 
Information Security 
Program

o Export Controls – Internal 
Audit Support

*Current process is on hold; 
will restart March 1

Response to 
Detected Errors

Investigate to detect root 
cause

Review and Refine 
Program

Continuously adapt 
structures, processes, and 
procedures

2 3 4

5 *76

UM System 
Compliance

Key:
 Completed
o Partial/In process
 To Do

Systemwide 
Compliance 

Program Elements
Dashboard
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UM System Ethics and Compliance 
Current Program Status

Support is being provided in these regulatory areas:
• Code of Conduct
• Information Security
• Research Compliance (Export Controls)
• Covered Component
• Clery Act
• Gramm Leach Bliley Act (GLBA)
• Youth Protection Program (YPP)



Privacy
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Privacy 
Regulation 

Update
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Privacy Regulation Work Added for 2024
• General Law of Personal Data Protection (LGPD)
• Personal Information Protection Law (PIPL)
• Higher Education Act, Section 117 (HEA)
• EU Artificial Intelligence Act (EU AI Act)
• Executive Order of the Safe, Secuire, and Trustworthy 

Development  and Use of Artificial Intelligens (AI Executive 
Order)
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Privacy Program Framework:

Step 1
• Create a current 

profile

Step 2
• Create a target 

profile

Step 3
• Compare
• Conduct self-

assessment

Step 4
• Establish 

Implementation 
Tiers
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University of Missouri System Reporting Hotlines 

Annual Report 2023 

This annual report incorporates information from UM System hotlines and mail/email 

reports received by System administration. In CY23 we received 125 reports: the Integrity 

and Accountability Hotline received 100 reports (13 bias reports), and the Bias Reporting 

Hotline received 25 reports (five non-bias reports). As of 12/31/23, 100 reports across both 

lines have been resolved/closed, and investigation outcomes are still pending for 25 reports.  

Analysis and benchmarking of hotline data helps an organization gain a better 

understanding of culture, the effectiveness of employee communications, investigation 

quality, and employee awareness of reporting channels. This report compares data 

collected through the UM System case management platform with key data benchmarks 

and trends from the Navex Global database of reports and outcomes, providing context for 

evaluating program performance and maturation. (The most recent benchmarks available 

are for CY22; CY23 data will be published by Navex in April 2024). To provide a better 

understanding of university program history and performance, we have included five years 

of data to illustrate trends. Note that the outcomes referenced for UM case closure time and 

substantiation rates are based on the reports closed as of 12/31/23.  As pending cases close, 

this information will be incorporated into the final annual outcomes and will be reflected 

in the data trends in next year’s report. 

Report Volume per 100 Employees 

This metric enables organizations to compare total numbers of unique reporter contacts.  

The current Navex Global benchmark for this metric is 1.47 reports per 100 employees. 

MU Health Care is consistently identified as the location for 40-50% of reports to the 

hotlines; therefore, results were graphed to demonstrate this breakdown. All other locations 

include MU, Missouri S&T, UMKC, UMSL and UM System Central Services. 
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Report Allegation Categories 

The kinds of reports an organization receives are an indication of where the organization 

may need to devote resources and can provide a potential measure of the effectiveness of 

efforts directed toward previously identified areas of concern. The top three reporting 

categories in 2023 were Human Resources and Employee Relations (HR) at 43%, Bias 

Incidents (comprising reports alleging bias-related concerns from both hotlines) at 26%, 

and Healthcare and Medical at 17%. 

 

HR Issues: Fifty-four reports alleged HR issues: 22 at MU Health Care, 13 at MU, 12 at 

UM System, three at UMSL, two at S&T, and two at UMKC. Twelve reports in this 

category were closed in 2023 as substantiated, while nine remained pending resolution at 

year-end.  

 

Bias Issues: Thirty-three reports alleged bias issues: 12 at MU Health Care, 11 at MU, five 

at UMKC, four at UMSL, and one unknown location. Eight reports in this category were 

closed in 2023 as substantiated, and six were pending resolution at year-end.  

 

Healthcare/Medical Issues: Twenty-one reports alleged healthcare and medical concerns: 

19 at MU Health Care, and two at UMKC. Two reports in this category were closed in 

2023 as substantiated, and six were pending resolution at year-end.   

 

 
 

Substantiated Reports 

The overall substantiation rate reflects the percentage of allegations that were 

investigated and either fully or partially confirmed. A high substantiation rate reflects a 

well-informed employee base that produces high-quality reports, coupled with effective 

investigation processes. Overall substantiation rates at UM have been variable. 

Substantiation rate by reporting category in 2023 are as follows: Accounting 20%; Safety 

7%

4%

17%

43%

1%

2%

26%

University of Missouri Consolidated Hotline Report -

2023 Reported Allegation Categories

Academic Matters

Accounting & Financial

Matters

Healthcare & Medical

Human Resources &

Employee Relations

Research Matters

Safety & Facilities

Bias Incidents
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and Facilities 50%; Human Resources 28%; Healthcare and Medical 15%; Bias 30%; 

Academic Matters 0%; Research Matters 0%. 

 

 
 

Substantiated Anonymous vs. Named Reports 

Named reports allow investigators to gather additional information directly from the 

reporter, which can improve investigative effectiveness and may result in higher 

substantiation rates. Although there can be reluctance to take anonymous reports seriously, 

anonymous reporters can provide valuable insights into obscure or previously unknown 

legal, regulatory and compliance issues in an organization. The Association of Certified 

Fraud Examiners (AFCE) consistently reports the most common method for detecting 

fraud is by anonymous tip.  Navex Global also promotes anonymous reporting as a simple 

but powerful way to encourage a strong speak up culture, resulting in a greater volume of 

reports and greater insight into the risks of an organization. Further, overall substantiation 

rates for anonymous reports are comparable with reports from named sources. We have 

successfully engaged anonymous reporters through two-way communication tools within 

EthicsPoint, enabling investigators to gather additional information while allowing 

reporters to remain anonymous. In 2023 the substantiation rate of anonymous reports 

dropped considerably, and the substantiation rate of named reports held steady. The 2023 

results in this report reflect outcomes for cases in closed status as of 12/31/23 and may 

change as pending cases are resolved. 
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University of Missouri Consolidated Hotline Report -

5-Year Trend: Overall Substantiation Rate (2023)
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† 2023 results reflect the outcomes for cases closed as of 12/31/23.  This number will change as pending cases are 

closed.
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Case Closure Time 

Case closure time is the number of calendar days it takes to complete an investigation and 

close the case. Completing investigations promptly helps cultivate a sense of trust with 

employees. The best-practice average case closure time is 30 days, and workplace issues 

that persist for 40 days or more can be damaging to morale, productivity, and 

organizational culture. Often, as employee trust increases, organizations may notice more 

complex matters are reported, which require the commitment of additional time and 

resources to some investigations. The goal of the UMS Hotline Committee is to consider 

each report and allegation individually, encourage the dedication of appropriate resources, 

implement a standard investigative approach to ensure thorough and high-quality 

investigations, and reach resolutions on reported matters as timely as possible.  
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Conclusions and Opportunities for Improvement 

 

2023 Highlights 

 

1. Report volumes per 100 employees increased for both the universities and health 

system after a decline last year.  Reporting volumes continue to be low for an 

organization of our size. 

2. Substantiation rates decreased considerably for anonymous reports in 2023.  The 

substantiation rate for reports in which the reporter self-identified continued steady 

at nearly 40%. 

3. Recalculation of days to close in 2022 for trend data accuracy included 18 reports 

pending resolution on 12/31/22 and resulted in considerable increase of the of the 

average days to close last year, from an original count of 48 days to 77 days. Six of 

those 18 reports were substantiated. Twenty-one total reports in 2022 required more 

than 100 days to resolve.  These were complex matters handled by Equity (10), 

Central Investigations (8), Human Resources (1), and Safety/Facilities (1).  

4. On November 29, 2023, the University-wide hotline service began transitioning to 

a new vendor, Ethics Suite. The Bias Reporting Hotline will be absorbed into the 

Integrity and Accountability Hotline with this transition and will no longer stand 

alone.  Ethics Suite offers simplified reporting focused on guiding the reporter to 

provide a full description of the concern, and no longer requires the reporter to 

designate an allegation category. QR code reporting, which allows reporters to 

connect to the reporting site by taking a picture with their phone, is also available 

for the first time. Hotline reporting was extended to Capital Regional Medical 

Center on January 1, 2024.   

 

 

• www.EthicsSuite.com/UMSHotline 

• 884-469-6383 

 

 

 

 

2024 Focus 

 

The focus in 2024 will be to increase awareness of the hotline and ways to report concerns, 

including: 

• Educating the university community about the new hotline reporting platform, 

including distributing new posters, and updating weblinks and phone numbers 

across all university locations. 

• Extending promotion of the hotline student groups where an inherent power 

imbalance may exist, e.g., graduate student workers, residency students, etc. 

• Developing and implementing an ongoing awareness campaign to emphasize:  

o The importance of speaking up and reporting concerns 

o Examples of concerns to report 

o The important details to report so an investigation can be conducted 

o Different ways to report concerns 
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External Auditor’s Report 
UM 

 
 

At the February 8, 2024 Board of Curators meeting, Rachel Dwiggins, Partner with 
FORVIS, LLP will present a summary of the FY 2023 Financial Statement Audit, NCAA 
Agreed Upon Procedures, and the audit scope for fiscal year 2024.   
 
The University of Missouri 2023 financial statement audit was completed on October 18, 
2023.  The Board of Curators will be provided with an overview of the audit results and 
the required communication as a part of the audit. 
 
The University of Missouri NCAA Agreed Upon Procedures Reports (“NCAA Reports”) 
for fiscal year 2023 were completed by the January 15th deadline.  The reports will be 
provided together to the Board with the Federal Single Audit once complete by the March 
deadline. 
 
The Fiscal Year 2024 Audit Scope presentation will provide an overview of scope of audit 
services, audit timeline, preliminary risk assessments and discussion on implementation of 
new accounting pronouncements effective for fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.   
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University of Missouri 
System
Board of Curators

Rachel Dwiggins, Fred Helfrich, Jean Nyberg, Michael Flaxbeard / January 2024
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Our Goals for Today

2023 Audit Results

NCAA Agreed-Upon Procedures Results

2024 External Audit Scope
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Audit Approach

 Financial reporting
- U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

 Auditing standards
- Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
- Government Auditing Standards

 Compliance
- Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance)
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 Audit of financial statements of: 
- University of Missouri System
- Capital Region Medical Center

 Objective
- Express opinion on conformity of financial statements, in all material respects, 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Audit Approach
Financial Statement Audit
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Areas of Audit Emphasis

 Communicated during planning

Risk Area Results
Management override of controls No matters are reportable.
Revenue Recognition No matters are reportable.
Revenue Recognition (health system) No matters are reportable.
Valuation of investments No matters are reportable.
Net position classifications No matters are reportable.
Stimulus funding No matters are reportable.
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Significant Estimates

 Third-party Reimbursement
 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
 Valuation of Investment Securities
 Subscription-based technology arrangements
 Accruals

- Malpractice Claims
- General Liability Claims
- Health Claims
- Workers’ Compensation Claims

 Defined Benefit Pension & Other Postemployment Benefit Plan Assumptions
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Audit Approach
Compliance Audit

 Audit the compliance of certain major federal programs:
- Research and Development Cluster
- Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
- Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education
- Rehabilitation Services Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States
- Education Stabilization Fund- Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief and Higher Education 

Emergency Relief
- Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for Infectious Disease (ELC)
- Congressional Directives
- Provider Relief Fund
- Disaster Grants- Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)

 Objective
- Express opinion on compliance for certain major federal programs based on requirements described in the OMB 

Compliance Supplement
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Required Communications

Area Comments
Significant Accounting Policies Described in Note 1 of the financial 

statements.  GASB 96 was adopted during 
fiscal year 2023.

Alternative Accounting Treatments No matters are reportable.
Financial Statement Disclosures • Fair Value of Assets & Liabilities

• Retirement, Disability & Death Benefit Plan
• Other Postemployment Benefits
• Lease and subscription assets and 

obligations
Auditor’s Judgement about the quality of the 
system’s accounting policies

No matters are reportable.
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Required Communications - Continued

 Communicated during planning

Area Comments
Audit Adjustments • Proposed audit adjustments recorded:

 Pledges receivable related to UMKC foundation
• Proposed audit adjustments not recorded:

 System:
• Reclassify patient refunds and third-party settlements
• Aggregate of other immaterial items
• Beginning balance impact of pledges receivable

 Pension Trust Funds (Aggregate Remaining Fund opinion unit):
• None
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 Issued
- NCAA Agreed-Upon Procedures
- Financial Statements of Capital Region Medical Center
- Report on Debt Compliance of Capital Region Medical Center

 To be Issued
- Single Audit report in accordance with Uniform Guidance

Other Deliverables
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Report Opinions

Independent 
Auditor’s Report – 

Unmodified Opinions

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 

Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards
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NCAA Agreed-Upon Procedures Results

Division I Institutions Division II Institutions

• Required Annually • Required every three years

Performed UM and UMKC in 2023
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2024 External Audit Scope

Engagements

Audit Timeline

Audit Approach

Appendix: Personnel

Questions
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Engagements

 Audit of financial statements of:
- University of Missouri System

 Single Audit in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance
 Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures required by NCAA for

- Columbia
- Kansas City
- Rolla
- St. Louis
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Audit Timeline

 Preliminary audit work
- Pre-audit planning meeting – Spring 2024
- Interim procedures, risk assessment & other 

planning – May 2024
- Student financial aid testing – July 2024

 Final audit work
- Fieldwork procedures – 

August/September/October 2024
- Issuance of financial statement audits – October 

2024
- Additional federal program testing – October 

2024 – January 2025

 NCAA procedures – November/December 
2024
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Audit Approach – Applicable Framework

Financial Reporting
• U.S. Generally 

Accepted Accounting 
Principles 

Auditing Standards
• Auditing standards 

generally accepted in 
the United States of 
America 

• Government Auditing 
Standards

Compliance
• Title 2 U.S. Code of 

Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative 
Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for 
Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance)

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3- 17



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Audit Approach - Planning

 Risk assessment
- Obtain an understanding of business & business environment

• Interviews with management
• Review of Board minutes & presentations

- Evaluate where financial statements might be susceptible to material misstatement 
or fraud

- Consider internal controls over financial reporting & whether they have been 
implemented

• Perform walkthrough tests of controls
• Review duties of employees for issues in control structure

- Assess risk of material misstatement for significant financial statement amounts and 
disclosures
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Audit Approach – Preliminary Risk Assessment

 Financial Statement
- Valuation of investments
- Revenue recognition
- Valuation of receivables & third-party payors
- Presentation of net position

 Other
- Compliance
- Risk management
- UMHS acquisition of CRMC

 Risk assessment procedures may identify others
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Audit Approach- New Standards

 GASB 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates

 GASB 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

 New standards referenced above are not expected to have a 
significant impact on the financial statements
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FORVIS Team & Roles
Rachel Dwiggins
Lead Engagement Partner
816.489.4033
Rachel.dwiggins@forvis.com

Fred Helfrich
Healthcare Engagement Partner
314.802.0127
Fred.helfrich@forvis.com

Michael Flaxbeard
Engagement Director for the System
816.221.6300
Michael.flaxbeard@forvis.com

Allison Swaters
Engagement Director for Single Audit
816.221.6300
Allison.swaters@forvis.com

Mary McKinley
Concurring Review Partner
502.963.0854
Mary.mckinley@forvis.com

Jean Nyberg
Engagement Partner for CRMC
417.865.8701
Jean.nyberg@forvis.com
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FORVIS Report to Board of Curators, Audit 
Committee, and Management 
University of Missouri System

Results of the 2023 Financial Statement Audit, Including Required 
Communications 

June 30, 2023 

Required Communications Regarding Our Audit Strategy & Approach (AU-C 260) 

Overview & Responsibilities 

Matter Discussion 

Scope of Our Audit This report covers audit results related to the financial statements of the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, and the fiduciary activities: 

 As of and for the year ended June 30, 2023

 Conducted in accordance with our contract dated May 2, 2023

Our Responsibilities FORVIS is responsible for forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial 
statements that have been prepared by management, with the oversight of those charged with 
governance, are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP). 

Audit Scope & 
Inherent Limitations 
to Reasonable 
Assurance 

An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States (GAGAS) is designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance about the financial statements. The scope of our audit tests was established in 
relation to the opinion unit being audited and did not include a detailed audit of all transactions. 

Extent of Our 
Communication 

In addition to areas of interest and noting prior communications made during other phases of 
the engagement, this report includes communications required in accordance with GAAS that 
are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing the financial 
reporting process, including audit approach, results, and internal control. The standards do not 
require the auditor to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to be 
communicated with those charged with governance. 

Independence The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 
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Matter Discussion 

Your 
Responsibilities 

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance of your 
responsibilities. Your responsibilities and ours are further referenced in our contract. 

Distribution 
Restriction 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the following and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties: 

 The Board of Curators, Audit Committee, and Management

 Others within the Entity

Government Auditing Standards 

Matter Discussion 

Additional GAGAS 
Reporting 

We also provided reports as of June 30, 2023, on the following as required by GAGAS: 

 Internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based
on an audit of the financial statements performed in accordance with GAGAS

Reporting 
Limitations 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting and our tests of compliance were 
not designed with an objective of forming an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control or 
on compliance, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Group Audits 

Referred-To Auditors 

Our audit strategy included the use of the work of a referred-to auditor, resulting in a division of responsibility over the group 
financial statements and our report thereon. 

We did not audit the financial statements of the Kummer Institute, the discretely presented component unit.  

Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it 
relates to the amounts included for the Kummer Institute, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We have had 
communications with the other auditors during planning and throughout the audit regarding their qualifications to perform 
the audit, including independence, and consideration of materiality as a basis for referring to their audit report. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities in accordance with GAAS, as well as 
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 

Other Information Accompanying the Audited Financial Statements 

The audited financial statements are presented along with management’s annual report. Management, or those charged 
with governance, is responsible for preparing the annual report.  

We were not engaged to audit the introductory and statistical sections contained in the annual report, and as a result, our 
opinion does not provide assurance as to the completeness and accuracy of the information contained therein. 

As part of our procedures, we read the entire report to determine if financial information discussed in sections outside the 
financial statements materially contradicts the audited financial statements. If we identify any such matters, we bring them 
to management’s attention and review subsequent revisions. 
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Auditor Objectives Related to Other Information 

Our objectives related to the other information accompanying the audited financial statements were to: 

 Consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements

 Remain alert for indications that:
o A material inconsistency exists between the other information and the auditor’s knowledge obtained in the audit,

or
o A material misstatement of fact exists or the other information is otherwise misleading

 Respond appropriately when we identify that such material inconsistencies appear to exist or when we otherwise
become aware that other information appears to be materially misstated. Potential responsive actions would include
requesting management to correct the identified inconsistency

 Include the appropriate communication in our auditor’s report, disclosing the procedures performed on the Other
Information, as well as the results obtained

Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies & Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the audited financial statements. 

With respect to new accounting standards adopted during the year, we call to your attention the following topics detailed in 
the following pages: 

 GASB 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

Unusual Policies or Methods 

With respect to significant unusual accounting policies or accounting methods used for significant unusual transactions 
(significant transactions outside the normal course of business or that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their timing, 
size, or nature), we noted the following: 

 No matters are reportable

Alternative Accounting Treatments 

We had discussions with management regarding alternative accounting treatments within GAAP for policies and practices 
for material items, including recognition, measurement, and disclosure considerations related to the accounting for specific 
transactions as well as general accounting policies, as follows: 

 No matters are reportable

Management Judgments & Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, based on its judgments. 
Significant areas of such estimates for which we are prepared to discuss management’s estimation process and our 
procedures for testing the reasonableness of those estimates include: 

 Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts – Management’s estimate for the allowance is based on historical
collection, contributor mix and anticipated trends.
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 Valuation of Investment Securities – Management values investments at fair value as of the statement of net
position date.  Accounting standards define fair value as the price that would be received to sell a financial asset in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Investments are valued using quoted
market prices or third-party sources, including appraisers and valuation specialists, when available.

 Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Plan Assumptions – Management has recorded
a liability for its defined pension plan and other postemployment benefit plan. The liability is based on the actuarial
present value of future expected benefits and is based on inputs provided by management, including expected
future earnings on plan assets and discount rates as well as past history of the plans.

 Amounts Due from 3rd Party Payors (Third-party Reimbursement) – Net operating revenues include
management’s estimates of amounts to be reimbursed by third parties.  Amounts received for patient billings are
generally less than amounts billed. The difference between what is billed and expected to be received is recorded
through contractual adjustments. Management’s process of estimating amounts to be received from third parties
requires estimation based on payer classification, historical data and payer contract provisions. Estimates of third-
party reimbursements also include management assumptions about uncertainties in health care reform, payer mix
and state of the economy.

 Accrual for Malpractice Claims, General Liability Claims, Health Claims and Workers’ Compensation Claims
– These liability claims are based on estimates of known claims and estimates for incurred but not reported claims.
Management estimates the liability based on specific claims facts, historical claim reporting and actuarial
assumptions.

 Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements – The value of right-of-use assets and liabilities
stemming from subscription-based information technology arrangements are estimates impacted by certain
assumptions on lease term, lease payments and lease discount rates.

Financial Statement Disclosures 

The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we are prepared to discuss the 
issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those disclosures: 

 Fair value of assets and liabilities

 Retirement, disability and death benefit plan

 Other postretirement benefits

 Lease and subscription assets & lease and subscription obligations

Our Judgment About the Quality of the Entity’s Accounting Principles 

During the course of the audit, we made the following observations regarding the Entity’s application of accounting 
principles: 

 No matters are reportable

Adjustments Identified by Audit 

During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement amounts. Management evaluates 
our proposals and records those adjustments that, in its judgment, are required to prevent the financial statements from 
being materially misstated. 

A misstatement is a difference between the amount, classification, presentation, or disclosure of a reported financial 
statement item and that which is required for the item to be presented fairly in accordance with the applicable financial 
reporting framework. 
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Proposed & Recorded Adjustments 

Auditor-proposed and management-recorded entries include the following: 

• Pledges Receivable

Uncorrected Misstatements 

Some adjustments proposed were not recorded because their aggregate effect is not currently material; however, they 
involve areas in which adjustments in the future could be material, individually or in the aggregate.  

Uncorrected audit misstatements pertaining to the latest period presented that were determined by management to be 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, but more than trivial to the financial statements as a whole are included 
as an attachment to this communication. 

While these uncorrected misstatements were deemed to be immaterial to the current-year financial statements, it is possible 
that the impact of these uncorrected misstatements, or matters underlying these uncorrected misstatements, could 
potentially cause future-period financial statements to be materially misstated. 

Nature of Uncorrected Misstatements 

 See Attachments for a summary of uncorrected misstatements we aggregated during the current engagement and
pertaining to the latest period presented that were determined by management to be immaterial, both individually
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole

Other Material Communications 

Listed below are other material communications between management and us related to the audit: 

 Management representation letter (see Attachments)

We orally communicated to management other deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit that are not 
considered material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
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Attachments 

Audited Financial Statements 

The audited financial statements are included herein for your reference. 

Management Representation Letter 

As a material communication with management, included herein is a copy of the representation letter provided by 
management at the conclusion of our engagement. 

Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements 

The detail of uncorrected misstatements identified as a result of our engagement are included herein. 
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The University of Missouri System is dedicated to inspiring innovation, preparing students for incredible 
careers and training the next generation of state leaders. To realize these ambitious goals, our students, 
faculty and staff are exploring society’s biggest challenges at each of our four universities and in Extension 
offices in every Missouri county. As we pursue a total commitment to excellence, we remain careful 
stewards of the resources entrusted to our community. I’m pleased to report that our university system’s 
fiscal position is strong and stable.

In FY23, our universities focused on directing resources toward several key priorities:  

• Advancing groundbreaking research that changes that world, delivers more impact to citizens and
provides hands-on opportunities for our students

• Capital funding for facilities that drive excellence in research, teaching and meaningful engagement

• Expanding the University of Missouri Research Reactor and progressing towards a larger, state-of-
the-art new research reactor, NextGen MURR

• Providing a world-class and affordable education at each of our four campuses

• Supporting student success through strong retention, graduation and job placement rates

• Engaging communities in every corner of Missouri and demonstrating our value to stakeholders

• Bolstering activities that sustain or grow revenues for the university, while streamlining operations

The following report shows our dedication to transparency, responsible financial management and 
continuous improvement. All four universities are progressing individually and collaboratively towards our 
goal of making a difference in Missouri and impacting lives around the world.

Sincerely,

Mun Y. Choi

President, University of Missouri 

Message from the President
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Curators of the University of Missouri
The University of Missouri Board of Curators is a nine-member board appointed by the governor of Missouri 
and confirmed by the Missouri Senate. Curators serve six-year terms. No more than two curators are 
appointed from each congressional district. Members must be citizens of the United States and residents 
of Missouri for a minimum of two years prior to appointment. No more than five curators may belong to any 
one political party. A student representative serves a two-year term, and is also appointed by the governor 
and confirmed by the senate. 

Julia G. Brncic
District 1
St. Louis

Keith A. Holloway
District 8
Cape Girardeau

Jeanne Cairns 
Sinquefield
District 3
Westphalia

Robert D. Blitz
District 2
St. Louis

Jeffrey L. Layman
District 7
Springfield

Todd P. Graves
District 6
Edgerton

Robert Fry
District 4
Greenwood

Vacant
Student Representative

Robin R. Wenneker
At-Large Member
Columbia

Michael Williams
District 5
Kansas City

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-34
February 8, 2024



2023 Financial Report  |  UM System  |  Page 4

University of Missouri System General Officers

Ben Canlas
Interim Vice President for 
Information Technology

Mun Y. Choi 
President, University of 

Missouri

Mark A. Menghini
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University of Missouri-Columbia

*Enrollment numbers are reflective of 2022-2023 enrollment.

Founded:
1839

Enrollment:
31,304*

Alumni:
357,000+

The University of Missouri-Columbia (MU) was the first public university west of the 
Mississippi River. Today, MU has an enrollment of more than 30,000 students, with 12,000 

full-time employees and 350,000 alumni worldwide, and is one of 63 public and private  
U.S. universities in the Association of American Universities. 

Missouri’s largest and most comprehensive university, MU has more than 275 degree 
programs through 19 colleges and schools, and is one of only six public institutions nationwide 
that can claim a medical school, college of veterinary medicine, college of engineering and 
a law school on the same campus. In its capacity as a land-grant institution, MU provides 
information to more than 5 million Missouri citizens each year through extension programs 
that promote health and success for youth, families, communities and businesses.
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Founded:
1929

Enrollment:
15,703*

Alumni:
135,000+

The University of Missouri-Kansas City (UMKC) serves more than 15,000 students on its 
Volker and Hospital Hill campuses. This comprehensive, public research university offers 
more than 125 academic programs across a spectrum of acclaimed academic units. Notable 
programs include the UMKC Conservatory of Music and Dance, the Henry W. Bloch School 
of Management and the School of Dentistry. Additionally, the School of Medicine’s Master of 
Science in Anesthesiology program is one of only five offered in the nation.

The university also supports underserved Missourians through medical, nursing and dental 
care; legal services; counseling and music therapy. The Institute for Urban Education 
answers the unique needs and concerns of the urban classroom. In addition, UMKC has 
four health science schools on one campus that provide outreach for community health 
needs and hands-on experience for its students.

University of Missouri-Kansas City

*Enrollment numbers are reflective of 2022-2023 enrollment.
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Missouri University of Science and Technology

Founded:
1870

Enrollment:
7,080*

Alumni:
69,000+

Missouri University of Science and Technology (Missouri S&T) is a leading technological 
research institution. Known for its 18 engineering and computing programs, Missouri S&T 
also offers an abundance of programs in business, humanities and social sciences and 
liberal arts. Graduates are highly sought by the business community with the eighth highest 
average starting salary among all public universities in the nation.

Research is at the forefront of an S&T education. Missouri S&T’s four signature research 
areas of advanced manufacturing, advanced materials for sustainable infrastructure, 
enabling materials for extreme environments and smart living all address high-priority state 
and national needs. Missouri S&T is also home to the state’s first nuclear reactor, a “solar 
village” of student-designed-and-built solar houses and an experimental mine, which was 
cited by Popular Science magazine as a top “awesome college lab.”

*Enrollment numbers are reflective of 2022-2023 enrollment.
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Founded:
1963

Enrollment:
15,181*

Alumni:
108,000+

The University of Missouri-St. Louis (UMSL) serves more than 15,000 students and employs 
more than 1,500 faculty and staff. UMSL is a public research university in the state’s most 
populated metropolitan area. The largest university in St. Louis, UMSL provides excellent 
learning experiences and leadership opportunities for a diverse student body through its 
outstanding faculty, nationally ranked programs, innovative research and regional, national 
and international partnerships.

Some of UMSL’s top-ranked programs include education, public policy administration, clinical 
psychology, nursing, social work, biology, chemistry and biochemistry and criminology and 
criminal justice. While UMSL graduates can be found in all 50 states and 63 countries, their 
greatest impact is felt locally. More than 65,000 UMSL alumni call the St. Louis area home. 
They drive the region’s economy and contribute mightily to its social well-being.

University of Missouri-St. Louis

*Enrollment numbers are reflective of 2022-2023 enrollment.
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University of Missouri Health
Founded:

1956

Based:
Columbia, MO

Patients 
served yearly:

240,000+

As part of the state’s premier public academic medical center, University of Missouri Health  
offers a full spectrum of care, ranging from primary care to highly specialized care for patients 
with the most severe illnesses and injuries. Patients from each of Missouri’s 114 counties 
are served by approximately 6,000 physicians, nurses and health care professionals.  
MU Health’s main component, MU Health Care, is composed of University Hospital  
and Clinics, Ellis Fischel Cancer Center, Rusk Rehabilitation Center, University Physicians, 
Missouri Orthopaedic Institute, Missouri Psychiatric Institute, and Women’s and Children’s 
Hospital.

The MU School of Health Professions educates students in rehabilitation and diagnostic 
sciences. The MU Sinclair School of Nursing provides bachelor’s, master’s, and doctoral 
degrees. And, the MU School of Medicine offers undergraduate and graduate medical 
education, plus doctoral and master’s degree programs in the basic sciences, health 
management and informatics.
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University of Missouri System Statewide Reach
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October 18, 2023 

The  management  of  the  University  of  Missouri  System  (the  “University”)  is  responsible  for  the  
preparation,  integrity,  and  fair  presentation  of  the  financial  statements.  The  financial  statements, 
presented on pages 32 to 98, have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America  and,  as  such,  include  amounts  based on  judgments  and  
estimates by management.  

The financial statements have been audited by the independent accounting firm Forvis LLP, which was 
given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of 
the  Board  of  Curators.  The  University  believes  that  all  representations  made  to  the  independent  
auditors during their audit were valid and appropriate. Forvis’ audit opinions are presented on pages 
30‐31.  

The University maintains a system of internal controls over financial reporting, which is designed to 
provide reasonable assurance to the University’s management and Board of Curators regarding the 
preparation  of  reliable  published  financial  statements.  Such  controls  are  maintained  by  the  
establishment  and  communication  of  accounting  and  financial  policies  and  procedures,  by  the 
selection and training of qualified personnel, and by an internal audit program designed to identify 
internal control weaknesses in order to permit management to take appropriate corrective action on 
a timely basis. There are, however, inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal 
control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention of controls.  

The  Board  of  Curators,  through  its  Audit  Committee,  is  responsible  for  engaging  the  independent  
auditors and meeting regularly with management, internal auditors, and the independent auditors to 
ensure that each  is carrying out their responsibilities and to discuss auditing,  internal control, and 
financial reporting matters. Both  internal auditors and the  independent auditors have full and free 
access to the Audit Committee.  

Based on the above, I certify that the information contained in the accompanying financial statements 
fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition, changes in net position and cash flows 
of the University.  

Ryan D. Rapp 
Executive Vice President of Finance and Operations 

University of Missouri System COLUMBIA          |          KANSAS  CITY          |          MISSOURI  S&T      |      ST.  LOUIS

118 University Hall  •  Columbia, MO 65211 •   573‐882‐3611   www.umsystem.edu 
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Management’s  Discussion  and  Analysis  provides  an 
overview  of  the  financial  position  and  activities  of  the 
University  of Missouri  System  (the  “University”)  for  the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, and should be 
read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes.  
The University is a component unit of the State of Missouri 
and an  integral part of the State’s Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report. 

This report includes five financial statements. 

 The  three  financial  statements  for  the  University  of 
Missouri,  its  Blended  Component  Units,  and  its 
Discretely  Presented  Component  Unit  include  the 
Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses,  and  Changes  in  Net  Position,  and  the 
Statement of Cash Flows, where applicable. 
 

 The  two  financial  statements  for  the  University’s 
fiduciary  funds  are  the  Statement  of  Fiduciary  Net 
Position and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net 
Position.    These  statements  include  two  fiduciary 
component units:  the Trust Funds  for Retirement and 
Other  Postemployment  Benefits;  as  well  as  custodial 
funds.  

 
The  University’s  financial  statements  are  prepared  in 
accordance  with  U.S.  generally  accepted  accounting 
principles as prescribed by  the Governmental Accounting 
Standards  Board  (GASB),  which  establishes  financial 
reporting standards for public colleges and universities. The 
University’s significant accounting policies are summarized 
in Note 1 of the financial statements of this report, including 
further  information  on  the  financial  reporting  entity.  In 
addition, a more detailed unaudited  financial  report  that 
includes  campus‐level  financial  statements  is  available  at 
the University of Missouri, 118 University Hall Columbia, 
MO 65211, and at www.umsystem.edu.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
At  June  30,  2023,  the  University’s  financial  position 
remained solid, with Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of 
Resources of $10.6 billion.  Net Position, which represents 
the  residual value of  the University’s assets and deferred 
outflows  of  resources  after  deducting  liabilities  and 
deferred  inflows of  resources,  totaled $6.5 billion. When 
operating  and  non‐operating  changes  are  included,  Net 
Position  increased  by  approximately  $293.9  million  as 
compared  to  fiscal year  (FY) 2022, driven primarily by an 
increase  in  investment  income  of  $344.2  million  after 
investment losses in FY 2022. Stimulus funds continued to 
decline during the year with a decrease in funding of $96.5 
million.   However, State Appropriations and capital grants 
increased  during  the  year  reflecting  increases  of  $28.5 
million  and  $26.6  million,  respectively.    Net  Position 
decreased between FY 2021 and FY 2022 by approximately 
$81.5  million  and  was  driven  primarily  by  decrease  in 
investment income of $923.3 million after $775.9 million in 
investment gains in FY 2021.  Stimulus funds also began to 
decline during the year with a decrease in funding of $51.1 
million. 

As  discussed  in  Note  1  to  the  financial  statements,  the 
University adopted GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription‐
Based  Information  Technology  Arrangements.    The 
implementation  of  this  statement  increased  ending  Net 
Position  of  $19,000  for  fiscal  year  2022.    The  FY  2021 
information  in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
has  not  been  restated  for  the  adoption  of  this  GASB 
statement.      
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The following charts compare Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position at June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, and the major components of changes in Net Position for the years ended 
June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021:
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
The  Statement  of  Net  Position  presents  the  University’s 
financial position at the end of the fiscal year, including all 
assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources of the University, segregating 
them into current and noncurrent components.  Total Net 
Position is an indicator of financial condition and changes in 
Total Net Position indicate if the overall financial condition 

has improved or worsened.  Assets and deferred outflows 
of  resources  and  liabilities  and  deferred  inflows  of 
resources are generally measured using current values with 
certain exceptions, such as capital assets which are stated 
at  cost  less  accumulated  depreciation  and  amortization, 
and long‐term debt which is stated at cost.

The following table summarizes the University’s assets and deferred outflows of resources,  liabilities and deferred  inflows of 
resources and net position at June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021: 

As of June 30,  2023

2022

Restated 2021

Assets

Current Assets 1,853,079$      1,482,588$      1,582,245$    
Noncurrent Assets
Endowment and Other Long‐Term Investments 4,271,226        4,558,388        4,830,138      
Capital, Lease and Subscription Assets, Net 3,998,692        3,834,510        3,744,765      
Other 94,432             110,545           140,750         

Deferred Outflows of Resources 426,771           404,080           219,013         
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 10,644,200$    10,390,111$    10,516,911$  

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Commercial Paper and Current Portion of Long‐Term Debt 201,355$         53,337$           29,828$         
Long‐Term Debt Subject to Remarketing Agreements 66,485             70,735             74,820           
Other 526,408           612,695           892,773         

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long‐Term Debt and Other Obligations 1,629,283        1,812,677        1,792,336      
Other 1,587,012        1,411,853        736,986         

Deferred Inflows of Resources 160,420           249,526           729,396         
Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,170,963        4,210,823        4,256,139      

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,206,407        2,003,281        1,967,055      
Restricted ‐
Nonexpendable 1,628,024        1,582,260        1,659,825      
Expendable 701,263           696,488           744,020         

Unrestricted 1,937,543        1,897,259        1,889,872      
Total Net Position  6,473,237        6,179,288        6,260,772      

Total Liabilities and Net Position 10,644,200$    10,390,111$    10,516,911$  

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
(in thousands of dollars)

 
 
  

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-47 February 8, 2024



UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2023 and 2022 (unaudited) 

 

2023 Financial Report  |  UM System  |  page 17 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 
Total  Assets  and  Deferred  Outflows  of  Resources 
increased by $254.1 million, or 2.4%, to $10.6 billion as of 
June 30, 2023  compared  to  the prior year.   The  increase 
during FY 2023 was driven by  increases  in Capital, Lease, 
and Subscription Assets, net of $164.2 million as well as net 
accounts    and  pledges  receivable  of  $44.3 million.    The 
decrease  during  FY  2022  was  driven  by  a  decrease  in 
Investments Settlements Receivable of $161.7 million, or 
74.1% and a decrease in Long‐Term Investments of $271.8 
million, or 5.6%.   
 
 
 
 

At June 30, 2023, the University’s working capital, which is 
current  assets  less  current  liabilities, was $1.1 billion,  an 
increase  of  $313.0  million  from  the  previous  year.  The 
increase is primarily driven by an increase in cash and short‐
term investments of $366.4 million.  At June 30, 2022, the 
University’s working  capital, which  is  current  assets  less 
current liabilities, was $745.8 million, an increase of $161.0 
million  from  the  previous  year.  The  increase  is  primarily 
driven by a decrease in Investment Settlements Payable.   
 
As  a measurement  of  actual  liquidity, working  capital  is 
adversely  impacted  by  the  inclusion,  per  accounting 
guidelines, of  Long‐Term Debt  Subject  to Remarketing.  If 
Long‐Term  Debt  Subject  to  Remarketing  were  excluded 
from  Current  Liabilities,  working  capital  would  be  $1.1 
billion  and  $816.6  million  at  June  30,  2023  and  2022, 
respectively, also expressed as Current Assets of 2.55 and 
2.23 times Current Liabilities. 

 

The  following  table  illustrates  actual working  capital,  as well  as working  capital  adjusted  for  Long‐  Term Debt  Subject  to 
Remarketing: 

As of June 30,  2023

2022

Restated 2021

Current Assets 1,853,079$     1,482,588$     1,582,245$    
Current Liabilities 794,248          736,767          997,421         
Working Capital 1,058,831$     745,821$        584,824$       

Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities 2.33                2.01                1.59               

Current Assets 1,853,079       1,482,588       1,582,245      
Current Liabilities 794,248          736,767          997,421         
Less:  Long‐Term Debt Subject to Remarketing  (66,485)           (70,735)           (74,820)          
Current Liabilities, As Adjusted 727,763          666,032          922,601         
Working Capital, As Adjusted 1,125,316$     816,556$        659,644$       

Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities (As Adjusted) 2.55                2.23                2.40               

(in thousands of dollars)

SUMMARY OF WORKING CAPITAL
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At  June  30,  2023  and  2022,  the  University  held  $722.9 
million and $855.4 million in Cash and Cash Equivalents in 
both  University  Funds  and  Custodial  Funds  combined.  
University funds consisted of Cash and Cash Equivalents of 
$707.3 million, $839.1 million, and $811.9 million for fiscal 
years ended  June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively.     
The decrease  in  cash at  June 30, 2023 was  largely due a 
decrease  in stimulus funding received as compared to the 
prior year.  Increases in cash during FY 2022 was largely due 
to the receipt of patient care revenues.   
 
 

Short‐Term and Long‐Term Investments for University and 
Custodial Funds  totaled $4.9 billion and $4.7 billion as of 
June 30, 2023 and 2022.    Investment performance varied 
greatly during the pandemic and began to normalize in FY 
2022.    Net  realized  and  unrealized  gains  and  losses 
increased by $344.2 million, going from a net loss of $147.4 
million in FY 2022 to a net gain of $196.8 million in FY 2023. 
The Endowment Pool and General Pool experienced a net 
gain  of  4.1%  and  3.2%  in  FY  2023.    For  comparison,  the 
Endowment Pool and General Pool experienced a net loss 
of (0.7%) and (2.7%) in FY 2022, respectively. 

Composition and returns of the University’s various investment pools for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were as 
follows: 

Cash and Cash 

Equivalents

Short‐Term and 

Long‐Term 

Investments Total

Total

Return

Benchmark

Index Return 
(A) Total

Total

Return

General Pool 293,030$         2,515,558$         2,808,588$     3.2% 1.4% 2,955,666$     ‐2.7%
Endowment Funds
Endowment Pool 383,742           1,860,255           2,243,997       4.1% 4.4% 2,170,004       ‐0.7%

Other 46,124             488,575           534,699          N/A N/A 386,659          N/A

Total 722,896$         4,864,388$         5,587,284$        5,512,329$    

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
(in thousands of dollars)

June 30, 2023

(A) Benchmark index returns are calculated by independent investment consultants based on returns of market indicies.

June 30, 2022
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At  June  30,  2023,  the  University’s  investment  in  Capital 
Assets totaled $3.9 billion compared to $3.7 billion at June 
30, 2022.  The University increased capital assets by $354.5 
million, net of retirements, during FY 2023 offset by a net 
increase in accumulated depreciation of $181.9 million for 

an increase in Capital Asset, Net of $172.5 million. FY 2022 
capital asset additions of $204.8 million, net of retirements, 
were offset by a net increase of accumulated depreciation 
of $176.1 million  for an  increase  in Capital Assets, Net of 
$28.8 million. 

 
Note 8 presents additional information by asset classification. Major capital projects either substantially completed in FY 2023 
or ongoing are show in the following table.  

Campus

Project          

Budget        

Expenditures 

Through         

June 30, 2023 Source of Funding
Columbia:
Thompson Center 55,000,000$          678,000$               Grant, gifts, reserves
Medical Science Building 51,000,000            1,914,000              Grant
Research Reactor ‐ West Building Addition 36,000,000            ‐                          Grant
Vet Diagnostic Laboratory 30,000,000            8,413,000              State appropriations, reserves

Hospital:
Children's Hospital Facility 232,000,000          152,670,000          Reserves, debt

Kansas City:
Health Sciences District Development 120,000,000          422,000                 Grant, gifts, state appropriations, reserves

Missouri S&T:
Systems Integration & Prototype Develop 105,000,000          13,474,000            Grant, gifts

St. Louis:
Campus of the Future 60,000,000            3,855,000              Grants, state appropriations

SELECTED CAPITAL PROJECTS
(Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023)

 
 
LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 
Total  Liabilities  and  Deferred  Inflows  of  Resources 
decreased by $39.9 million during FY 2023 as compared to 
June 30, 2022, which was primarily driven by decreases in 
Accounts Payable of $32.2 million, Current and Long Term 

Debt and Other Obligations of $39.6 million,  Investment 

Settlements Payable of $71.2 million, and Deferred Inflows 
of  Resources  Related  to  Pension  and  Other  Post 

Employment Benefits of $89.8 million.   The decreases  in 
liabilities were caused by timing of payables as well as the 
repayment of debt.  The decreases were partially offset by 
an increase in Net Pension Liability of $199.0 million that is 
primarily attributed to investment returns falling below the 
assumed rate of return, plan demographics and participants 
salary.  

Current Liabilities include long‐term variable rate demand 
bonds  subject  to  remarketing  agreements  totaling  $66.5 
million, $70.7 million and $74.8 million at  June 30, 2023, 
2022  and  2021,  respectively.  The  variable  rate  demand 
bond has a  final  contractual maturity  in  fiscal year 2032.  
Despite  contractual  maturities  beyond  one  year,  this 
variable rate demand bond is classified as a current liability 
because  the  University  is  ultimately  the  sole  source  of 
liquidity  should  the option  to  tender be exercised by  the 
bondholder. 
 
The University’s Commercial Paper Program can issue up to 
an aggregate outstanding principal amount of $375 million.  
There were no issues of commercial paper during FY 2023 
nor FY 2022.  
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Noncurrent  Liabilities  represent  those  commitments 
beyond one year.  For the FY 2023 financials, the University 
implemented GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription‐Based 
Technology  Arrangements,  which  added  subscription 
obligations to the University’s liabilities.  Total subscription 
obligations during the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 
were $60.1 million and $70.3 million, respectively. Prior to 
the  implementation  of  this  standard,  these  obligations 
were reported as expenditures as incurred. 

 

During  FY  2022  financials,  the  University  implemented 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which added the right‐of‐
use  (ROU)  lease  obligations  to  the University’s  liabilities. 
Total  ROU  Lease Obligations  during  for  the  years  ending 
June  30,  2022  and  2021  were  $48.2  million  and  $58.2 
million,  respectively.  Prior  to  the  implementation  of  this 
standard,  these  leases were  reported  as  expenditures  as 
incurred.  

During FY 2021, $28.6 million  in Health Facilities Revenue 
Bonds were  issued by  the Capital Region Medical Center 
(CRMC), as reported in Medical Alliance.   

 
The following is a summary of long‐term debt by type of instrument: 
 

As of June 30,  2023

2022

Restated 2021

System Facilities Revenue Bonds 1,641,390$     1,657,060$     1,662,440$    
Health Facilities Revenue Bonds (Medical Alliance) 39,467            41,677            47,633           
Unamortized Premium  60,348            67,758            71,371           
Total Bonds Payable 1,741,205       1,766,495       1,781,444      
Notes Payable 2,033              2,039              2,480             
Financed Purchase Obligations 45,088            49,776            54,869           
ROU Lease & Subscription Obligations 108,797          118,439          58,191           
Total Long‐Term Debt 1,897,123$     1,936,749$     1,896,984$    

Contractual Maturities Within One Year

Bonds Payable ‐ Fixed Rate 165,729$        13,795$          3,592$           
Bonds Payable ‐ Variable Rate Demand 4,250              4,085              3,935             
Notes Payable 502                 436                 441                
Financed Purchase Obligations 7,852              7,448              7,192             
ROU Lease & Subscription Obligations 23,022            27,573            14,668           
Total Contractual Maturities Within One Year 201,355$        53,337$          29,828$         

LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS
(in thousands of dollars)
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The following is a summary of outstanding revenue bonds and commercial paper by campus and project type: 

MU UMKC UMSL

Missouri 

S&T

University 

Health Care

Medical 

Alliance

Unallocated 

Bond Cost Total

Athletics 128,448$     ‐$              ‐$              ‐$         ‐$          ‐$             ‐$          128,448$    
Campus Utilities 113,444       ‐                ‐                24,581     ‐            ‐               ‐            138,025      
Classroom & Research 126,870       20,753          38,072          12,529     ‐            ‐               ‐            198,224      
Critical Repairs/Maintenance 13,710         5,845            3,608            4,042       ‐            ‐               ‐            27,205        
Housing 262,565       68,580          14,277          63,771     ‐            ‐               ‐            409,193      
Health Care ‐              ‐                ‐                ‐           385,686    39,467         ‐            425,153      
Parking 28,195         33,547      10,815          ‐           ‐            ‐               ‐            72,557        
Recreational Facilities 20,238         5,714        30,060          133          ‐            ‐               ‐            56,145        
Student Centers 20,964         32,076      8,455            6,866       ‐            ‐               ‐            68,361        
Other 79                123               ‐                ‐           ‐            ‐               157,344    157,546      
Unamortized Premium ‐              ‐                ‐                ‐           ‐            ‐               60,348      60,348        

Total 714,513$     166,638$      105,287$      111,922$     385,686$      39,467$          217,692$      1,741,205$    

Revenue Bonds and Commercial Paper
(in thousands of dollars)

June 30, 2023

 

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent an acquisition of 
net position by the University that is applicable to a future 
period.   During FY 2023, the University recognized $160.4 
million of deferred  inflows of  resources  representing  the 
University’s remainder interest of charitable annuities and 
trusts,  leases, changes  in assumptions and net difference 
between  projected  and  actual  earnings  for  the  other 
postemployment  benefit  and  pension  plans,  and 
differences  between  actual  and  expected  experience  for 
the  pension  and  other  postemployment  benefit  plans.  
Deferred  inflows of  resources  recognized during  FY 2022 
was $249.5 million.   

NET POSITION   
Net Position represents the value of the University’s assets 
after  liabilities  are  deducted.  The  University’s  total  Net 
Position decreased by $81.5 million during the year ended 
June 30, 2022 to $6.2 billion and increased by $293.9 million 
to $6.5 billion for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
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The distribution of the Net Position balances, including additional details on unrestricted net position by fund type, as of June 
30, 2023, are as follows:  

Restricted Expendable
11%

Net Investment in Capital 
Assets
34%

Restricted Nonexpendable
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Chart TitleTOTAL NET POSITION  ‐ $6.5 BILLION

Total  Net  Position  is  reflected  in  the  four  component 
categories as follows.  

Net  Investment  in  Capital  Assets,  represents  the 
University’s  investment  in  capital  assets,  net  of 
accumulated  depreciation  and  amortization  and 
outstanding  debt  related  to  acquisition,  construction  or 
improvement of  those assets. This  category  increased by 
$203.1 million in FY 2023 and increased by $36.2 million in 
FY 2022. The increase in FY 2023 was driven by purchases 
of capital assets while the increase in FY 2022 was primarily 
caused by the repayment of debt.   

Restricted  Nonexpendable  Net  Position  includes 
endowment assets that are subject to externally  imposed 
stipulations for the principal to be maintained in perpetuity 
by the University.  An increase in endowed gifts resulted in 
an  increase  in  Restricted Nonexpendable Net  Position  of 
$45.7 million or 2.9% during FY 2023.    Investment  losses 
during  FY  2022  led  to  a  decrease  in  Restricted 
Nonexpendable Net Position of $77.6 million or 4.7%.   

 

Restricted  Expendable Net Position  represents  resources 
that  are  subject  to  externally  imposed  stipulations 
regarding their use, but are not required to be maintained 
in perpetuity.   This category decreased during FY 2022 by 
$47.5 million,  or  6.4%,  and  increased  by  $4.8million,  or 
0.7%, during FY 2023.   As of  June 30, 2023,  this category 
includes: 

‐ $574.5  million  of  net  position  restricted  for 
operations  and  giving  purposes  compared  to 
$550.8 million at June 30, 2022;   
 

‐ $70.6 million for student loan programs compared 
to $74.0 million at June 30, 2022; and 
 

‐ $56.2  million  for  facilities  compared  to  $71.7 
million at June 30, 2022.     
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Unrestricted  Net  Position  is  not  subject  to  externally 
imposed  stipulations,  although  these  resources  may  be 
designated  for  specific  purposes  by  the  University’s 
management or Board of Curators. This category increased 
by  $45.8 million  or  2.4%  to  $1.9  billion  in  FY  2023  and 
increased  $7.4 million  or  0.4%  in  FY  2022.   Maintaining 
adequate  levels  of  unrestricted  net  position  is  one  of 
several  key  factors  that  have  enabled  the  University  to 
maintain  its Aa1  credit  rating.   As of  June 30, 2023,  and 
2022,  University  Health  Care  designated  funds  totaled 

$236.7  million  and  $272.9  million,  respectively;  capital 
project‐designated  funds  totaled  $1.1  billion  and  $1.06 
billion,  respectively;  student  loan  program‐designated 
funds  totaled $10.0 million and $9.9 million, respectively; 
and unrestricted funds functioning as endowments totaled 
$270.5  million  and  $270.3  million,  respectively.  The 
remaining  Unrestricted  Net  Position  is  available  for  the 
University’s instructional and public service missions and its 
general  operations  totaled  $282.8  million  and  $284.1 
million at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

The  Statement  of  Revenues,  Expenses,  and  Changes  in Net  Position  presents  the University’s  results  of  operations.    The 
Statement distinguishes revenues and expenses between operating and non‐operating categories and provides a view of the 
University’s operating margin. 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,  2023

2022

Restated 2021
Operating Revenues

Net Tuition and Fees 634,330$         596,940$         582,673$       
Grants and Contracts 508,279           433,718           371,909         
Patient Medical Services, Net 1,906,047        1,733,615        1,643,468      
Other Auxiliary Enterprises 508,330           472,978           451,422         
Other Operating Revenues 112,051           93,163             88,797           
Total Operating Revenues 3,669,037        3,330,414        3,138,269      

Operating Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Benefits 2,583,975        2,303,637        2,034,663      
Supplies, Services and Other Operating Expenses 1,368,451        1,261,414        1,105,652      
Other Operating Expenses 358,698           391,629           333,778         
Total Operating Expenses 4,311,124        3,956,680        3,474,093      

Operating Loss Before State Appropriations (642,087)          (626,266)          (335,824)       
State Appropriations 453,422           424,949           419,690         
Income (Loss) after State Appropriations, before
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (188,665)          (201,317)          83,866           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment and Endowment Income , Net of Fees 196,801           (147,423)          775,901         
Private Gifts 121,805           80,982             84,233           
Interest Expense (72,425)            (74,846)            (71,965)         
Other Nonoperating Revenues, Net 103,960           188,233           253,079         
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 350,141           46,946             1,041,248      

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions, Additions

to Permanent Endowments, and Extraordinary Item  161,476           (154,371)          1,125,114      
State Capital Appropriations 3,646               682                  ‐                    
Capital Gifts and Grants 87,781             30,528             67,825           
Gifts and Grants for Endowment Purposes 41,046             41,677             61,029           

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 293,949           (81,484)            1,253,968      
Net Position, Beginning of Year  6,179,288        6,260,772        5,006,804      
Net Position, End of Year 6,473,237$      6,179,288$      6,260,772$    

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(in thousands of dollars)
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OPERATING REVENUES 
Operating Revenues represent resources generated by the 
University  in  fulfilling  its  instruction,  research, and public 
service  missions.  Total  Operating  Revenues  increased 
$338.6 million,  or  10.2%  in  FY  2023  primarily  due  to  an 
increase  in Patient Medical Services of $172.4 million, or 
9.9%,  and  an  increase  in  grants  and  contracts  of  $74.6 
million, or 17.2%. 

The increase in Patient Medical Services was a result of a 
continued  rebound  in  services  provided  after  declines  in 
services  as  the  result  of  the  pandemic.    Grants  and 
Contracts grew $74.6 million during  fiscal year 2023 as a 
result of an increased focus on grant funded research.  The 
following is a graphic illustration of operating revenues by 
source for FY 2023: 
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Chart TitleTOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ‐ $3.7 BILLION

 
 

Tuition and Fees, net of Scholarship Allowances, increased 
by $37.4 million, or 6.3%, and  increased $14.3 million, or 
2.4%  in FY 2023 and FY 2022, respectively, over a total of 
$582.7 million in FY 2021.  The increase in FY 2023 was due 
to  inflationary tuition rate  increases as well as changes  in 
student  resident mix while  the  increase  in  FY  2022 was 
caused by an increase in tuition rates.   

As  a  research  institution,  the  University  receives  a 
substantial amount of funding through Federal, State and 
Private Grants and Contracts.  Overall, sponsored funding 
increased by $74.6 million, or 17.2%, in FY 2023 compared 

to an increase of $61.8 million, or 16.6%, in FY 2022 over a 
total of $371.9 million in FY 2021.   

The  University’s  auxiliary  enterprises  include  University 
Health  Care,  Housing  and  Dining  Services,  campus 
Bookstores, and other  such  supplemental activities. Total 
operating  revenues  generated  by  these  auxiliary 
enterprises increased by $207.8 million, or 9.4% in FY 2023 
and increased by $111.7 million, or 5.3% in FY 2022 over a 
total of $2.1 billion  in FY 2021.   Patient Medical Services, 
which  includes  fees  for  services  provided  by  University 
Health  Care  and  the Medical  Alliance,  increased  $172.4 
million  as  a  result  of  resuming  normal  operations  in  the 
wake  of  the  delay  in  elective  procedures  during  the 
pandemic.   All other auxiliary enterprises experienced an 
increase  of  $35.4  million  or  7.5%  as  the  result  of  a 
continuation  of  increased  on‐campus  activities  after 
campus shut downs of in person classes and activities due 
to COVID‐19 in FY 2020. 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Nonoperating Revenues  are  those not  generated  by  the 
University’s core missions and include such funding sources 
as  State  and  Federal  Appropriations,  Pell Grants,  Private 
Gifts and Investment and Endowment Income. 

Total  State  Appropriations  received  for  University 
operations, University Health  Care  operations,  and  other 
special programs increased by $28.5 million, or 6.7% in FY 
2023 and increased by $5.3 million, or 1.3% in FY 2022 over 
a total of $419.7 million in FY 2021.  State support began to 
increase  in FY2021  to pre‐pandemic  levels with a modest 
increase  in  FY  2022.    The  increase  in  FY  2023  of  6.7%, 
however, was the largest increase in the past several years 
as state funding for higher education was prioritized.   

As  one  of  the  more  volatile  sources  of  non‐operating 
revenues,  Investment  and  Endowment  Income  includes 
interest  and  dividend  income  as  well  as  realized  and 
unrealized gains and losses. Realized and unrealized market 
value gains, losses and other activity affecting Investment 

and Endowment  Income  resulted  in a net gain of $196.8 
million  in  FY  2023  as  compared  to  a  net  loss  of  $147.4 
million  in FY 2022.   As of  June 30, 2021,  Investment and 
Endowment Income was $775.9 million. 
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Gift  income  is reflected  in three categories: Private Gifts, 
Capital Gifts and Grants (which are restricted for adding or 
improving  capital  assets)  and  Gifts  and  Grants  for 

Endowments  (which  are  restricted  for  establishing 
endowments). Private Gifts can fluctuate significantly from 
year to year due to the voluntary nature of donors’ gifts. In 
FY  2023,  the  University  received  gifts  and  grants  in  the 
categories  listed  above  totaling  $250.6  million,  as 
compared to $153.2 million and $213.1 million for FY 2022 
and FY 2021, respectively.   

In FY 2023, Other Nonoperating Revenues, Net of $104.0 
million decreased $84.3 million and $64.8 million from FY 
2022  and  2021,  respectively.  The  University  received 
stimulus  relief, as  shown as government  subsidies,  in  the 

amount of $21.5 million, $118.0 million, and $169.0 million 
during  FY 2023,  FY 2022  and  FY 2021,  respectively.    The 
COVID related stimulus funding provided relief to hospitals 
and  higher  education  institutions  in  response  to  the 
negative economic impacts of the pandemic. The University 
saw a drop in stimulus funding during fiscal years 2022 and 
2023 as the temporary funding started to come to an end 
and governments started to give out less funding for COVID 
relief.   

Nonoperating  Expenses  mainly  consists  of  interest 
expense. Total  interest  incurred  for the years ended  June 
30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 was $72.4 million, $74.8 million, 
and $72.0 million, respectively.  

The following is a summary of interest expense associated with Long‐Term Debt: 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,  2023

2022

Restated 2021

System Facilities Revenue Bonds 63,626$          63,234$          62,839$         
Health Facilities Revenue Bonds 1,188              1,250              1,104             
Net Payment on Interest Rate Swaps 3,385              6,000              6,021             
Total Revenue Bonds 68,199            70,484            69,964           
Lease & Subscription Obligations 4,173              4,281              1,889             
Notes Payable 53                   81                   112                
Total Interest Expense 72,425$          74,846$          71,965$         

INTEREST EXPENSE
(in thousands of dollars)
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OPERATING EXPENSES 

Total Operating Expenses  increased by $354.4 million, or 
9.0% and $482.6 million, or 13.9%, in FY 2023 and FY 2022, 
respectively.  The increase in total operating expenses in FY 
2023 was primarily due increases in Salaries and Wages and 

Benefits.    The  following  graph  illustrates  the University’s 
operating expenses by natural classification for FY 2023: 
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During FY 2023, Salaries, Wages and Benefits increased by 
approximately 12.2% as compared  to a 13.2%  increase  in 
the  prior  fiscal  year.    Salaries  and Wages  increased  by 
$182.6 million, or 10.2%,  increases  in faculty and staff for 
positions  as  well  as  market  and  merit  increases.  Staff 
Benefits increased by $97.8 million, or 19.3%, in fiscal year 
2023 primarily due an increase in pension expense of $88.4 
million.  
 
In FY 2023, the University’s Supplies, Services, and Other 
Operating  expenses  of  $1.4  billion  increased  by  $107.0 
million, or 8.5%.   While expenses  in FY 2022  totaled $1.3 
billion  and  increased  $155.8 million,  or  14.1%,  over  the 
prior fiscal year.  

 

 

 

The  following  illustrates  the  University’s  operating 
expenses by function for FY 2019 through FY 2023: 
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University Health Care, included in auxiliary, constitutes the 
highest proportion of Operating Expenses at 35.2% for FY 
2023  and  35.8%  for  FY  2022.  The  core  missions  of 
instruction,  research,  and  public  service  account  for  the 
next largest proportion of Operating Expenses at 35.6% and 
32.9%  for  FY  2023  and  FY  2022,  respectively.    Excluding 
University Health Care, instruction, research, scholarships, 
and public service account for 45.2% of Operating Expenses 
for  FY  2023.    Institutional  support, which  represents  the 
core administrative operations of  the University, was  less 
than 4 cents of each dollar spent during this 5‐year period. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the University’s sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents during 
the fiscal year.   The following summarizes sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents for the three years ended June 30, 
2023, 2022 and 2021: 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,  2023

2022

Restated 2021
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (346,402)$        (362,941)$        (179,922)$     
Net Cash Provided from Noncapital Financing Activities 680,977 757,841           789,177         
Net Cash Used in Capital and
Related Financing Activities (431,187) (356,679)          (301,557)       

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (35,175) (11,015)            (58,824)         
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (131,787)          27,206             248,874         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 839,118           811,912           563,038         
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 707,331$         839,118$         811,912$       

(in thousands of dollars)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 

Net  Cash  Used  in  Operating  Activities  reflects  the 
continued need for funding from the State of Missouri, as 
funding received from tuition and fees and related sales and 
services  of  auxiliary  and  educational  activities  are  not 
sufficient to cover operational needs. In FY 2023, cash used 
in operating activities decreased by $16.5 million primarily 
due  to  increases  in  receipts  from  tuition and  fees, grants 
and patient care revenues outpacing increased payments to 
suppliers, employees and benefits. In FY 2022, cash used in 
operating  activities  increased  by  $183.0  million.    The 
increase  in  the  amount  used  was  primarily  due  to  an 
increase in payments to employees and benefits related to 
the discontinuing of  temporary pay decreases  and hiring 
freezes as well as returning to an annual merit pool for staff.  

The University’s most significant source of cash, Net Cash 
Provided  from  Noncapital  Financing  Activities,  includes 
funding from State and Federal appropriations, Pell grants 
and  noncapital  private  gifts.  Cash  from  these  sources 
totaling $681.0 million, $757.8 million, and $789.2 million 
in  FY  2023,  FY  2022,  and  FY  2021,  respectively,  directly 
offset the additional cash needs resulting from operations. 

Net Cash Used In Capital and Related Financing Activities 
increased by $74.5 million  in FY 2023 due  to a decline  in 
capital  asset  proceeds  from  retirement.  In  FY  2022, Net 
Cash  Used  in  Capital  and  Related  Financing  Activities 
increased by $55.1 million  in  FY 2022 due an  increase  in 
capital asset purchases.  

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities reflects a net outflow 
of $35.2 million, $11.0 million, and $58.8 million, in FY 2023, 
FY 2022 and FY 2021, respectively.     
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
The  University  of Missouri  is  the  State’s  premier  public 
research  university  contributing  to  the  economic 
development  and  vitality  of  the  state  through  ground‐
breaking  research, educating more  than 69,000  students, 
delivering quality healthcare to the citizens of Missouri, and 
providing extension services throughout the state. 

Overall,  enrollment  remained  stable  with  a  1%  decline 
during FY 2023  following  the 2%  increase during FY 2022 
across  the  four  campuses.    Freshman  enrollment  saw  a 
rebound  in FY 2023 with an  increase of 4% after declines 
during  fiscal  years  2022  and  2021  of  5%  and  4%, 
respectively.  Enrollment is expected to remain stable into 
FY 2024.   For FY 2024, the University  implemented a new 
differential tuition model that increases price transparency 
for students.  Legislation passed in 2021 gave the University 
flexibility to price tuition to align with the market for and 
cost  to  deliver  a  specific  degree.    Differential  tuition  is 
charged  as  a  single  rate  for  all  and  eliminates  individual 
supplemental course fees.  Simplifying the tuition process is 
expected to create efficiencies in the billing and financial aid 
processes  and  provide  students with  a more  predictable 
model. 

Demographic headwinds and inflation present pressures on 
the University’s business model, and  leadership continues 
to actively focus on these risks.  Leadership remains focused 
on  generating  positive  outcomes  in  student  success, 
research  and  creative works,  engagement  and  outreach, 
inclusivity,  and  stewardship  of  the  University’s  financial 
resources.  The University remains committed to balancing 
its  budget  and  maintaining  financial  performance  to 
support its mission.  Sustained inflation will continue to put 
pressure  on  the University  to  continue  to  find  operating 
efficiencies. 

State appropriations for operations grew by 7% in FY 2023, 
which was the largest single year increase in twenty years.  
Growth  in  State  appropriations  is  a  result  of  regained 
budget stability at the State after several years of budget 
pressures during the pandemic resulting  in budget cuts to 
higher education.  State appropriations for capital purposes 

also  increased  during  FY  2023  and  additional  capital 
appropriation and capital grants funding are continued to 
grow  over  the  next  few  fiscal  years.    Capital  spend will 
increase  as  a  result  and  allow  the University  to  improve 
upon  the  condition  of  its  buildings  and  infrastructure 
utilizing  appropriation  and  grant  funding;  providing  the 
University the ability to prioritize operating needs separate 
from capital needs.  

University  of  Missouri  Health  Care  (MU  Health  Care) 
remains dedicated  to  its mission of  saving and  improving 
lives. MU Health Care’s focus for the future is to achieve the 
scale needed, to support the clinic, education and research 
missions and  its  long‐term  vision  to become  the premier 
academic  health  system  for  Missouri.  MU  Health  Care 
continues to evaluate new growth opportunities within the 
State  and  will  be  working  closely  with  Capital  Region 
Medical Center  to  integrate  the  community hospital  into 
the MU Health Care academic medical  center operations 
during FY 2024.  MU Health Care strives to improve patient 
outcomes and access to care, share best practices, create 
efficiencies, and manage health care costs.   

Health  care  reimbursement  is  a  continually  changing 
landscape.  Considering  such,  reimbursement  for  services 
will  remain  under  inflationary  pressure,  as  many 
contractual increases are tied to fixed percentage increases 
that were developed under periods of low inflation.  MUHC 
is focused on managing expenses within available revenues 
and continues to regularly monitor state and federal health 
care programs to analyze the impact of ongoing legislation 
on reimbursement and the delivery of health care.    

The  University  is  aware  of  its  fiduciary  responsibility  to 
control costs in order to provide an affordable education for 
Missourians. Despite the challenges generated by economic 
pressures  from  the  pandemic,  the  University  remained 
flexible  during  the  downfall  of  the  pandemic  and  is 
returning pre‐pandemic operations.    Inflationary pressure 
remains  and  will  present  an  on‐going  challenge.    The 
University  will  actively manage  budgetary  challenges  by 
finding cost efficiencies and increasing revenues in line with 
inflation  to  continue  to  support  its mission  and  strategic 
goals. 

 

   

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-60 February 8, 2024



2023 Financial Report | UM System | page 30 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

The Board of Curators 
University of Missouri System 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Opinions 
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities, the discretely presented 
component unit, and the fiduciary activities of University of Missouri System, collectively a component unit 
of the State of Missouri, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University of Missouri System’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 
In our opinion, based on our report and the report of other auditors, the accompanying financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, and the fiduciary activities of the 
University of Missouri System, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the respective changes in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
We did not audit the financial statements of the Kummer Institute Foundation, which is the sole discretely 
presented component unit of the University, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023.  Those 
statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, 
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Kummer Institute Foundation is based solely on the 
reports of the other auditors. 
Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report.  We are required to be 
independent of the University of Missouri System and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.  We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
Emphasis of Matter 
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2023, the University of Missouri System adopted 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information 
Technology Arrangements.  Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.   
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the University of 
Missouri System’s ability to continue as a going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement 
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
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material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of University of Missouri System’s internal control.  Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about University of Missouri System’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, pension, and other postemployment benefit information as listed in the table of 
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the 
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report.  The other information 
comprises the introductory and statistical sections as listed in the table of contents but does not include 
the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  Our opinions on the basic financial 
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of 
assurance thereon. 
In connection with our audits of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, 
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

 
Kansas City, Missouri 
October 18, 2023 
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Restated
2023 2022 2023 2022

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 331,177$          444,294$         25,276$          2,303$            
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 375,126            387,505           ‐                      ‐                      
Short‐Term Investments 447,368            11,099             ‐                      ‐                      
Restricted Short‐Term Investments 64,886              9,283               ‐                      ‐                      
Investment of Cash Collateral 787                   4,477               ‐                      ‐                      
Accounts Receivable, Net 478,576            442,878           ‐                      ‐                      
Pledges Receivable, Net 45,521              29,999             ‐                      ‐                      
Investment Settlements Receivable 10,600              56,506             ‐                      ‐                      
Notes Receivable, Net 6,062                6,719               ‐                      ‐                      
Leases Receivable, Net 2,124                2,018               ‐                      ‐                      
Inventories 51,786              52,511             ‐                      ‐                      
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 39,066              35,299             ‐                      ‐                      
Total Current Assets 1,853,079         1,482,588        25,276            2,303              

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,028                7,319               ‐                      ‐                      
Pledges Receivable, Net 32,771              39,686             ‐                      ‐                      
Notes Receivable, Net 31,774              35,314             ‐                      ‐                      
Leases Receivable, Net 12,307              13,310             ‐                      ‐                      
Other Assets 11,773              10,122             ‐                      ‐                      
Restricted Other Assets 4,779                4,794               ‐                      ‐                      
Long‐Term Investments 2,383,052         2,649,131        331,940          428,913          
Restricted Long‐Term Investments 1,888,174         1,909,257        ‐                      ‐                      
Capital, Lease and Subscription Assets, Net 3,998,692         3,834,510        ‐                      ‐                      
Total Noncurrent Assets 8,364,350         8,503,443        331,940          428,913          

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Outflows Related to Debt 8,781                13,412             ‐                      ‐                      
Deferred Outflows Related to Asset Retirement Obligations 47,449              49,946             ‐                      ‐                      
Deferred Outflows Related to Other Post Employment Benefits 26,087              14,477             ‐                      ‐                      
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 344,454            326,245           ‐                      ‐                      
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 426,771            404,080           ‐                      ‐                      
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 10,644,200$     10,390,111$    357,216$        431,216$        

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 170,287$          202,527$         2,526$            1,337$            
Accrued Liabilities 229,417            210,950           16                   ‐                      
Unearned Revenue 111,010            108,681           ‐                      ‐                      
Investment Settlements Payable 14,907              86,060             ‐                      ‐                      
Collateral Held for Securities Lending 787                   4,477               ‐                      ‐                      
Current Portion of Long‐Term Debt and Other Obligations 201,355            53,337             ‐                      ‐                      
Long‐Term Debt Subject to Remarketing Agreements 66,485              70,735             ‐                      ‐                      
Total Current Liabilities 794,248            736,767           2,542              1,337              

(continued)

University Discretely Presented
Component Unit
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Restated

2023 2022 2023 2022

Liabilities, Continued

Noncurrent Liabilities

Unearned Revenue 13,471              13,719             ‐                      ‐                      
Asset Retirement Obligation 62,433              62,433             ‐                      ‐                      
Long‐Term Debt and Other Obligations 1,629,283         1,812,677        ‐                      ‐                      
Derivative Instrument Liability 8,454                16,248             ‐                      ‐                      
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability 148,746            159,780           ‐                      ‐                      
Net Pension Liability 1,254,814         1,055,765        ‐                      ‐                      
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 99,094              103,908           ‐                      ‐                      
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,216,295         3,224,530        ‐                      ‐                      

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows for Charitable Annuities 14,808              13,093             ‐                      ‐                      
Deferred Inflows for Leases 13,996              15,012            
Deferred Inflows Related to Other Postemployment Benefits 127,199            188,223           ‐                      ‐                      
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 4,417                33,198             ‐                      ‐                      
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 160,420            249,526           ‐                      ‐                      

        Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,170,963         4,210,823        2,542              1,337              

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,206,407         2,003,281        ‐                      ‐                      
Restricted

Nonexpendable ‐ 
Endowment 1,628,024         1,582,260        ‐                      ‐                      

Expendable ‐ 
Scholarship, Research, Instruction and Other 574,519            550,796           ‐                      ‐                      
Loans 70,579              73,990             ‐                      ‐                      
Capital Projects 56,165              71,702             ‐                      ‐                      

Unrestricted 1,937,543         1,897,259        354,674          429,879          
Total Net Position 6,473,237         6,179,288        354,674          429,879          

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 10,644,200$     10,390,111$    357,216$        431,216$        

University Discretely Presented
Component Unit

 

See notes to the financial statements 
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Restated

2023 2022 2023 2022

Operating Revenues

Tuition and Fees (Net of Provision for Doubtful
Accounts of $22,024 in 2023 and $25,841 in 2022) 985,282$          931,616$         ‐$                    ‐$                    

Less Scholarship Allowances 350,952            334,676           ‐                      ‐                      
    Net Tuition and Fees 634,330            596,940           ‐                      ‐                      
Federal Grants and Contracts 233,777            207,374           ‐                      ‐                      
State and Local Grants and Contracts 169,017            126,388           ‐                      ‐                      
Private Grants and Contracts 105,485            99,956             ‐                      ‐                      
Sales and Services of Educational Activities 23,908              22,513             ‐                      ‐                      
Auxiliary Enterprises ‐
Patient Medical Services, Net 1,906,047         1,733,615        ‐                      ‐                      
Housing and Dining Services (Net of Scholarship Allowance of 
$2,180 in 2023 and $1,656 in 2022) 118,236            108,868           ‐                      ‐                      

Bookstores 31,302              31,444             ‐                      ‐                      
Other Auxiliary Enterprises (Net of Scholarship Allowance of
 $10,863 in 2023 and $9,841 in 2022) 358,792            332,666           ‐                      ‐                      

Other Operating Revenues 88,143              70,650             ‐                      ‐                      
Total Operating Revenues 3,669,037         3,330,414        ‐                      ‐                      

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Wages 1,979,873         1,797,287        ‐                      ‐                      
Benefits 604,102            506,350           ‐                      ‐                      
Supplies, Services and Other Operating Expenses 1,368,451         1,261,414        16,468            3,268              
Scholarships and Fellowships 81,191              123,109           ‐                      ‐                      
Depreciation and Amortization 277,507            268,520           ‐                      ‐                      
Total Operating Expenses 4,311,124         3,956,680        16,468            3,268              

Operating Income (Loss) before State Appropriations (642,087)           (626,266)          (16,468)           (3,268)             

State Appropriations 453,422            424,949           ‐                      ‐                      
Operating Income (Loss) after State Appropriations,

before Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (188,665)           (201,317)          (16,468)           (3,268)             

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Federal Appropriations 29,273              28,290             ‐                      ‐                      
Federal Pell Grants 55,221              53,034             ‐                      ‐                      
Investment and Endowment Income, Net of Fees 196,801            (147,423)          (58,737)           95,292            
Private Gifts 121,805            80,982             ‐                      ‐                      
Interest Expense (72,425)             (74,846)            ‐                      ‐                      
Government Subsidies 21,464              117,956           ‐                      ‐                      
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (1,998)               (11,047)            ‐                      ‐                      
Net Nonoperating Revenues 350,141            46,946             (58,737)           95,292            

(continued)

University Discretely Presented
Component Unit
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Restated

2023 2022 2023 2022

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions, Additions to Permanent

    Endowments, and Extraordinary Items  161,476            (154,371)          (75,205)           92,024            

State Capital Appropriations 3,646                682                  ‐                      ‐                      
Capital Gifts and Grants 87,781              30,528             ‐                      ‐                      
Gifts and Grants for Endowment Purposes 41,046              41,677             ‐                      ‐                      

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 293,949            (81,484)            (75,205)           92,024            

Net Position, Beginning of Year 6,179,288         6,260,772        429,879          337,855          

Net Position, End of Year 6,473,237$       6,179,288$      354,674$        429,879$        

University Discretely Presented
Component Unit

             

See notes to the financial statements 
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Restated

2023 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Tuition and Fees 616,472$          592,393$        
Federal, State and Private Grants and Contracts 519,802            430,825          
Sales and Services of Educational Activities and Other Auxiliaries 373,317            305,575          
Patient Care Revenues 1,912,831         1,752,080       
Student Housing Fees 118,039            108,962          
Bookstore Collections 31,370              31,472            
Payments to Suppliers (1,429,387)        (1,258,099)      
Payments to Employees (1,962,529)        (1,788,734)      
Payments for Benefits (535,711)           (490,021)         
Payments for Scholarships and Fellowships (81,191)             (123,109)         
Student Loans Issued (3,922)               (3,778)             
Student Loans Collected 5,735                6,849              
Student Loan Interest and Fees 3,979                1,081              
Other Receipts, Net 84,793              71,563            
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (346,402)           (362,941)         

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

State Educational Appropriations 453,422            424,949          
Federal Appropriations and Pell Grants 84,866              83,338            
Private Gifts 95,861              94,175            
Endowment and Similar Funds Gifts and Grants 41,013              41,476            
Direct Lending Receipts 242,069            240,741          
Direct Lending Disbursements (242,069)           (240,741)         
PLUS Loan Receipts 93,235              88,423            
PLUS Loan Disbursements (93,235)             (88,423)           
Other Receipts, Net 5,815                113,903          
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 680,977            757,841          

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Capital Gifts and Grants 82,511              26,509            
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 11,169              152,101          
Purchase of Capital Assets (394,872)           (408,534)         
Proceeds from Issuance of Capital Project Notes, Net 485                   ‐                  
Principal Payments on Capital Debt (18,371)             (7,867)             
Principal Payments on Leases and Subscriptions (36,597)             (37,288)           
Interest Payments on Capital Debt and Other Obligations (79,158)             (81,600)           
State Capital Appropriations 3,646                ‐                  
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (431,187)           (356,679)         

(continued)

University
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Restated

2023 2022

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest and Dividends on Investments, Net 69,715              (474,501)         
Proceeds from Investments 58,351,147       22,944,032     
Purchases of Investments (58,456,037)      (22,480,546)    
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (35,175)             (11,015)           

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (131,787)           27,206            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 839,118            811,912          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 707,331$          839,118$        

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Operating Loss (642,087)$         (626,266)$       
Adjustments to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 277,507            268,520          
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable, Net (14,611)             (40,934)           
Inventory, Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets (4,678)               (1,560)             
Notes, Leases Receivable and Deferred Inflows 4,078                3,956              
Deferred Outflows of Resources for Pension and OPEB (29,819)             (195,751)         
Accounts Payable (53,726)             (10,419)           
Accrued Liabilities 13,577              26,465            
Unearned Revenue 5,147                968                 
Pension Liability 199,049            740,822          
OPEB Liability (11,034)             (54,037)           
Deferred Inflows of Resources for Pension and OPEB (89,805)             (474,705)         

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (346,402)$         (362,941)$       

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 123,217$          (314,389)$       
Noncash Gifts 9,380                7,895              
Accounts Payable Incurred From Purchase of Capital Assets 55,706              34,580            
Assets Acquired Through Leases and Subscription Arrangements 19,015              13,978            
Capital Assets Acquired Through Financed Purchases 3,252                2,399              
Lease and Subscription Obligations Incurred 22,267              16,325            

See notes to the financial statements

University
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2023 2022 2023 2022

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 509,715$             770,157$          15,565$           16,312$        
Investment of Cash Collateral 18,392                 31,802              ‐                   ‐                
Investment Settlements Receivable 25,599                 35,870              ‐                   ‐                
Other Assets 923                      914                   322                  301               
Investments:

Debt Securities (2,745)                 75,175              ‐                   ‐                
Equity Securities 405,588               228,630            ‐                   ‐                
Commingled Funds 2,255,888            1,996,345         ‐                   ‐                
Nonmarketable Alternative Investments 1,157,194            1,289,517         ‐                   ‐                
Pooled Investments ‐                      ‐                    80,908             78,129          
Total Assets 4,370,554            4,428,410         96,795             94,742          

Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 1,853                   1,832                1,476               264               
Collateral Held for Securities Lending 18,392                 31,802              ‐                   ‐                
Investment Settlements Payable 30,635                 68,705              ‐                   ‐                

Total Liabilities 50,880                 102,339            1,476               264               

Restricted Net Position 4,319,674$          4,326,071$       95,319$           94,478$        

See notes to the financial statements

Custodial FundsRetirement and OPEB

Fiduciary Component Units
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2023 2022 2023 2022

Additions

    State Appropriations ‐$                        ‐$                      3,784$             3,263$          
    Gift Income ‐                          ‐                        1,314               2,433            
    Other Revenues ‐                          ‐                        1,952               3,756            
Investment Income (Loss):
Interest & Dividend Income 32,244                 31,238              ‐                       ‐                    

      Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in Fair Value
          of Investments 140,958               (127,885)           3,244               (505)              

   Less investment expense  (8,836)                 (7,912)               ‐                       ‐                    
Net Investment Income (Loss) 164,366               (104,559)           10,294             8,947            

Contributions:

University 147,555               130,845            ‐                       ‐                    
Members 30,823                 31,563              ‐                       ‐                    
Total Contributions 178,378               162,408            ‐                       ‐                    
Total Additions  342,744               57,849              10,294             8,947            

Deductions

Administrative Expenses 4,986                   3,219                7,735               6,687            
Capital Expenses ‐                          ‐                        ‐                       15                 
Payments to Retirees and Beneficiaries 344,155               325,195            1,718               2,740            
Total Deductions 349,141               328,414            9,453               9,442            

Increase (Decrease) in Restricted Net Position (6,397)                 (270,565)           841                  (495)              

Restricted Net Position, Beginning of Year 4,326,071            4,596,636         94,478             94,973          

Restricted Net Position, End of Year 4,319,674$          4,326,071$       95,319$           94,478$        

See notes to the financial statements

Custodial FundsRetirement and OPEB

Fiduciary Component Units
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1.   ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 

Organization – The University of Missouri System (the 
“University”), a Federal land grant institution, conducts 
education, research, public service, and related activities, 
which includes University of Missouri Health System (“MU 
Health Care”) and related facilities, principally at its four 
campuses in Columbia, Kansas City, Rolla and St. Louis.  The 
University also administers a statewide cooperative 
extension service with centers located in each county in the 
State of Missouri (the “State”).  The University is a 
component unit of the State and is governed by a nine-
member Board of Curators appointed by the State’s 
Governor. 
 
The income generated by the University, as an 
instrumentality unit of the State, is generally excluded from 
federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal 
Revenue Code. However, the University remains subject to 
income taxes on any net income that is derived from a trade 
or business, regularly carried on and not in furtherance of 
the purpose for which it is exempt.  No income tax provision 
has been recorded as the net income, if any, from unrelated 
trade or business income, is not material to the financial 
statements. 
 
Reporting Entity – As defined by generally accepted 
accounting principles established by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), the financial 
reporting entity consists of the primary government and its 
component units.  Component units are legally separate 
organizations for which the primary government is 
financially accountable or the nature and significance of 
their relationships with the primary government are such 
that exclusion would cause the primary government’s 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.   
 
The University of Missouri-Columbia Medical Alliance (the 
“Medical Alliance”) is considered a component unit of the 
University according to the criteria in GASB Statement No. 
61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus (an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34), and is 
presented as a blended component unit in the University’s 
financial statements in accordance to GASB Statement No. 
80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units.   

The Medical Alliance is a not-for-profit corporation in which 
the University is the sole member.  The Medical Alliance, 
provides an integrated health care delivery system for mid- 
Missouri by establishing affiliations with various medical 
facilities. The purpose of the Medical Alliance is to develop 
a network of health care providers to support the missions 
of MU Health Care and provide medical services to the 
community. The Capital Region Medical Center (“CRMC”) in 
Jefferson City, Missouri, operates as an affiliate of the 
Medical Alliance and provides inpatient, outpatient, and 
emergency care services to the surrounding community. 
CRMC, a not-for-profit corporation that follows generally 
accepted accounting principles under the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), is a subsidiary of the 
Medical Alliance. The University is not liable for the debts 
of CRMC.  The University appoints the Board of Directors of 
the Medical Alliance and can impose its will on the 
organization. Separately audited financial statements for 
the Medical Alliance are not available. Combining financial 
statements for these funds are presented in Note 15. 
 
Columbia Surgical Services (CSS) is considered a component 
unit of the University according to the criteria in GASB No. 
61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus (an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34), and is 
presented as a blended component unit in the University’s 
financial statements in accordance to GASB Statement No. 
80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units.  
CSS is a not-for-profit corporation in which the University is 
the sole member.  CSS provides general surgery and surgical 
sub-specialties with the purpose to promote clinical 
integration of medical services with MU Health Care and 
the community.  CSS follows generally accepted accounting 
principles under the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”). The University appoints the Board of Directors of 
CSS and can impose its will on the organization. Separately 
audited financial statements for CSS are not available.  
Combining financial statements for these funds are 
presented in Note 15. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  

   
 

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-72 February 8, 2024



Columbia Family Medical Services (CFMS) is considered a 
component unit of the University according to the criteria 
in GASB No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus (an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34), and is 
presented as a blended component unit in the University’s 
financial statements in accordance to GASB Statement No. 
80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units.  
CFMS is a not-for-profit corporation in which the University 
is the sole member.  CFMS provides family and community 
medical services with the purpose to improve patient 
access and quality.  CFMS is a public benefit corporation 
formed with the Curators of the University of Missouri as 
the sole member.  CFMS follows generally accepted 
accounting principles under the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (“FASB”). The University appoints the 
Board of Directors of CFMS and can impose its will on the 
organization. Separately audited financial statements for 
CFMS are not available.  Combining financial statements are 
presented in Note 15. 
 
The Missouri Renewable Energy Corporation (MREC) is 
considered a component unit of the University, for financial 
reporting purposes, according to the criteria in GASB 
Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus 
(an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34), 
and is included in the University’s financial statements using 
the blended method.  MREC is a for-profit corporation, and 
the University holds the majority equity interest.  MREC 
provides green energy facilities exclusively to the 
University. At June 30, 2022, MREC dissolved and equity 
was transferred to the University. Separately audited 
financial statements for MREC are not available.   
Combining financial statements are presented in Note 15. 
 
The Kummer Institute Foundation is considered a 
component unit of the University according to the criteria 
in GASB No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus (an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34) and is 
presented as a discrete component unit in the University’s 
financial statements.  The Foundation is a 509(a)(3) 
supporting organization that promotes education on the 
Missouri Science and Technology campus with a focus in 
science, technology, engineering and mathematics as well 
as promoting research and economic development within 

the state.  The Foundation is a legally separate entity that 
elects its own board members and is independently 
managed.  The University determined that the Foundation 
was misleading to exclude from its financial statements due 
to the size of the gifts held by the Foundation for the benefit 
of the University. The financial statements presented for 
the Kummer Institute Foundation are as of December 31, 
2022 and 2021.  Financial statements for the Kummer 
Institute Foundation are available at the Missouri University 
of Science and Technology.   
 
Fiduciary Financial Statements - The University operates 
the University of Missouri Retirement, Disability, and Death 
Benefit Plan (the “Retirement Plan”) and the University of 
Missouri Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (the “OPEB 
Plan”), which collectively with the Retirement Plan 
represent the “Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust 
Funds”, which are single employer, defined benefit plans.  
The assets of the Retirement Plan and OPEB Plan are held 
in the Retirement Trust and OPEB Trust, respectively.  The 
Retirement Plan and OPEB Plan are considered Fiduciary 
Component Units of the University in accordance with GASB 
84, Fiduciary Activities, as the plans are administered 
through a trust and the University serves as the governing 
board for the plans. 
 
The University reports Custodial Funds on the Statement of 
Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in 
Fiduciary Net Position.  Activities that are reported as 
custodial consist of assets held by the University for 
organizations that are outside of the University’s reporting 
entity, are not derived from University revenues, and are 
held for the benefit of the outside organizations.   
 
Financial Statement Presentation – University follows all 
applicable GASB pronouncements.  Pursuant to GASB 
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statement-and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for Public Colleges 
and Universities, the University’s activities are considered 
to be a single business-type activity and accordingly, are 
reported in a single column in the financial statements. 
Business-type activities are those that are financed in whole 
or part by funds received by external parties for goods or 
services.
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Basis of Accounting – The University’s financial statements 
have been prepared using the economic resource 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  
Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recorded when an obligation has 
been incurred, regardless of the timing of cash flows. 
 
On the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position, the University defines operating activities as 
those generally resulting from an exchange transaction. 
Nearly all of the University’s expenses are from exchange 
transactions, which involve the exchange of equivalent 
values such as payments for goods or services.  Non-
operating revenues or expenses are those in which the 
University receives or gives value without directly giving or 
receiving equal value, such as State and Federal 
appropriations, Federal Pell grants, private gifts, and 
investment income.  
 
The financial statements for the Pension Trust Funds have 
been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable. 
Investments are reported at fair value. Combining financial 
statements for these funds are presented in Note 17. 
 
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments – Cash and cash 
equivalents consist of the University’s bank deposits, 
repurchase agreements, money market funds, and other 
investments with original maturities of three months or 
less.  Investment assets are carried at fair value with the 
exception of certain commingled funds and nonmarketable 
alternative investments, which are recorded at net asset 
value. Purchases and sales of investments are accounted for 
on the trade date basis.  Investment settlements receivable 
and investment settlements payable represent investment 
transactions occurring on or before June 30, which settle 
after that date.  Investment income is recorded on the 
accrual basis.  Net unrealized gains (losses) are included in 
investment and endowment income in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
 
 
 

Nonmarketable alternative investments and certain 
commingled funds are recorded based on valuations 
provided by the general partners of the respective 
partnerships.  The University believes that the carrying 
value of these investments is a reasonable estimate of fair 
value.  Because alternative investments are not readily 
marketable, the estimated value is subject to uncertainty 
and therefore may differ materially from the value that 
would have been used had a ready market for investments 
existed. 
 
Derivative instruments such as forward foreign currency 
contracts are recorded at fair value.  The University enters 
into forward foreign currency contracts to reduce the 
foreign exchange rate exposure of its international 
investments.  These contracts are marked to market, with 
the changes in market value being reported in investment 
and endowment income on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
 
Pledges Receivable – The University receives unconditional 
promises to give through private donations (pledges) from 
corporations, alumni and various other supporters of the 
University.  Revenue is recognized when a pledge is 
received and all eligibility requirements, including time 
requirements, are met.  These pledges have been recorded 
as pledges receivable on the Statement of Net Position and 
as private or capital gift revenues on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, at the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows.  The rate 
used to discount the present value is based on the seven- 
year treasury bill rate as of June 30 of each fiscal year.   For 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the 
University used a discount rate of 3.97% and 3.04%, 
respectively. An allowance of $21,033,000 and $25,466,000 
as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, has been made 
for uncollectible pledges based upon management’s 
expectations regarding the collection of the pledges and the 
University’s historical collection experience. 
 
Inventories – These assets are stated at the lower of cost or 
market.  Cost is determined on an average cost basis except 
for MU Health Care’s inventories, for which cost is 
determined using the first-in, first-out method.
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Capital, Lease and Subscription Assets – If purchased, 
capital assets are carried at cost or, if donated, at 
acquisition value at the date of gift.  The University 
capitalizes assets with useful lives greater than one year and 
acquisition cost greater than or equal to $5,000.  
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line 
method over the assets’ estimated useful lives – generally 
ten to forty years for buildings and improvements, eight to 
twenty-five years for infrastructure, three to fifteen years 
for equipment and twenty years for library materials.  
American Hospital Association useful life guidelines are 
followed for capital assets that are medical in nature.  
Assets utilized through lease or subscription obligations are 
amortized on the straight-line basis over the shorter period 
of the lease or subscription term or the estimated useful life 
of the asset. The University capitalizes works of art, as these 
collections generally consist of historical artifacts and 
artworks, they are considered inexhaustible and not subject 
to depreciation.   
 
The University does not capitalize collections of historical 
treasures held for public exhibition, education, research, 
and public service.  These collections are not disposed of for 
financial gain and, accordingly, are not capitalized for 
financial statement purposes.  Proceeds from the sale, 
exchange, or other disposal of such items must be used to 
acquire additional items for the same collection.  Land is 
considered inexhaustible and is not subject to depreciation.  
 
The University evaluates capital and lease assets for 
impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate a 
significant, unexpected decline in the service utility of a 
capital or lease asset has occurred.  If a capital or leased 
asset is tested for impairment and the magnitude of the 
decline in service utility is significant and unexpected, the 
value of that asset is decreased in the amount of the 
impairment loss. No asset impairment was recognized 
during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.   
 
 
 

Deferred Outflows of Resources – The University reports 
the consumption of net position that relates to future 
reporting periods as deferred outflows of resources in a 
separate section of the Statements of Net Position. 
 
Unearned Revenue – Unearned revenues are recognized 
for amounts received prior to the end of the fiscal year but 
related to the subsequent period, including certain tuition, 
fees, and auxiliary revenues.  Unearned revenues also 
include grant and contract amounts that have been 
received but not yet earned.  Noncurrent unearned revenue 
relates to amounts received for capital projects or for the 
portion of multi-year grant funding related to future years. 
 
Compensated Absences – Compensated absences include 
accumulated unpaid vacation and compensatory time 
accrued as well as related employer payroll taxes.  An 
expense and related liability are recognized as vacation and 
compensatory benefits are earned.  Sick leave benefits 
expected to be realized as paid time off are recognized as 
expense when the time off occurs and no liability is accrued 
for such benefits employees have earned but not yet 
realized. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources – The University reports the 
acquisition of net position that relates to future reporting 
periods as deferred inflows of resources in a separate 
section of the Statements of Net Position. 
 
Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits – Pension 
and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) related items, 
including: net pension liability and net OPEB liability, 
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, net pension expense and net OPEB expense, 
fiduciary net assets, additions to and deductions from 
fiduciary net assets have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by the respective pension and 
OPEB plans.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value.
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Net Position – The University’s net position is classified as 
follows: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets represents capital, lease, 
and subscription assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and amortization, and less lease and subscription liabilities 
and outstanding principal debt balances related to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 
 
Restricted Nonexpendable net position is subject to 
externally imposed stipulations that the principal be 
maintained in perpetuity, such as the University’s 
permanent endowment funds. The University’s policy 
permits any realized and unrealized appreciation to remain 
with these endowments after the spending distribution 
discussed in Note 3.  
 
Restricted Expendable net position is subject to externally 
imposed stipulations on the University’s use of the 
resources. 
 
Unrestricted net position is not subject to externally 
imposed stipulations, but may be designated for specific 
purposes by the University’s management or the Board of 
Curators.  Unrestricted net position is derived from tuition 
and fees, sales and services, unrestricted gifts, investment 
income, and other such sources, and are used for academics 
and the general operation of the University.  When both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for 
expenditure, the University’s policy is to first apply 
restricted resources, and then the unrestricted resources. 

Medical Alliance, CSS, CFMS, and the Kummer Institute 
Foundation, as not-for-profit organizations, record net 
position in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Accounting Standards Codification 958-205, Not-for-
Profit Entities Presentation of Financial Statements.  For 
presentation within the University’s accompanying basic 
financial statements, the net position is redistributed 
amongst the net position components defined by GASB 
Statement No. 63.   
 
Tuition and Fees, Net of Scholarship Allowances – Student 
tuition and fees, housing, dining, and other similar auxiliary 
revenues are reported net of any related scholarships and 
fellowships applied to student accounts. However, 
scholarships and fellowships paid directly to students are 
separately reported as scholarship and fellowship 
expenses.   
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Patient Medical Services, Net – Patient medical services are 
primarily provided through University of Missouri Hospitals 
and Clinics, Ellis Fischel Cancer Research Center, Women’s 
and Children’s Hospital, University Physicians, and the 
Medical Alliance.  The University has agreements with third-
party payors that provide for payments at amounts 
different from established rates. Payment arrangements 
include prospectively determined rates per discharge, 
reimbursed costs, discount charges, and per diem 
payments. Net patient service revenue is reported at the 
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party 
payors, and others for services rendered, including 
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement 
agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive 
adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the 
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in 
future periods as estimates are refined and final 
settlements are determined. Net patient service revenue is 
also shown net of estimated uncollectible accounts.  
 
Amounts receivable under Medicare and Tricare/Champus 
reimbursement agreements are subject to examination and 
certain retroactive adjustments by the related programs. 
These adjustments increased net patient services revenues 
by $10,707,000 and $3,069,000 for the years ended June 
30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
The Medicaid program reimburses inpatient services on a 
prospective established per diem rate. The Medicaid 
program reimburses outpatient services under a 
combination of prospective and fee schedule amounts.  For 
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the MU Health 
Care’s percentage of gross patient accounts receivable 
classified by major payor is as follows: 
 

2023 2022
Medicare 31% 32%
Medicaid 24% 20%
Managed Care/Commercial 35% 37%
Other Government 6% 7%
Self Pay 4% 4%

100% 100%

Table 1.1 - Percentage of Gross Patient 
  Accounts Receivable (by Major Payor)

 

Patient services revenue includes the State of Missouri 
Federal Reimbursement Allowance Program (FRA Program) 
for uncompensated care. MU Health Care recognizes FRA 
Program revenue in the period earned. 
 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position reflect the gross to net patient medical services 
revenue as follows: 
 

2023 2022
Patient Medical Services

Revenue, Gross 5,639,472$     5,126,342$    
Deductions for Contractuals (3,680,473)         (3,294,840)        
Deductions for Bad Debt (52,952)              (97,887)             
Patient Medical Services

Revenue, Net 1,906,047$        1,733,615$       

Table 1.2 - Gross to Net Patient Medical 
  Services Revenue (in thousands)

 
 
Uncompensated Care - The University provides some 
services to patients without regard to their ability to pay for 
those services.  For some of its patient services, the 
University receives no payment or payment that is less than 
the full cost of providing the services.   
 
The estimated costs of providing these services are as 
follows: 
 

2023 2022
Cost of Charity Care 17,293$      24,346$     
Unreimbursed cost under state 

and local government assistance
programs, net of Medicaid
disproportionate share funding,
less Medicaid provider taxes 70,945     41,182    

Cost of uncollectible accounts 19,741        29,698       
Total Uncompensated Care 107,979$    95,226$     

Table 1.3 - Uncompensated Care 
  Revenue (in thousands)
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New Accounting Pronouncements – Effective for fiscal year 
2023, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 91, 
Conduit Debt Obligations, which provides a single method 
of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers. As a result 
of the adoption of this statement, there was no impact to 
the University’s financial statements. 
 
Effective for fiscal year 2023, the University adopted GASB 
Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public 
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, 
which addresses issues with public-private and public-
public (PPP) arrangements.  The University has adopted the 
standard and there was no significant impact on the 
University’s financial statements. 
 
Effective for fiscal year 2023, the University adopted GASB 
Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information 
Technology Arrangements, which provides accounting and 
financial reporting guidance for subscription-based 
information technology arrangements. These 
arrangements would require the recognition of a right-to-
use asset and corresponding subscription liability, which 
would be amortized as interest expense over the term of 
the arrangement.  The adoption of this statement in fiscal 
year 2023 resulted in the recognition of approximately 
$76,118,000 of subscription-based information technology 
(SBITA) assets and liabilities as of July 1, 2021 on the 
Statement of Net Position. As of June 30, 2022, there were 
SBITA assets of $70,269,000 and SBITA liabilities of 
$70,250,000 that were not previously recognized on the 
Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for fiscal year 2022 
included increases in interest expense of $2,202,000, 
amortization of $13,497,000, a reduction supplies, services 
and other of $15,718,000.  There was no impact to net 
position as of July 1, 2021. 
 
In March 2020, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 93, 
Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, which removes 
LIBOR as a benchmark for interest rates.  This statement is 
in response to the global reference rate reform that is 
expected to cause LIBOR to cease to exist.  The University 
will adopt this statement in fiscal year 2024 and has not fully 
determined the impact of implementing GASB Statement 
No. 93 will have on its financial statements. 

In April 2022, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 99, 
Omnibus 2022, which was issued to enhance comparability 
in accounting and financial reporting in various areas 
including derivatives, leases, public-private and public-
public partnerships, subscription-based information 
technology arrangements, as well as others.  The University 
will adopt this statement in line with the dates as outlined 
in the standard, which varies depending on the applicable 
paragraph beginning in fiscal year 2022 through fiscal year 
2024.  The University has not fully determined the impact 
of implementing GASB Statement No. 99 will have on its 
financial statements. 
 
In June 2022, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 100, 
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which 
prescribes the accounting and reporting for each type of 
accounting change and error corrections to provide more 
understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and 
comparable information for making decisions or assessing 
accountability.  The University will adopt this standard in 
fiscal year 2024 and has not fully determined the impact of 
implementing GASB Statement No. 100. 
 
In June 2022, GASB issued GASB Statement No. 101, 
Compensated Absences, which aligns the recognition and 
measurement guidance for compensated absences to a 
unified model.  The standard is effective for fiscal year 2025 
and the University has not fully determined the impact of 
implementing GASB Statement No. 101. 
 
Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements, 
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
Reclassifications – Certain reclassifications have been made 
to prior year amounts in the notes to the financial 
statements related to investments groupings in note 3 and 
investment fair value valuations in note 4.  The 
reclassifications did not have an impact to the financial 
statement line items. 
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2.   CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – The custodial credit risk for deposits 
is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the University’s 
deposits may not be recovered. State law requires 
collateralization of all deposits with federal depository 
insurance, bonds and other obligations of the U.S. Treasury, 
U.S. Agencies and instrumentalities of the State of Missouri; 
bonds of any city, county, school district or special road 
district of the State of Missouri; bonds of any state; or a 
surety bond having an aggregate value at least equal to the 
amount of the deposits.  All cash deposits were fully insured 
or collateralized as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
3.  INVESTMENTS 
 
Investment policies are established by the Board of 
Curators (“the Board”).  The policies ensure that funds are 
managed in accordance with Section 105.688 of the Revised 
Statutes of Missouri and prudent investment practices.  
Additionally, investment policies established by the Board 
with respect to the Retirement Trust and Other 
Postemployment Benefit (“OPEB”) Trust (collectively 
referred to as “Pension Trust Funds”) and the Endowment 
Funds specifically recognize the fiduciary duties set forth in 
Section 105.688 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri.  The 
use of external investment managers has been authorized 
by the Board.

Substantially all University cash and investments are 
managed centrally, generally in the following investment 
pools: 
 
General Pool – General Pool contains short-term University 
funds, including but not limited to cash and reserves, 
operating funds, bond funds, and plant funds.  Subject to 
various limitations contained within the corresponding 
investment policy, the University’s internally managed 
component of the General Pool may be invested in the 
following instruments:  U.S. Government securities; U.S. 
Government Agency securities; U.S. Government 
guaranteed securities; money market funds; certificates of 
deposit; repurchase agreements; real estate, commercial 
paper; and other similar short-term investment 
instruments of like or better quality.  The externally 
managed component of the General Pool is allowed to 
invest in the following asset sectors: fixed income, private 
debt, absolute return and risk balanced strategies.  The 
General Pool’s total return, including unrealized gains and 
losses, was 3.2% and (2.7%) for the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
General Pool assets that are held in Custodial Funds are 
reported as Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pooled 
Investments on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.  
The assets held in Custodial funds are for the benefit of 
outside organizations and are not separately reported in 
the notes to the financial statements.  Custodial funds earn 
a set rate on the cash balance held in the General Pool and 
are not subjected to the pool’s investment market volatility. 
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Endowment Funds – When appropriate and permissible, 
endowment and similar funds are pooled for investment 
purposes, with the objective of achieving long-term returns 
sufficient to preserve principal by protecting against 
inflation and to meet endowment spending targets. 
 
The Endowment Pool, which is externally managed, is the 
primary investment vehicle for endowment funds.  Subject 
to various limitations contained within the corresponding 
investment policy, the Endowment Pool is allowed to invest 
in the following asset sectors: global equity, absolute return 
strategies, private equity, real estate, sovereign bonds, 
private debt, commodities, global inflation-linked bonds, 
and risk balanced strategies. The Endowment Pool’s total 
return, including unrealized gains and losses, was 4.1% and 
(0.7%) for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 
 
If a donor has not provided specific restrictions, state law 
permits the Board to appropriate an amount of the 
Endowment Funds’ net appreciation, realized and 
unrealized, as the Board considers to be prudent.  In 
establishing this amount, the Board is required to consider 
the University’s long- and short-term needs, present and 
anticipated financial requirements, expected total return 
on investments, price level trends, and general economic 
conditions.  Further, any expenditure of net appreciation is 
required to be for the purposes for which the endowment 
was established.  Inclusive of both realized and unrealized 
gains and losses on investments, donor-restricted 
endowments experienced net appreciation (depreciation) 
of approximately $102,311,000 and ($168,343,000) in fiscal 
years 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

The Board has adopted the total return concept (yield plus 
change in market value) in determining the spendable 
return for endowments and similar funds.  The spending 
formula was revised in fiscal year 2018 to distribute 4.0% of 
a trailing 28-quarter average of the endowment’s total 
market value as of December 31st of the prior fiscal year, 
with the understanding that this spending rate over the 
long term should not exceed the total real return (net of 
inflation).  
 
The transition from 4.5% to 4.0% distribution was phased in 
between FY18 and FY23 to avoid a year over year decrease 
in distributions.  In addition, the University distributes 
1.25% of the trailing 28-quarter average of the 
endowment's total market value to support internal 
endowment and development administration. 
 
Endowment Pool assets that are held in Custodial Funds are 
reported as Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pooled 
Investments on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.  
The assets held in Custodial funds are for the benefit of 
outside organizations and are not separately reported in 
the notes to the financial statements.  Custodial funds earn 
a set rate on the cash balance held in the Endowment Pool 
and are not subjected to the pool’s investment market 
volatility.   
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PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS 
 
The Retirement Trust and the OPEB Trust hold the assets of 
the Retirement Plan and OPEB Plan, respectively.  Subject 
to various limitations contained within the corresponding 
investment policy, the externally-managed Retirement 
Trust is allowed to invest in the following asset sectors:  
global equity, absolute return strategies, private equity, 
real estate, sovereign bonds, private debt, commodities, 
global inflation-linked bonds, and risk balanced strategies.   
The Retirement Trust’s total return, including unrealized 
gains and losses, was 3.9% and (1.8%) for the years ended 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  The Retirement Trust 
held $4,277,264,000 and $4,286,149,000 of net position at 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 

The OPEB Trust held $42,410,000 and $39,922,000 of net 
position at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  Subject to 
various limitations contained within the corresponding 
investment policy, the externally-managed OPEB Trust is 
allowed to invest in the following asset sectors: global fixed 
income, global equity, and absolute return strategies. 
 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 
 
The Kummer Institute Foundation invests in various 
investment securities through mutual funds and exchange-
traded funds.  Investment securities are exposed to a level 
of various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks.  
The amount held as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was 
$331,940,000 and $428,913,000, respectively.  
 

Table 3.1 - Investments by Type (in thousands)

University of Missouri
Pension and OPEB Trust Funds

As of June 30, 2023 2022 2023 2022
Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasury Obligations 410,477$         515,222$       (2,825)$          (2,488)$             
U.S. Agency Obligations 2,171               2,418             -                 -                    
Asset-Backed Securities 75,341             306,036         -                 69,282              
Government - Foreign 452,127           12,499           -                 (287)                  
Corporate - Domestic 25,822             92,165           -                 9,000                
Corporate - Foreign 2,110               2,432             80                  (332)                  

Equity Securities:
Domestic 128,910           94,268           143,241         110,442            
Foreign 116,393           76,791           262,347         118,188            

Commingled Funds:
Absolute Return 595,938           475,867         955,700         1,037,969         
Risk Balanced 748,469           640,860         596,702         379,198            
Debt Securities - Domestic 589,545           795,951         -                 96,733              
Equity Securities - Domestic 33,459             49,614           30,742           237,432            
Equity Securities - Foreign 39,511             14,384           69,825           -                    
Equity Securities - Global 259,790           296,628         534,319         232,109            
Real Estate 31,177             33,717           49,514           12,904              
Commodities 8,180               -                 19,086           -                    

Nonmarketable Alternative Investments:
Real Estate 158,063           121,525         398,139         1,008,779         
Private Equity/Debt 821,354           825,800         759,055         280,738            

Other 365,551           300,722         -                 -                    
Total Investments 4,864,388        4,656,899      3,815,925      3,589,667         

Money Market Funds 703,157           685,341         482,011         538,077            
Other 19,739             170,089         27,704           232,080            

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 722,896           855,430         509,715         770,157            
Total Investments and Cash and

Cash Equivalents 5,587,284$      5,512,329$    4,325,640$    4,359,824$       
Less: Custodial Funds Held for Others (96,473)            (94,441)          -                 -                    
Total University Funds Investments and Cash

 and Cash Equivalents 5,490,811$      5,417,888$    4,325,640$    4,359,824$       

University of Missouri
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Custodial Credit Risk - For investments, custodial credit risk 
is the risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty to 
a transaction, the University will not be able to recover the 
value of the investments held by an outside party.  In 
accordance with its policy, the University minimizes 
custodial credit risk by establishing limitations on the types 

of instruments held with qualifying institutions.  
Repurchase agreements must be collateralized by U.S. 
Government issues and/or U.S. Government Agency issues.  
All University and Pension Trust Fund investments are 
insured or registered and are held by the University, the 
Pension Trust Funds or an agent in its name.
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Concentration of Credit Risk – Concentration of credit risk 
is the risk associated with a lack of diversification, such as 
having substantial investments in a few individual issuers, 
thereby exposing the organization to greater risks resulting 
from adverse economic, political, regulatory, geographic or 
credit developments.  The investment policies for the 
General Pool, Endowment Funds, and Retirement Trust all 
specify diversification requirements across asset sectors. As 
of June 30, 2023 and 2022, of the University’s total 
investments and cash and cash equivalents were 7.3% and 
9.3%, respectively, in issues of U.S. Treasury Notes.  As of 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Pension Trust Fund’s total 
investments and cash and cash equivalents were (0.1%) and 
(0.1%), respectively, in issues U.S. Treasury Notes.   
 
Investments issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, 
as well as investments in mutual funds and other pooled 
investments are excluded from consideration when 
evaluating concentration risk.   
 
Credit Risk – Debt securities are subject to credit risk, which 
is the chance that an issuer will fail to pay interest or 
principal in a timely manner, or that negative perceptions 
of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause 
security prices to decline.  These circumstances may arise 
due to a variety of factors such as financial weakness, 
bankruptcy, litigation and/or adverse political 
developments. Certain debt securities, primarily obligations 
of the U.S. government or those explicitly guaranteed by 
the U.S. government, are not considered to have credit risk.  

Nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, such 
as Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s (S&P) assign credit 
ratings to security issues and issuers that indicate a 
measure of potential credit risk to investors.  Debt 
securities considered investment grade are those rated at 
least Baa by Moody’s and BBB by S&P.  For General Pool 
investments, the following minimum credit ratings have 
been established to manage credit risk with minimum 
rating of A-1/P-1 for commercial paper and other short-
term securities.  For Endowment Funds and Retirement 
Trust investments, guidelines for respective investment 
managers allow for a blend of different credit ratings, 
subject to certain restrictions by asset sector.  In all cases, 
disposition of securities whose ratings have been 
downgraded after purchase is generally left to the 
discretion of the respective investment manager after 
consideration of individual facts and circumstances. 
 
All holdings of money market funds were rated AAA at June 
30, 2023 and 2022. 
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Based on investment ratings provided by Moody’s or S&P, the University’s and Pension Trust Funds’ credit risk exposure as of 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, is as follows: 

Table 3.2 - Debt Securities by Type and Credit Rating (in thousands)

As of June 30, 2023 2022 2023 2022
U.S. Treasury Obligations 410,477$         515,222$       (2,825)$            (2,488)$             
U.S. Agency Obligations 2,171               2,418             -                   -                    
Asset-Backed Securities

Mortgage Backed Securities Guaranteed
   by U.S. Agencies 10,418             66,879           -                   (10,412)             
Aaa/AAA 30,130             56,438           -                   37,725               
Aa/AA 3,477               12,456           -                   12,543               
A/A 300                  2,977             -                   593                    
Baa/BBB 662                  5,905             -                   -                    
Ba/BB and lower 24,244             81,614           -                   581                    
Unrated 6,110               79,767           -                   28,252               

Government - Foreign
Aaa/AAA -                   (143)               -                   (287)                  
Aa/AA -                   719                -                   -                    
A/A -                   -                 -                   -                    
Baa/BBB -                   3,026             -                   -                    
Ba/BB and lower 1,036               8,897             -                   -                    
Unrated 451,091           -                 -                   -                    

Corporate - Domestic
Aaa/AAA 985                  1,484             -                   1,627                 
Aa/AA 2,684               3,567             -                   2,556                 
A/A 4,633               18,326           -                   -                    
Baa/BBB 11,863             46,936           -                   7,239                 
Ba/BB and lower 4,506               20,637           -                   976                    
Unrated 1,151               1,215             -                   (3,398)               

Corporate - Foreign
Baa/BBB 301                  204                -                   -                    
Ba/BB and lower 1,291               2,113             -                   -                    
Unrated 518                  115                80                    (332)                  

Total 968,048$         930,772$       (2,745)$            75,175$             

University of Missouri
University of Missouri

Pension and OPEB Trust Funds

 
Interest Rate Risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes 
in interest rates over time will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment.  Debt securities with longer maturities are 
likely to be subject to more variability in their fair values as 
a result of future changes in interest rates.  Neither the 
University nor the Pension Trust Funds have a formal policy 
that addresses interest rate risk; rather, such risk is 
managed by each individual investment manager, as 

applicable. The University and Pension Trust Funds have 
investments in asset-backed securities, which consist 
primarily of mortgage-backed securities guaranteed by U.S. 
agencies and corporate collateralized mortgage obligations.  
These securities are based on cash flows from principal and 
interest payments on the underlying securities.  An asset-
backed security may have repayments that vary 
significantly with changes in market interest rates. 

  

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-84 February 8, 2024



Table 3.3 presents the modified durations of the University’s and Pension Trust Funds’ debt securities as of June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively: 
 

As of June 30,
U.S. Treasury Obligations 410,477$         5.6                   515,222$                 6.3                  
U.S. Agency Obligations 2,171               5.7                   2,418                       4.9                  
Asset-Backed Securities 75,341             3.0                   306,036                   2.8                  
Government - Foreign 452,127           2.5                   12,499                     6.5                  
Corporate - Domestic 25,822             5.8                   92,165                     6.1                  
Corporate - Foreign 2,110               4.6                   2,432                       0.9                  
    Total Debt Securities 968,048$         4.0                   930,772$                 5.1                  

As of June 30,
U.S. Treasury Obligations (2,825)$            4.8                   (2,488)$                    6.8                  
Asset-Backed Securities -                   -                   69,282                     2.0                  
Government - Foreign -                   -                   (287)                         7.3                  
Corporate - Domestic -                   -                   9,000                       5.6                  
Corporate - Foreign 80                    -                   (332)                         -                  
    Total Debt Securities (2,745)$            4.9                   75,175$                   2.3                  

University of Missouri
Duration (in years)

2023 2022

2023 2022

Table 3.3 - Debt Securities by Type and Modified Duration (in thousands)

University of Missouri Pension and OPEB Trust
Duration (in years)

 
 
Foreign Exchange Risk – Foreign exchange risk is the risk 
that investments denominated in foreign currencies may 
lose value due to adverse fluctuations in the value of the 
U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies. 
 
University and Retirement Trust investment policies allow 
for exposure to non-U.S. dollar denominated equities and 
fixed income securities, which may be fully or partially 
hedged using forward foreign currency exchange contracts. 
 
Forward foreign currency contracts are typically used to 
manage the risks related to fluctuations in currency 
exchange rates between the time of purchase or sale and 

the actual settlement of foreign securities.  Various 
investment managers acting on behalf of the University 
may use forward foreign exchange contracts in risk-based 
transactions to carry out their portfolio strategies, subject 
to investment management agreement guidelines. 
 
At June 30, 2023 and 2022, 15.2% and 7.1%, respectively, of 
the University’s total investments and cash and cash 
equivalents were denominated in foreign currencies. At 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, 16.0% and 7.7%, respectively, of 
the Pension Trust Funds’ total investments and cash 
equivalents were denominated in foreign currencies.
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The University’s and Pension Trust Funds’ exposure to foreign exchange risk as of June 30, 2023 and 2022: 

As of June 30, 2023 2022 2023 2022
Debt Securities

British Pound Sterling 1,037               4,920           -                    896                
Canadian Dollar -                       (143)             -                    (287)               
 Danish Krone -                       563              -                    1,627             
Euro 5,864               16,765         80                      14,870           
Japanese Yen 451,091           -                   -                        -                 
Peruvian Nuevo Sol -                       2,358           -                        -                     
South African Rand -                       6,155           -                        -                     
Other -                       128              -                        -                     

457,992           30,746         80                      17,106           
Equity Securities

Australian Dollar 331                  720              619                    1,349             
Brazil Real 1,067               1,380           2,107                 2,619             
British Pound Sterling 6,896               7,205           13,643               13,951           
Canadian Dollar 1,732               2,457           3,564                 4,583             
Danish Krone 1,897               1,880           3,794                 3,711             
Euro 10,743             10,858         21,093               20,887           
Hong Kong Dollar 5,103               6,347           10,088               12,260           
Japanese Yen 7,112               6,558           13,954               12,530           
Norwegian Krone 894                  1,362           1,723                 2,588             
South African Rand 323                  305              645                    501                
South Korean Won 790                  158              1,528                 296                
Swedish Krona 2,061               1,966           4,059                 3,778             
Swiss Franc 1,313               1,313           2,545                 2,502             
Other 2,957               2,109           5,626                 4,302             

43,219             44,618         84,988               85,857           
Commingled Funds

Various currency denominations:
Equity Securities - Global 259,790           296,628       534,319             232,109         
Equity Securities - Foreign 39,511             14,384         69,825               -                 

299,301           311,012       604,144             232,109         
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Argentine Peso 380                  781              -                    -                 
Australian Dollar 2                      135              -                    262                
Brazil Real 47                    (862)             (32)                    -                 
British Pound Sterling 118                  892              273                    854                
Canadian Dollar 186                  279              242                    (204)               
Euro 195                  1,097           272                    1,196             
Japanese Yen 46,825             (91)               46                      (169)               
Mexican Peso -                   34                -                    28                  
South African Rand 1                      188              -                    37                  
Other 318                  295              109                    266                

48,072             2,748           910                    2,270             
 Total Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk 848,584$         389,124$     690,122$           337,342$       

University of Missouri
University of Missouri

Pension and OPEB Trust Funds

Table 3.4 - Foreign Exchange Risk (in thousands)
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Commingled Funds - Includes Securities and Exchange 
Commission regulated mutual funds and externally 
managed funds, limited partnerships, and corporate 
structures which are generally unrated and unregulated. 
Certain commingled funds may use derivative instruments, 
short positions and leverage as part of their investment 
strategy. These investments are structured to limit risk 
exposure to the amount of invested capital. Commingled 
funds have liquidity (redemption) provisions, which enable 
the University and Pension Trust Funds to make full or 
partial withdrawals with notice, subject to restrictions on 
the timing and amount. 
 
Nonmarketable Alternative Investments - Consists of 
limited partnerships involving an advance commitment of 
capital called by the general partner as needed and 
distributions of capital and return on invested capital as 
underlying strategies are concluded during the life of the 
partnership.  The committed but unpaid obligation to these 
limited partnerships is disclosed in Note 4. 
 
Portable Alpha Program - Included in the University’s 
investment policy is a Portable Alpha Program in which 
synthetic market exposures across asset classes including 
equities, sovereign bonds, inflation-linked bonds and 
commodities may be obtained through derivative 
instruments commonly accepted by other institutional 
investors, such as futures, swaps, options, forward 
contracts and reverse repurchase agreements. These 
derivative instruments are managed by external investment 
firms with appropriate expertise, experience and depth of 
resources. 
 
When synthetic market exposures are obtained through 
derivative instruments, a portion of the resulting cash and 
cash equivalent balances may be invested by active alpha 
managers seeking to add returns over the benchmark. 
These alpha managers will possess broadly diverse 
strategies/styles and, in the aggregate, are expected to 
produce returns that show little or no relationship to the 
economic environment being experienced at any given 
time.  Furthermore, this portfolio of managers will be 
constructed with a goal of low correlation to the synthetic 
market exposures obtained through the derivative 
instruments.  
 
 
 
 

The allowable range of the portable alpha portfolio for both 
the Endowment Pool and Pension Trust Funds shall be 0-
27% of the total investment of the respective pools. As of 
June 30, 2023, the portable alpha portfolio was 22.2% and 
24.2% for the Endowment Pool and Pension Trust Funds, 
respectively. 
 
Management of liquidity risk is a critical component of the 
portable alpha program.  If not managed appropriately, 
there is a risk that synthetic market exposures may need to 
be unwound at undesirable points in time in order to meet 
margin calls during volatile markets.  To help mitigate this 
risk, prudent balances of cash and cash equivalents shall be 
maintained as part of the program and monitored daily. The 
cash margin target set by the Endowment Pool and Pension 
Trust Funds are 30%. In the case the margin drops below 
30%, management has implemented guidelines to 
replenish the cash margin back to the target. As of June 30, 
2023, the cash margin for the Endowment Pool and Pension 
Trust Funds were above the targeted margin of 30%.  
 
Securities Lending Transactions – The University and 
Pension Trust Funds each participate in an external 
investment pool securities lending program to augment 
income. The program is administered by the custodial agent 
bank, which lends equity, government and corporate 
securities for a predetermined period of time to an 
independent broker/dealer (borrower) in exchange for 
collateral. Collateral may be cash, U.S. Government 
securities, defined letters of credit or other collateral 
approved by the University or Pension Trust Funds.  Loaned 
domestic securities are initially collateralized at 102% of 
their fair value, while loaned international securities are 
collateralized at 105% of fair value. Exposure to credit risk 
from borrower default has been minimized by having the 
custodial agent bank determine daily that required 
collateral meets a minimum of 102% of the fair value of 
loaned domestic securities and 105% for loaned 
international securities. 
 
For the University, at June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were a 
total of $19,076,000 and $15,642,000, respectively, of 
securities out on loan to borrowers. The value of collateral 
received from the borrower for these securities consisted 
of $787,000 and $4,477,000 cash at June 30, 2023 and June 
30, 2022, respectively, and $18,773,000 and $11,960,000 
noncash collateral at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, 
respectively. 
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For the Pension Trust Funds, at June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
there was a total of $31,831,000 and $37,849,000 of 
securities out on loan to borrowers. The value of collateral 
received from the borrower for these securities consisted 
of $18,392,000 and $31,802,000 in cash and $14,418,000 
and $7,853,000 noncash collateral at June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively. 
 
Cash collateral received from the borrower is invested by 
the custodial agent bank in commingled collateral 
investment pools in the name of the University and Pension 
Trust Funds, with guidelines approved by each. The cash 
collateral received is shown as Investment of Cash 
Collateral in the Statement of Net Position and Statement 
of Fiduciary Net Position and reported at fair value, with 
changes in market value recorded in Investment and 
Endowment Income on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position and Statement of 

Changes in Fiduciary Net Position.  Noncash collateral 
received for securities lending activities is not recorded as 
an asset because the University and Pension Trust Funds do 
not have the ability to pledge or sell such collateral unless 
the borrower defaults. 
 
The University and Pension Trust Funds continue to receive 
interest and dividends during the loan period. The  
maturities of the investments made with the cash collateral 
generally match the maturities of the securities lent. At 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, neither the University nor the 
Pension Trust Funds have any credit risk exposure arising 
from the actual securities lending transactions since the 
collateral received from the borrower exceeds the value of 
the securities lent.  Further, the University and Pension 
Trust Funds are fully indemnified by the custodial bank 
against any losses incurred as a result of borrower default.  
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4. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES 
 
The University categorizes its fair value measurements 
within the fair value hierarchy established by GASB 
Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and 
Application.  The three-tiered hierarchy for fair value is as 
follows: 

 
Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are 
unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that are available at the 
measurement date.  
 
Level 2 – Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
active markets; 

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or 
liabilities in inactive markets; 

• Inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable for the asset or liability; 

• Inputs that are derived principally from or 
corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means.  

Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are 
unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the 
University’s own assumptions about the inputs 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or 
liability (including assumption about risk). 
Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best 
information available in the circumstances and may 
include the University’s own data. 

 
 

When available, quoted prices are used to determine fair 
value. When quoted prices in active markets are available, 
investments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value 
hierarchy. The University’s Level 1 investments primarily 
consist of investments in U.S. Treasury obligations, equity 
securities, and debt securities within commingled funds. 
When quoted prices in active markets are not available, fair 
values are based on evaluated prices received from the 
University’s custodian of investments in conjunction with a 
third party service provider and are reported within Level 2 
of the fair value hierarchy.  The inputs for Level 2 include, 
but are not limited to, pricing models such as benchmarking 
yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, issuer 
spreads and benchmarking securities, among others. The 
University’s Level 2 investments primarily consist of 
investments in U.S. government and agency obligations, 
asset-backed securities, and corporate debt securities that 
did not trade on the University’s fiscal year end date.  
 
The University’s Level 3 investments primarily consist of 
land held as investments and commodities.  Certain 
investments are valued using the net asset value (NAV) per 
share (or its equivalent) and are considered “alternative 
investments” and, unlike more traditional investments, 
generally do not have readily obtainable market values and 
take the form of limited partnerships.  The University values 
these investments based on the partnerships’ audited 
financial statements.  If June 30 statements are available, 
those values are used preferentially.  However, some 
partnerships have fiscal years ending at other than June 30.  
If June 30 valuations are not available, the value is 
progressed from the most recently available valuation 
taking into account subsequent calls and distributions. 

Investments held by the Kummer Institute Foundation were 
at quoted prices in level 1. 
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At June 30, 2023, the University had the following recurring fair value measurements. 
Table 4.1 - Investments and Derivative Instruments Measured at Fair Value (in thousands)

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
As of June 30, 2023 (Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) 2022 (Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level

Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasury Obligations 410,477$         410,477$        -$                     -$                    515,222$         515,222$         -$                     -$                    
U.S. Agency Obligations 2,171               -                      2,171               -                      2,418               -                       2,418               -                      
Asset-Backed Securities 75,341             -                      75,341             -                      306,036           -                       306,036           -                      
Government 452,127           -                      452,127           -                      12,499             -                       12,499             -                      
Corporate 27,932             -                      27,932             -                      94,597             -                       94,597             -                      

Equity Securities:
Domestic 128,910           124,879          4,031               -                      94,268             106,991           (12,723)            -                      
Foreign 116,393           116,393          -                       -                      76,791             76,791             -                       -                      

Commingled Funds:
Debt Securities 373,445           373,445          -                       -                      651,680           651,680           -                       -                      
Equity Securities 3,570               -                      3,570               -                      19,538             12,098             7,440               -                      
Real Estate 1,724               1,724              -                       -                      2,376               2,376               -                       -                      

Other 359,527           -                      -                       359,527          294,269           -                       -                       294,269          
Investments measured at the 

net asset value (NAV)
Commingled Funds:

Absolute Return 595,938           -                      -                       -                      475,867           -                       -                       -                      
Risk Balanced 748,469           -                      -                       -                      640,860           -                       -                       -                      
Debt Securities 216,100           -                      -                       -                      144,271           -                       -                       -                      
Equity Securities 329,190           -                      -                       -                      341,088           -                       -                       -                      
Real Estate 29,453             -                      -                       -                      31,341             -                       -                       -                      
Commodities 8,180               -                      -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       -                      

Nonmarketable Alternative Investments:
Real Estate 158,063           -                      -                       -                      121,525           -                       -                       -                      
Private Equity/Debt 821,354           -                      -                       -                      825,800           -                       -                       -                      

Other 6,024               -                      -                       -                      6,453               -                       -                       -                      
Total investments by fair value 
level 4,864,388        1,026,918       565,172           359,527          4,656,899        1,365,158        410,267           294,269          

Interest Rate Swaps (8,454)              -                      (8,454)              -                      (16,248)            -                       (16,248)            -                      
Total Investments and Financing

Derivative Instruments 4,855,934$      1,026,918$     556,718$         359,527$        4,640,651$      1,365,158$      394,019$         294,269$        

Fair Value Measurements Using
University of Missouri

Fair Value Measurements Using
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Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
As of June 30, 2023 (Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) 2022 (Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level

Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasury Obligations (2,825)$            (2,825)$           -$                     -$                    (2,488)$            (2,488)$            -$                     -$                    
Asset-Backed Securities -                       -                      -                       -                      69,282             -                       69,282             -                      
Government -                       -                      -                       -                      (287)                 -                       (287)                 -                      
Corporate 80                    -                      80                    -                      8,668               -                       8,668               -                      

Equity Securities:
Domestic 143,241           143,241          -                       -                      110,442           130,748           (20,306)            -                      
Foreign 262,347           262,347          -                       -                      118,188           118,188           -                       -                      

Commingled Funds:
Equity Securities 8,330               -                      8,330               -                      17,360             17,360             -                       -                      

Investments measured at the 
net asset value (NAV)
Commingled Funds:

Absolute Return 955,700           -                      -                       -                      1,037,969        -                       -                       -                      
Risk Balanced 596,702           -                      -                       -                      379,198           -                       -                       -                      
Debt Securities -                       -                      -                       -                      96,733             -                       -                       -                      
Equity Securities 626,556           -                      -                       -                      452,181           -                       -                       -                      
Real Estate 49,514             -                      -                       -                      12,904             -                       -                       -                      
Commodities 19,086             -                      -                       -                      -                       -                       -                       -                      

Nonmarketable Alternative Investments:
Real Estate 398,139           -                      -                       -                      280,738           -                       -                       -                      
Private Equity 759,055           -                      -                       -                      1,008,779        -                       -                       -                      

Total investments by fair value level 3,815,925$      402,763$        8,410$             -$                    3,589,667$      263,808$         57,357$           -$                    

Fair Value Measurements Using Fair Value Measurements Using
University of Missouri Pension Trust Funds
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The following table presents investments as of June 30, 2023 that have been valued using the NAV as a practical expedient, 
classified by major investment category: category:  
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Table 4.2- Investments Measured at the NAV (in thousands)

Fair Value
Investment Strategy and Structure 

(1)
Unfunded 

Commitments Fund Term (1)
Redemption 

Terms (1)

Absolute Return 595,938$       

 Broadly diversified, traditional 
hedge fund and risk premia 
exposures obtained through 

long/short positions across global 
liquid markets, structured to 

achieve minimal equity beta with a 
lower level of volatility relative to 

the rest of the portfolio. -$                     Open Ended

 Semi-Monthly, 
Monthly, and 

Quarterly 
redemption with 
1 -45 days notice 

Risk Balanced 748,469         

 An asset allocation strategy which 
seeks to provide higher risk-

adjusted returns by allocating risk, 
not capital, equally across a broadly 

diversified portfolio of global 
equities, global nominal bonds and 

inflation-sensitive assets. -                       Open Ended

 Weekly, 
Monthly, and 

Quarterly 
redemption with 

1 - 90 days 
notice 

Debt Securities 216,100         

 Global fixed income exposures 
focused primarily on high yield, 

emerging markets debt and other 
unconstrained / opportunistic 

strategies. -                       Open Ended

 Daily and 
Monthly 

redemption with 
1 -2 days notice 

Equity Securities 329,190         

 Global equity exposures achieved 
through a combination of 
traditional active, passive, 

systematic and factor-based 
strategies. -                       Open Ended

 Daily, Semi-
Monthly, and 

Monthly 
redemption with 
1 -15 days notice 

Real Estate 29,453           
 Core real estate holdings in open-

ended fund. -                       Open Ended

 Quarterly 
redemption with 
1 -30 days notice 

Commodities 8,180             

 A Commodity exposure seeks to 
provide inflation protection and 
diversification from traditional 

asset classes. -                       Open Ended

 y  
Monthly, and 

Quarterly 
redemption with 

1 - 90 days 

Real Estate 158,063         

 Diversified portfolio of longer-term 
private market funds focused on 

value-added and opportunistic real 
estate and/or real estate debt. 134,351           10 -12 years

 Not applicable - 
no redemption 

ability 

Private Equity/Debt 821,354         

 Investments in hedge funds, global 
equity, credit, real assets, natural 
resources, and other investments 
through private partnerships and 

holding companies 581,966           8 -15 years

 Not applicable - 
no redemption 

ability 

University of Missouri

Commingled Funds (2):

Nonmarketable Alternative Funds (3):
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Fair Value
Investment Strategy and Structure 

(1)
Unfunded 

Commitments Fund Term (1)
Redemption 

Terms (1)

Absolute Return 955,700$       

 Broadly diversified, traditional 
hedge fund and risk premia 
exposures obtained through 

long/short positions across global 
liquid markets, structured to 

achieve minimal equity beta with a 
lower level of volatility relative to 

the rest of the portfolio. -$                     Open Ended

 Semi-Monthly, 
Monthly, and 

Quarterly 
redemption with 
1 -45 days notice 

Risk Balanced 596,702         

 An asset allocation strategy which 
seeks to provide higher risk-

adjusted returns by allocating risk, 
not capital, equally across a broadly 

diversified portfolio of global 
equities, global nominal bonds and 

inflation-sensitive assets. -                       Open Ended

 Weekly, 
Monthly, and 

Quarterly 
redemption with 

1 - 90 days 
notice 

Equity Securities 626,556         

 Global equity exposures achieved 
through a combination of 
traditional active, passive, 

systematic and factor-based 
strategies. -                       Open Ended

 Daily, Semi-
Monthly, and 

Monthly 
redemption with 
1 -15 days notice 

Real Estate 49,514           
 Core real estate holdings in open-

ended fund. -                       Open Ended

 Quarterly 
redemption with 
1 -30 days notice 

Commodities 19,086           

 A Commodity exposure seeks to 
provide inflation protection and 
diversification from traditional 

asset classes. -                       Open Ended

 Weekly, 
Monthly, and 

Quarterly 
redemption with 

1 - 90 days 
notice 

Real Estate 398,139         

 Diversified portfolio of longer-term 
private market funds focused on 

value-added and opportunistic real 
estate and/or real estate debt. 206,886           10 -12 years

 Not applicable - 
no redemption 

ability 

Private Equity/Debt 759,055         

 Investments in hedge funds, global 
equity, credit, real assets, natural 
resources, and other investments 
through private partnerships and 

holding companies 441,954           10 -12 years

 Not applicable - 
no redemption 

ability 
(1) Information reflects a range of various terms from multiple investments.

      general partners of the respective funds issue capital calls and distributions. These funds generally provide the NAV or capital 
      balances and changes quarterly or less frequently. Performance fees are generally collected by the general partner or investment
      manager only upon distributions of profits to investors.

      on equity or credit investments in private companies. The partnerships or funds generally have no redemption rights; the 
(3) Nonmarketable Alternative Funds.  This generally refers to investments in private partnerships or investment funds focusing 

Pension Trust Funds
University of Missouri

(2) Commingled funds include investments that aggregate assets from multiple investors and are managed collectively
       following a prescribed strategy. 

Commingled Funds (2):

Nonmarketable Alternative Funds (3):
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The unfunded commitments as of June 30, 2023 totaled 
$716,317,000 and $648,840,000 for the University and the 
Pension Trust Funds, respectively. The unfunded 
commitments as of June 30, 2022 totaled $321,083,000 and 
$500,337,000 for the University and the Pension Trust 
Funds, respectively.  There were no significant changes in 
the investment strategy, structure, and liquidity terms for 
the investments that were measured at NAV from June 30, 
2022 to June 30, 2023.   
 

5.  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable at June 30, 2023 and 2022, are 
summarized as follows:  

2023 2022
Grants and Contracts 112,392$       94,433$         
Federal Appropriations -                 372                
Student Fees and Other 

Academic Charges 130,596         114,645         
Patient Services, Net of 

Contractual Allowances 396,111      444,084      
Subtotal 639,099         653,534         
Less Provisions for Loss:

Grants & Contracts 1,929          2,298          
Student Fees and Other

Academic Charges 28,796     31,874     
University Health Care Patient

Services 129,798         176,484         
Subtotal 160,523         210,656         
Total Accounts Receivable, Net 478,576$       442,878$       

Table 5.1 - Accounts Receivable (in thousands)

 

6.  NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
Notes receivable generally consist of resources available for 
financial loans to students.  These resources are provided 
through Federal loan programs and University loan 
programs generally funded by external sources.  Notes 
receivable at June 30, 2023 and 2022, are summarized as 
follows: 
 
Table 6.1 - Notes Receivable (in thousands)

2023 2022
Federal Health Profession Loans 17,874$   17,938$   
Carl D. Perkins National Loans 7,695       12,092     
University Loan Programs 13,488     13,367     
Other 2,116       2,815       
Subtotal 41,173     46,212     
Less Provisions for Loss 3,337       4,179       
Total Notes Receivable, Net 37,836$   42,033$    
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7.  LEASES RECEIVABLE 
 
The University leases a portion of its property to various 
third parties, the terms of which expire in fiscal years 2024 
through 2068.  Certain leases increase regularly based upon 
the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  Leases are measured based 
upon the Index at lease commencement.  
 
Leases receivables generally consist of ground leases, farm 
land, cell phone towers, and ATMs as well as other space 
leases for food service providers.  The amount of interest 
recognized in fiscal years 2023 and 2022 were $495,000 and 
$565,000, respectively.  Lease revenue is recognized on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term with the amounts to 
be recognized in future periods reported as Deferred 
Inflows of Resources on the Statement of Net Position.  The 
amount of lease revenue recognized in fiscal years 2023 and 
2022 were $2,575,000 and $1,963,000, respectively.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The schedule of leases receivables at June 30, 2023 is as 
follows:  
 
Table 7.1 - Leases Receivable (in thousands)

Principal Interest
2024 2,176$     470$        
2025 1,514       401          
2026 851          360          
2027 651          334          
2028 377          314          
2029-2033 1,501       1,403       
2034-2038 1,387       1,165       
2039-2043 1,693       903          
2044-2048 1,297       610          
2049-2053 506          489          
2054-2058 654          392          
2059-2063 831          268          
2064-2068 1,045       111          
Subtotal 14,483     7,220       
Less Provisions for Loss 52            -               
Total Lease Receivable 14,431$   7,220$      
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8.  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, is summarized as follows: 
Table 8.1 - Capital Assets (in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2023
Beginning 
Balance

Additions/
Transfers Retirements

Ending 
Balance

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable:
Land 99,815$          11,620$          (228)$              111,207$        
Artwork and Historical Artifacts 16,561            6,857              -                      23,418            
Construction in Progress 214,277          157,714          -                      371,991          

Total Capital Assets, Nondepreciable 330,653          176,191          (228)                506,616          
Capital Assets, Depreciable:

Buildings and Improvements 5,090,826       106,926          (30,982)           5,166,770       
Infrastructure 523,822          39,301            (1,984)             561,139          
Equipment 1,006,807       99,875            (28,687)           1,077,995       
Library Materials 287,595          3,148              (3,551)             287,192          
Software and Other Intangibles 96,523            271                 (5,811)             90,983            

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 7,005,573       249,521          (71,015)           7,184,079       
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Improvements 2,281,088       143,440          (24,692)           2,399,836       
Infrastructure 308,028          19,569            (1,984)             325,613          
Equipment 753,317          67,093            (28,185)           792,225          
Library Materials 226,029          5,358              (1,923)             229,464          
Software and Other Intangibles 51,483            8,479              (5,221)             54,741            
Total Accumulated Depreciation 3,619,945       243,939          (62,005)           3,801,879       

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 3,385,628       5,582              (9,010)             3,382,200       
Total Capital Assets, Net 3,716,281$     181,773$        (9,238)$           3,888,816$     

Fiscal Year 2022
Beginning 
Balance

Additions/
Transfers Retirements

Ending 
Balance

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable:
Land 98,977$          3,202$            (2,364)$           99,815$          
Artwork and Historical Artifacts 16,367            194                 -                      16,561            
Construction in Progress 290,583          60,125            (136,431)         214,277          

Total Capital Assets, Nondepreciable 405,927          63,521            (138,795)         330,653          
Capital Assets, Depreciable:

Buildings and Improvements 4,842,398       276,012          (27,584)           5,090,826       
Infrastructure 523,383          1,473              (1,034)             523,822          
Equipment 979,452          75,035            (47,680)           1,006,807       
Library Materials 286,364          1,231              -                      287,595          
Software and Other Intangibles 93,878            2,909              (264)                96,523            

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 6,725,475       356,660          (76,562)           7,005,573       
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Improvements 2,153,618       140,759          (13,289)           2,281,088       
Infrastructure 288,475          20,192            (639)                308,028          
Equipment 738,216          61,835            (46,734)           753,317          
Library Materials 220,740          5,289              -                      226,029          
Software and Other Intangibles 42,846            8,902              (265)                51,483            
Total Accumulated Depreciation 3,443,895       236,977          (60,927)           3,619,945       

Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 3,281,580       119,683          (15,635)           3,385,628       
Total Capital Assets, Net 3,687,507$     183,204$        (154,430)$       3,716,281$       
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Construction in Progress - The estimated cost to complete 
construction in progress at June 30, 2023, is $999,016,000 
of which $327,221,000 is available from unrestricted net 
position. The remaining costs are expected to be funded 
from $199,372,000 of gifts, $330,424,000 of capital grants 
and $141,999,000 of debt proceeds and state 
appropriations. 
 
Capital assets include equipment and a building facility 
under financed purchase agreements of $33,880,000 and 
$23,105,000 and related accumulated depreciation of 
$9,964,000 and $4,966,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligation - The University has an asset 
retirement obligation based on its ownership of two nuclear 
research reactors, which are regulated by the U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC). The NRC requires the 
University to submit decommissioning funding plans every 
three years to retain the right to operate the reactors.  The 
decommissioning funding plans update and adjust changes 
in costs to remediate and the extent of the estimated future 
contamination.  The cost to decommission the reactors is 
based on a formula as set forth by the NRC as part of the 
licensing of the facilities.  The asset retirement obligation as 
of the end of fiscal year 2023 and 2022 was $62,433,000.   
 
 

A deferred outflow of resources is being amortized over 25 
years, which approximates the estimated useful lives of the 
reactors.  An asset retirement expense was recognized in 
fiscal years 2023 and 2022 for $2,497,000 each year and is 
reflected in depreciation expense on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  The 
deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2023 will be 
amortized over a remaining 19 years.   
 
Lease and Software Subscription Assets – The University 
has the right to use the present service capacity of assets as 
a result of lease or subscription contracts. Assets are 
recorded at the initial measurement of the associated 
liability plus payments made at or before the 
commencement of the lease or contract term, less any 
incentives received from the lessor at or before the 
commencement of the lease or contract, plus initial direct 
costs that are ancillary to place the asset into service.  
Software Subscription assets recorded value also includes 
the cost of implementation of the software during the initial 
implementation stage, which includes configuration, 
coding, testing and installation. Assets are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the term of the lease 
or contract, or the useful life of the underlying assets.  
These assets are not owned by the University and are 
presented as Capital, Lease, and Subscription Assets, Net on 
the Statement of Net Position. 
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Lease and subscription asset activity for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, is summarized as follows: 
Table 8.2 - Lease and Subscription Assets (in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2023
Beginning 
Balance Additions Retirements

Ending 
Balance

Buildings 66,153              15,767            (1,126)              80,794            
Land 810                   141                 (173)                 778                 
Equipment 9,698                840                 (386)                 10,152            
Software Subscriptions 83,766              6,084              -                       89,850            

Total Lease and Subscription Assets 160,427            22,832            (1,685)              181,574          
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings 24,500              13,590            (1,097)              36,993            
Land 208                   150                 (100)                 258                 
Equipment 3,993                2,647              (374)                 6,266              
Software Subscriptions 13,497              14,684            -                       28,181            
Total Accumulated Amortization 42,198              31,071            (1,571)              71,698            

Total Lease and Subscription Assets, Net 118,229$          (8,239)$           (114)$               109,876$        

Fiscal Year 2022 - Restated
Beginning 
Balance Additions Retirements

Ending 
Balance

Buildings 62,208              4,533              (588)                 66,153            
Land 858                   -                      (48)                   810                 
Equipment 8,037                1,797              (136)                 9,698              
Software Subscriptions 76,118              7,648              -                       83,766            

Total Lease and Subscription Assets 147,221            13,978            (772)                 160,427          
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings 12,303              12,773            (576)                 24,500            
Land 102                   106                 -                       208                 
Equipment 1,440                2,670              (117)                 3,993              
Software Subscriptions -                        13,497            -                       13,497            
Total Accumulated Amortization 13,845              29,046            (693)                 42,198            

Total Lease and Subscription Assets, Net 133,376$          (15,068)$         (79)$                 118,229$         
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9.  ACCRUED SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES and 
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Accrued liabilities consists of employee salaries, benefits, 
self-insurance claims, and interest payable.  Accrued 
liabilities that are generally paid within one year for the end 
of the fiscal year are reflected as short-term accrued 
liabilities on the Statement of Net Position.  Accrued short-
term liabilities at June 30, 2023 and 2022 are summarized 
as follows: 

Table 9.1 - Accrued Liabilities (in thousands)

2023 2022
Accrued Salaries, Wages & Benefits 99,536$      89,413$      
Accrued Vacation 64,235$      59,344        
Accrued Self Insurance Claims 52,402$      48,890        
Accrued Interest Payable 13,244$      13,303        
Total Accrued Liabilities 229,417$    210,950$     
 

 
Other noncurrent liabilities consist of charitable annuities and long-term portions of employee accrued vacation, self-
insurance and other insurance claims.   

The University’s outstanding noncurrent accrued liabilities at June 30, 2023 and 2022, with corresponding activity, is as 
follows: 
Table 9.2 - Other Noncurrent Liabilities (in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2023
Beginning of 

Year Additions Payments
Total End of 

Year
Less Current 

Portion
Noncurrent 
End of Year

Accrued Vacation 87,463$       59,775$       (52,554)$      94,684$       (64,235)$      30,449$       
Accrued Self-Insurance Claims 106,673       239,284       (241,604)      104,353       (52,402)        51,951         
Accrued Other Insurance Claims 7,773           832              (2,279)          6,326           -                   6,326           
Charitable Annuity Obligations 10,233         1,935           (1,800)          10,368         -                   10,368         

212,142$     301,826$     (298,237)$    215,731$     (116,637)$    99,094$       

Fiscal Year 2022
Beginning of 

Year Additions Payments
Total End of 

Year
Less Current 

Portion
Noncurrent 
End of Year

Accrued Vacation 86,089$       53,011$       (51,637)$      87,463$       (59,344)$      28,119$       
Accrued Self-Insurance Claims 91,732         236,669       (221,728)      106,673       (48,890)        57,783         
Accrued Other Insurance Claims 4,801           4,120           (1,148)          7,773           -                   7,773           
Charitable Annuity Obligations 12,989         517              (3,273)          10,233         -                   10,233         

195,611$     294,317$     (277,786)$    212,142$     (108,234)$    103,908$      
Charitable Gift Annuities and Trusts - A charitable gift 
annuity is a contractual agreement between one or two 
donors (typically husband and wife) and a charity.  The 
donor(s) transfers assets as a gift to the charity, and in 
return the charity is obligated to pay a fixed annuity to one 
or two annuitants, of the donor(s)’ choosing, for the life of 
the donor(s).  As part of the University’s “Planned Giving” 
program, the University enters into Charitable Gift Annuity 
contracts with donors.  The University is a remainder 

interest beneficiary and records a liability for the lead 
interest that is assigned to other beneficiaries.  The 
University’s liability related to the lead interests were 
$10,368,000 and $10,233,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.  The University’s remainder interest is 
represented as Deferred Inflows of Resources on the 
Statement of Net Position and was $14,808,000 and 
$13,093,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
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10. LONG-TERM DEBT AND LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
The University’s outstanding debt and lease obligations at June 30, 2023 and 2022, with corresponding activity, is as follows: 
Table 10.1 - Long-Term Debt and Lease Obligations (in thousands)

As of June 30, 2023
Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending 
Balance

Current 
Portion

System Facilities Revenue Bonds - Fixed 1,582,240$    -$                  (11,585)$       1,570,655$    123,235$      
System Facilities Revenue Bonds - Variable 74,820           -                    (4,085)           70,735           70,735          
Unamortized Premium 64,346           -                    (7,025)           57,321           -                    
Net System Facilities Revenue Bonds 1,721,406      -                    (22,695)         1,698,711      193,970        
Notes Payable 2,039             485               (491)              2,033             502               
Financed Purchase Obligations 49,776           3,252            (7,940)           45,088           7,852            
ROU Lease & Subscription Obligations 118,439         19,015          (28,657)         108,797         23,022          
  Subtotal 1,891,660      22,752          (59,783)         1,854,629      225,346        
Health Facilities Revenue Bonds 41,677           -                    (2,210)           39,467           39,467          
Unamortized Premium 3,412             -                    (385)              3,027             3,027            
Total Long-Term Debt and Lease Obligations 1,936,749$    22,752$        (62,378)$       1,897,123$    267,840$      

As of June 30, 2022 - Restated
Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending 
Balance

Current 
Portion

System Facilities Revenue Bonds - Fixed 1,583,685$    -$                  (1,445)$         1,582,240$    11,585$        
System Facilities Revenue Bonds - Variable 78,755           -                    (3,935)           74,820           74,820          
Unamortized Premium 71,371           -                    (7,025)           64,346           -                    
Net System Facilities Revenue Bonds 1,733,811      -                    (12,405)         1,721,406      86,405          
Notes Payable 2,480             -                    (441)              2,039             436               
Financed Purchase Obligations 54,869           2,399            (7,492)           49,776           7,448            
ROU Lease & Subscription Obligations 134,309         13,926          (29,796)         118,439         27,573          
  Subtotal 1,925,469      16,325          (50,134)         1,891,660      121,862        
Health Facilities Revenue Bonds 43,824           -                    (2,147)           41,677           2,210            
Unamortized Premium 3,809             -                    (397)              3,412             -                    
Total Long-Term Debt and Lease Obligations 1,973,102$    16,325$        (52,678)$       1,936,749$    124,072$       

System Facilities Revenue Bonds - System Facilities 
Revenue Bonds have provided financing for capital 
expansion or renovation of various University facilities.  The 
principal and interest of the bonds are payable from, and 
secured by a first lien on and pledge of, designated 
revenues which include the following: a portion of tuition 

and fees, sales and services from the financed facilities, 
such as bookstore collections, housing and dining charges, 
patient services, and parking collections, as well as certain 
assessed fees, such as the recreational facility fees, stadium 
surcharges, and student center fees.   
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System Facilities Revenue Bond Series 2007B is a variable 
rate demand bond with remarketing features which allow 
bondholders to put debt back to the University.  Because 
the University is the sole source of liquidity should the 
option to tender be exercised by the bondholder, these 
variable rate demand bonds are classified in their entirety 
as current liabilities on the Statements of Net Position, with 
the balance in excess of actual current principal maturities 
reported as Long-Term Debt Subject to Remarketing of 
$66,485,000 and $70,735,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.  The amount of current liabilities that 
represents the current principal maturities are $4,250,000 
and $4,085,000 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
At June 30, 2023, the University had no outstanding 
defeased bonds.  The outstanding in-substance defeased 
bonds aggregated $10,635,000 at June 30, 2022.  
 
Health Facilities Revenue Bonds - Tax-exempt revenue 
bonds have provided financing of capital facilities and 

refinancing of previously issued debt.  The bonds were 
issued by the Health and Education Facilities Authority of 
the State of Missouri (the Authority) on behalf of Capital 
Region Medical Center (CRMC), as reported in the Medical 
Alliance. Premium and the deferred financing costs are 
amortized on the effective interest method over the life of 
the respective bonds. The bonds are secured by the 
unrestricted receivables of CRMC.  Under the terms of the 
Master Indenture, CRMC is required to make payments of 
principal, premium, if any, and interest on the bonds. In 
addition, the Master Indenture contains certain restrictions 
on the operations and activities of CRMC, including, among 
other things, covenants restricting the incurrence of 
additional indebtedness and the creation of liens on 
property, except as permitted by the Master Indenture.  
The Master Indenture has mandatory sinking fund 
redemption requirements in which funds are required to be 
set aside beginning in 2021 for the Series 2011 bonds and 
monthly for the Series 2017 bonds. 

 
Table 10.2 - Revenue Bonds (in thousands)

Series Type Final Maturity 2023 2022
2009A (1) Fixed 4.00% 11/1/2039 256,300         246,230$         256,300$           
2010A (1) Fixed 3.88% 11/1/2041 252,285         252,285           252,285             

2013A Fixed 2.75% 11/1/2023 11,325           1,590               3,105                 
2013B Fixed 4.87% 11/1/2043 150,000         150,000           150,000             
2014A Fixed 3.16% 11/1/2035 294,510         180,350           180,350             
2014B Fixed 4.24% 11/1/2054 150,000         150,000           150,000             
2020A Fixed 1.98% 11/1/2050 400,000         400,000           400,000             
2020B Fixed 1.86% 11/1/2030 190,200         190,200           190,200             

Total Fixed Rate Bonds 1,704,620      1,570,655        1,582,240          
2007B (2) Variable 0.88% 11/1/2031 102,250         70,735             74,820               

Total Variable Rate Demand Bonds 102,250         70,735             74,820               
Total System Facilities Revenue Bonds 1,806,870$    1,641,390$      1,657,060$        

2017 (3) Fixed 3.10% 3/1/2032 20,000           12,777             14,027               
2020 (3) Fixed 4.60% 11/1/2040 28,585           26,690             27,650               

Total Revenue Bonds 1,855,455$    1,680,857$      1,698,737$        
(1)  Taxable issue designated as Build America Bonds under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
(2)  As of June 30, 2023; rates are determined daily or weekly by the remarketing agents.  The rate is usually within a range at or near the
         Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index (SIFMA Index) rate, which resets weekly.
(3)  Tax-exempt revenue bonds issued by Health and Educational Facilities Authortiy on behalf of the Medical Alliance, which is rated 
        separately from the University.

Balance June 30,
Weighted Avg. 
Cost of Capital 

at June 30, 2023 Original Issue
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Interest Expense - Total interest expense incurred during 
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $72,425,000 
and $74,846,000, respectively.  For the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022, the University earned cash subsidy 
payments from the United States Treasury totaling 
$9,809,000 and $10,164,000, respectively, for designated 
Build America Bonds outstanding, which was recorded as 
Federal Appropriations on the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
 
 

Interest Rate Swap Agreements - With an objective of 
lowering the University’s borrowing costs, when compared 
against fixed-rate debt, the University entered into interest 
rate swap agreements in connection with certain variable-
rate System Facilities Revenue Bonds and commercial 
paper.  Under each of the swap agreements, the University 
pays the swap counterparty a fixed interest rate payment 
and receives a variable rate interest rate payment that 
effectively changes a component of the University’s variable 
interest rate debt to fixed rate debt. Table 10.3 presents the 
terms of the outstanding swaps and their fair values at June 
30, 2023. 

Table 10.3 - Interest Rate Swaps (in thousands)
Notional Effective Maturity Counterparty

Type Amount Date Date Terms Fair Value Credit Rating
Pay fixed; 40,000$       7/18/2002 11/1/2032 Pay 3.950%; receive (3,843)$     Aa2 / A+

receive variable SIFMA Index
Pay fixed; 41,120         12/14/2006 8/1/2026 Pay 3.902%; receive (920)          Aa1 / A+

receive variable SIFMA Index
Pay fixed; 70,735         7/26/2007 11/1/2031 Pay 3.798%; receive 68% (3,691)       Aa2 / A+

receive variable of 1-Month LIBOR
Total 151,855$     (8,454)$     

The 2002 and 2006 swaps do not specifically hedge any 
currently outstanding debt; rather, they serve to reduce the 
overall exposure to interest rate risk on the University’s 
variable rate debt not otherwise specifically hedged.  The 
notional amount of the 2002 swap is fixed over the life of 
the agreement.  The notional amount of the 2006 swap 
decreases annually over the life of the swap.  The 2007 swap 
specifically hedges System Facilities Revenue Bond Series 
2007B, the effectiveness of which has been determined 

using the synthetic instrument method.  The notional 
amount of the 2007 swap is equal to the outstanding 
balance of the Series 2007B bonds. 
 
The University recognizes the fair value and corresponding 
changes in fair value of the outstanding swaps in the 
University’s financial statements.  Changes in fair value of 
the outstanding swaps, with respective financial statement 
presentation, are presented in Table 10.4: 

 
 

Table 10.4 - Interest Rate Swaps - Change in Fair Value (in thousands)

Type 2023 2022

2002 Swap - Investment Derivative (3,843)$         (5,752)$         N/A 1,909$          Investment and Endowment Income, Net

2006 Swap - Investment Derivative (920)               (2,880)           N/A 1,960            Investment and Endowment Income, Net

2007 Swap - Cash Flow Hedge (3,691)           (7,616)           N/A 3,925            Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total (8,454)$        (16,248)$      7,794$         

Fair Value at June 30, Fair Value on 
Acquisition

Change in 
Fair Value Presentation of Change in Fair Value
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Fair Value. There is a risk that the fair value of a swap could 
be adversely affected by changing market conditions. The 
fair values, developed using the zero coupon method with 
proprietary models, were prepared by the counterparties, 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., and Bank of America, N.A., 
major U.S. financial institutions.  The zero coupon method 
calculates the future net settlement payments required by 
the swap, assuming that the current forward rates implied 
by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest 
rates.  These payments are then discounted using the spot 
rates implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical 
zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each net settlement 
of the swap. The fair value of the interest rate swaps is the 
estimated amount the University would have either (paid) 
or received if the swap agreements were terminated on 
June 30, 2023. 
 
Credit Risk. Although the University has entered into the 
interest rate swaps with creditworthy financial institutions, 
there is credit risk for losses in the event of non-
performance by the counterparties.  Subject to applicable 
netting arrangements, swap contracts with positive fair 
values are exposed to credit risk. The University faces a 
maximum possible loss equivalent to the amount of the 
derivative instrument’s fair value.  Subject to applicable 
netting arrangements, swaps with negative fair values are 
not exposed to credit risk.  Collateral requirements apply to 
both parties for the 2002 and 2007 swaps and for the 2006 
swap collateral requirements only apply to the 
counterparty. The collateral requirements are determined 
by a combination of credit ratings and the aggregate fair 
value of swaps outstanding with each counterparty as 
presented in Table 10.5: 

Fair Value
Credit Rating Threshold

(S&P / Moody's) (in thousands)

AAA/Aaa 50,000$          
AA+/Aa1 30,000            
AA/Aa2 30,000            
AA-/Aa3 20,000            
A+/A1 20,000            
A/A2 10,000            
A-/A3 10,000            

BBB+/Baa1 5,000              

Table 10.5 - Swap Collateral Requirements

 
 
If the aggregate fair value of swaps outstanding with each 
counterparty is positive and exceeds the fair value 
threshold for the applicable credit rating, the 
counterparties are required to post collateral.  If the 
aggregate fair value of the 2002 and 2007 swaps is negative 
and exceeds the fair value threshold for the applicable 
credit rating, the University is required to post collateral.  
Permitted collateral for either party includes U.S. 
Treasuries, U.S. government agencies, cash, and 
commercial paper rated A1/P1 by S&P or Moody’s, 
respectively.  The negative aggregate fair value of the 2002 
and 2007 swaps did not exceed $30,000,000 on June 30, 
2023, which is the current fair value threshold for the 
University given its Moody’s rating of Aa1.  As a result, the 
University was not required to post collateral with the 
counterparty at June 30, 2023.   
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Basis Risk. The variable-rate payments received by the 
University on the 2007 swap are determined by 68% of one 
month LIBOR, whereas the interest rates paid by the 
University on its variable-rate bonds correspond to the 
SIFMA Index.  The University is exposed to basis risk only to 
the extent that the historical relationship between these 
variable market rates changes going forward, resulting in a 
variable-rate payment received on the 2007 swap that is 
significantly less than the variable-rate interest payment on 
the bonds. 
 
Termination Risk. The University is exposed to termination 
risk for the 2002 and 2007 interest rate swaps as the 
counterparty has the right to terminate the agreements in 
certain circumstances.  For the 2002 swap, the counterparty 
has a contractual right to terminate the agreement if the 
daily weighted average of the SIFMA Index for the 
preceding 30 calendar day period is greater than 7.00%.  
With regard to the 2007 swap, the counterparty has a 
contractual right to terminate the agreement if the daily 
weighted average of the SIFMA Index for the preceding 180 
days is greater than 6.00%.  The 2006 interest rate swap is 
not exposed to termination risk.  The SIFMA Index was 
4.01% at June 30, 2023. 
 
Debt-Related Items Presented as Deferred Outflows of 
Resources - As required by GASB, the University recognizes 
certain debt-related items as deferred outflows of 
resources.  The detail of the debt related items recognized 
as deferred outflows resources is presented in Table 10.6. 
 

2023 2022
Swaps - Cash Flow Hedge 3,691$     7,616$    
Loss on Bond Defeasance 5,090       5,796      

Deferred Outflows of Resources 8,781$        13,412$     

Table 10.6 - Debt-Related Deferred Outflows of 
Resources (in thousands)

 
 
 
 

For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 the 
amortization of the Loss on Bond Defeasance totaled 
$706,000 and $710,000, respectively, which increases 
interest expense. 
 
Pledged Revenues and Debt Service Requirements - For 
fiscal years 2023 and 2022, annual debt service, including 
net payments on associated interest rate swaps, totaled 
$129,972,000 and $125,761,000, respectively.  For fiscal 
years 2023 and 2022, System Facilities Pledged Revenue 
was fourteen and thirteen times greater than the annual 
debt service for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively.  Net System Facilities Revenue was 
153% and 121% of annual debt service for fiscal years 2023 
and 2022, respectively.  Table 10.7 provides the System 
Facilities pledged net revenues. 

2023 2022
Pledged Revenues:

Net Patient Revenue 1,686,372$   1,525,954$   
Housing and Food Service 118,236        108,868        
Bookstores 31,302          31,444          
Net Tuition and Fees 29,696          26,577          
Other Operating Revenue 31,586          29,314          

Pledged Revenues 1,897,192        1,722,157        
Operating Expenses 1,697,709        1,569,410        
Net Revenues 199,483$         152,747$         

Table 10.7 - System Facilities Pledged                                                      
Net Revenues (in thousands)

 
 

Capital Region Medical Center (CRMC), as reported in the 
Medical Alliance, is required to set aside funds into a 
mandatory sinking fund for its Series 2020 Health and 
Educational Facilities bonds as well as maintain a debt-
service coverage ratio of at least 1.25 to 1.  CRMC did not 
meet the historical debt-service coverage ratio for the fiscal 
years June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  Accordingly, 
the outstanding balance is classified as a current liability.  
CRMC engaged with a consultant and obtained a 
forbearance agreement for the bonds. 
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Table 10.8 provides future debt service requirements for Revenue Bonds, including the impact of interest rate swap agreements.  
With respect to the inclusion of variable rate bond interest payments and net payments on swaps, the following data was based 
upon variable rates in effect at June 30, 2023.  As market rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap payments 
will vary. 
 
Table 10.8 - Future Debt Service - Revenue Bonds (in thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest

Hedging 
Derivatives, 

Net

Total Before 
Investment 
Derivatives

Investment 
Derivatives, 

Net
Total Future 
Debt Service

2024 166,952         83,381             189                  199,306         (50)               199,256         
2025 37,815           65,701             172                  107,650         (47)               107,603         
2026 139,355         63,196             151                  206,665         (44)               206,621         
2027 41,150           60,623             129                  105,864         (63)               105,801         
2028 130,230         57,821             107                  192,123         (63)               192,060         
2029-2033 351,685         240,968           261                  609,495         (296)             609,199         
2034-2038 123,405         182,481           -                       317,628         (192)             317,436         
2039-2043 290,265         120,889           -                       418,195         (90)               418,105         
2044-2048 150,000         49,173             -                       199,173         -                   199,173         
2049-2053 100,000         38,648             -                       138,648         -                   138,648         
2054-2058 150,000         9,533               -                       159,533         -                   159,533         

1,680,857$    972,414$         1,009$             2,654,280$    (845)$           2,653,435$     
 
Commercial Paper – On October 21, 2011, the Board 
adopted a flexible financing program for the University 
referred to as the University’s Commercial Paper Program 
(“CP Program”). The CP Program authorizes the periodic 
issuance of up to an aggregate outstanding principal 
amount of $375 million in Commercial Paper Notes. The 
initial term of the authorization is approximately fifteen 
years.    
 
The Commercial Paper Notes are limited obligations of the 
University secured by a pledge of the University’s 
unrestricted revenues.  “Unrestricted revenues” includes 
state appropriations for general operations, student fee 
revenues, and all other operating revenues of the University 
other than System Facilities Revenues.  The primary 
objective of the CP Program is to provide flexibility in 

managing the University’s overall debt program to meet its 
various financial needs including: (a) financing capital 
projects, (b) allowing for the refunding/refinancing of 
outstanding debt, and (c) providing a readily accessible 
source of funds for various working capital purposes. As of 
fiscal years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were no 
Commercial Paper Notes outstanding. 
 
Notes Payable - Notes payable consist of unsecured loans 
from the State Department of Natural Resources Energy 
Efficiency Leveraged Loan Program. Interest is payable 
semiannually and ranges from 2.0% to 2.75%. 
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The future payments on all notes payable at June 30, 2023, 
are as follows: 

Table 10.9 - Future Notes Payable Payments
Amount

Year Ending June 30 (in thousands)
2024 550                 
2025 411                 
2026 269                 
2027 251                 
2028 251                 
2029-2030 464                 
Total Future Notes Payable Payments 2,196              
Less: Amount Representing Interest (163)                
Future Notes Payable

Principal Payments 2,033$             
Financed Purchase Obligations - The University finances 
various facilities and equipment through financed 
purchases. Facilities and equipment under financing 
arrangements are recorded at the present value of future 
minimum lease payments. 

The future minimum payments on all financed purchases at 
June 30, 2023, are as follows: 
 
Table 10.10 - Future Financed Payments
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest
2024 7,852      647           
2025 7,868      836           
2026 7,398      644           
2027 7,324      476           
2028 7,323      179           
2029 7,323      92             
Total Financed

Purchase Payments 45,088$  2,874$       
 
Right of Use (ROU) Leases - The University leases various 
facilities and equipment under agreements recorded as 
ROU leases.  Certain leases increase regularly based upon 
the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  Leases are measured based 
upon the Index at lease commencement. Changes in 
payments due to CPI adjustments after the lease 
commencement are expensed as incurred.   
 
The University uses its internal borrowing rate of 3.40% and 
3.44% for fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.  The internal borrowing rate reflects the 
University’s weighted average cost of debt, to calculate the 

present value and interest applied to each lease whenever 
a stated rate is unavailable.  Lease interest recognized for 
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $1,724,000 
and $2,079,000, respectively. Future minimum payments 
on ROU leases at June 30, 2023, are as follows: 
 
Table 10.11 - ROU Lease Obligation (in thousands)

Principal Interest
2024 10,633$     1,507$         
2025 8,046         1,312           
2026 6,369         1,041           
2027 4,959         817              
2028 3,801         633              
2029-2033 7,687         1,876           
2034-2038 3,812         915              
2039-2043 3,384         275              
2044-2048 32              -                   
Total Lease Obligation 48,723$     8,376$          
 
Subscription Obligations - The University enters contracts 
for various subscription-based information technology 
arrangements for the right to use software and records the 
obligation as a subscription obligation. Certain subscription 
obligations increase regularly based upon the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI).  Subscription obligations are measured 
based upon the Index at obligation commencement. 
Changes in payments due to CPI adjustments after the 
commencement of the obligation are expensed as incurred.   
 
The university uses its internal borrowing rate of 3.40%, 
which reflects the University’s weighted average cost of 
debt, to calculate the present value and interest applied to 
each subscription obligation whenever a stated rate is 
unavailable.  Interest recognized on these obligations for 
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $2,372,000 
and $2,202,000, respectively.  Future payments on all 
subscription obligations at June 30, 2023, are as follows:  
 
Table 10.12 - Subscription Obligation (in thousands)

Principal Interest
2024 12,389$     1,705$         
2025 12,208       1,359           
2026 8,229         1,073           
2027 7,300         820              
2028 6,425         580              
2029-2033 13,523       488              
Total Subscription Obligation 60,074$     6,025$          
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11.  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The University is exposed to various risks of loss related to 
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; injuries 
to employees; natural disasters; medical malpractice; and 
various medically related benefit programs for employees.  
The University funds these losses through a combination of 
self-insured retentions and commercially purchased 
insurance. The amount of self-insurance funds and 
commercial insurance maintained are based upon analysis 
of historical information and actuarial estimates.  Settled 
claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of 
the past three fiscal years. 
 
The liability for self-insurance claims at June 30, 2023 and 
2022 of $104,353,000 and $106,673,000, respectively, 
represents the present value of amounts estimated to have 
been incurred by those dates, using discount rates ranging 
from 0.50% to 3.50%, based on expected future investment 
yield assumptions. 
 
Changes in the self-insurance liability during fiscal years 
2023 and 2022 were as follows and are included in accrued 
liabilities (current) and other noncurrent liabilities (see note 
9): 
 
Table 11.1 - Self-Insurance Claims

Liability (in thousands)

Fiscal Year
Beginning 

of Year

New Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates

Claim 
Payments End of Year

2023 106,673$   239,284$           (241,604)$   104,353$   
2022 91,732$     236,669$           (221,728)$   106,673$    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  
 
Commitments - The University has outstanding 
commitments for the usage and ongoing support of MU 
Health Care’s information technology environment.   As of 
January 2010, MU Health Care began contracting for 
software usage and maintenance fees, as well as labor costs 
for approximately 100 full-time equivalent employees, with 
the Cerner Corporation.  This agreement, called IT Works, 
represents the labor and software component of a 
cooperative relationship between MU Health Care and 
Cerner Corporation referred to as the Tiger Institute for 
Health Innovation (the Tiger Institute).  The Tiger Institute 
is not a legally separate entity and is included within the 
financial statements of the University.  The Tiger Institute 
provides continued development of information 
technology within the clinical areas, as well as developing 
new technology initiatives in health information systems. 
 
As of June 30, 2023, this contracted commitment for IT 
Works, excluding amounts recognized as a software 
subscription liability, totaled $106,869,000 and will be paid 
in the following amounts: $14,187,000 in 2024, 
$14,660,000 in 2025, $14,962,000 in 2026, $15,274,000 in 
2027, $15,595,000 in 2028, and $32,191,000 in 2029 
through 2030. 
 
In addition to the above commitment with Cerner 
Corporation, the Capital Region Medical Center (CRMC), as 
reported in the Medical Alliance, has entered into a 
strategic information technology agreement with Cerner 
Corporation.  Cerner has assumed operational and 
administrative responsibilities for CRMC’s technology 
environment and services.  The agreement is effective 
through June 30, 2025 and will renew in five year 
increments at the end of the initial term. 
 
As of June 30, 2023, this contracted commitment totaled 
$12,063,000 and will be paid in the following amounts: 
$5,961,000 in 2024, and $6,102,000 in 2025. 
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The University entered into a Healthcare Delivery 
Agreement with Siemens Healthineers to commit to 
acquiring a comprehensive portfolio of equipment and 
applications as well as specialized consulting services, 
training and maintenance of equipment over a ten-year 
period.  The purpose of the agreement is to develop and 
embrace innovative new technologies and to build new 
medical centers that are equipped with state-of-the-art 
equipment. The University’s total outlays for the 
equipment, applications and services are $133,735,000.  
The equipment is recorded as a capital asset and the outlays 
related to the equipment is recorded as a financed purchase 
obligation and amortized over ten years. 
 
In addition, Siemens Healthineers and the University have 
each committed to provide a contribution with a fair market 
value up to $20 million towards joint research projects of 
the strategic alliance. 
 
Claims and Litigation - The University is currently involved 
in various claims and pending legal actions related to 
matters arising from ordinary conduct of business.  The 
University Administration believes that the ultimate 
disposition of the actions will not have a material effect on 
the financial statements of the University. 
 
Pollution Remediation – During fiscal year 2023, the 
University submitted a formal plan with the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC) for the decommissioning of a 
University owned building.  The estimated costs of the 
remediation and deconstruction of the building is recorded 

as a liability of $11,700,000. The NRC has two years to 
review and approve the plan.  Once approved, the 
University plans to begin the remediation and 
deconstruction in fiscal year 2025. 
 
The University has been working with the Voluntary 
Cleanup Program of the Missouri Department of Natural 
Resources (MDNR) to characterize subsurface 
contamination on a University owned property.  The 
University has received the results of the two-year sampling 
process in fiscal year 2016.  The University is awaiting a 
determination from MDNR and the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission (NRC) on decommissioning the site.  The 
University does not believe that the documents from the 
2016 sampling support the decision to add the site to the 
University’s NRC license due to an overestimated quantity 
of isotopes managed at the site.  The University made a 
formal request to remove the site from the NRC license.  If 
MDNR and the NRC find the dose assessment to be 
unacceptable, then the University will be required to fully 
decommission the site, including a sampling plan.  The cost 
of a sampling plan to characterize the chemical 
contamination is estimated at $1,000,000.  The University 
has not commenced any actions requiring the recognition 
of a liability for this property. 
 
 
 
 
 

  

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-109 February 8, 2024



13. RETIREMENT, DISABILITY, AND  
DEATH BENEFIT PLAN 
 
DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 
 
Plan Description – the Retirement Plan is a single-
employer, defined benefit plan for all qualified employees.  
As authorized by Section 172.300, Revised Statutes of 
Missouri, the University’s Board of Curators administers the 
Retirement Plan and establishes its terms.  
 
Benefits provided - Full-time employees vest in the 
Retirement Plan after five years of credited service and 
become eligible for benefits based on age and years of 
service.  A vested employee who retires at age 65 or older 
is eligible for a lifetime annuity calculated at a certain rate 
times the credited service years times the compensation 
base (average compensation for the five highest 
consecutive salary years).  The rate is 2.2% if the employee 
was hired before October 1, 2012, or 1.0% if the employee 
was hired after September 30, 2012. Academic members 
who provide summer teaching and research service receive 
additional summer service credit. The Board of Curators 
may periodically approve increases to the benefits paid to 
existing pensioners. However, vested members who leave 
the University prior to eligibility for retirement are not 
eligible for these pension increases. 
 
Table 13.1 - Retirement Plan Membership

2023 2022
Active Members 11,615    13,409    
Inactive Vested Members 6,513      6,098      
Pensioners and Beneficiaries 11,746    11,479    
Total Members 29,874    30,986     
 

Vested employees who are at least age 55 and have ten 
years or more of credited service or age 60 with at least five 
years of service may choose early retirement with a 
reduced benefit. However, if the employee retires at age 62 
and has at least 25 years of credited service, the benefit is 
not reduced. Up to 30% of the retirement annuity can be 
taken in a lump sum payment. In addition, the standard 
annuity can be exchanged for an actuarially-equivalent 
annuity selected from an array of options with joint and 
survivor, period certain, and guaranteed annual increase 
features. 
 
Vested employees who terminate prior to retirement 
eligibility may elect to transfer the actuarial equivalent of 
their benefit to an Individual Retirement Account or into 
another employer’s qualified plan that accepts such 
rollovers. The actuarial equivalent may also be taken in the 
form of a lump sum payment.  
 
In addition, the Retirement Plan allows vested employees 
who become disabled to continue accruing service credit 
until they retire.  It also provides a pre-retirement death 
benefit for vested employees. 
 
The Retirement Plan provides a minimum value feature for 
vested employees who terminate or retire. The minimum 
value is calculated as the actuarial equivalent of 5% of the 
employee’s eligible compensation invested at 7.5% per 
credited service year or the regularly calculated benefit. 
 
The University closed the defined benefit plan to new 
entrants as of October 1, 2019.  Employees starting on or 
after that date, are enrolled in a defined contribution plan.  
Vested defined benefit employees that are rehired on or 
after October 1, 2019 no longer receive creditable service 
credit within the defined benefit plan.
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Basis of Accounting – The Retirement Plan’s accounting 
records are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Employer contributions to the Retirement Plan are 
recognized when due and the employer has made a formal 
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with terms of the Retirement Plan. The 
Retirement Plan does not issue a separate financial report. 
 
Investment Valuation – Investments are reported at fair 
value. 
 
Contributions – The University’s contributions to the 
Retirement Plan are equal to the actuarially determined 
employer contribution requirement (ADC).  The ADC for 
those employees hired before October 1, 2012 averaged 
14.9% and 12.7% of covered payroll for the years ended 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  The ADC for those 
employees hired after September 30, 2012 through 
September 30, 2019, averaged 11.4% and 9.1% of covered 
payroll for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 

respectively.  Employees are required to contribute 1% of 
their salary up to $50,000 in a calendar year and 2% of their 
salary in excess of $50,000. An actuarial valuation of the 
Plan is performed annually and the University’s 
contribution rate is updated at the beginning of the 
University’s fiscal year on July 1, to reflect the actuarially 
determined funding requirement from the most recent 
valuation, as of the preceding October 1. This actuarial 
valuation reflects the adoption of any Retirement Plan 
amendments during the previous fiscal year.  The University 
contributed $132,849,000 and $114,999,000 during the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
Net Pension Liability – The University’s net pension liability 
was measured as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 
2022 and 2021, respectively.  Roll-forward procedures were 
used to measure the Retirement Plan’s total pension 
liability as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.  
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Total Pension 
Liability

Fiduciary Net 
Position

Net Pension 
Liability

(TPL) (FNP) (NPL)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

$5,341,914 $4,286,149 $1,055,765 

Service cost                  57,272  -                 57,272 
Interest                367,007  -               367,007 
Differences between expected and actual experience                  78,356                          -                   78,356 
Contributions – employer                          -                  132,849              (132,849)
Contributions – employee  -                  13,866                (13,866)
Net investment income  -                156,871              (156,871)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions              (312,471)              (312,471)  - 
     Net changes                190,164                  (8,885)               199,049 

$5,532,078 $4,277,264 $1,254,814 

Total Pension 
Liability

Fiduciary Net 
Position

Net Pension 
Liability

(TPL) (FNP) (NPL)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

$4,872,088 $4,557,145 $314,943 

Service cost                  60,290                          -                   60,290 
Interest                343,730                          -                 343,730 
Differences between expected and actual experience                114,655                          -                 114,655 
Changes in assumptions                243,508                          -                 243,508 
Contributions – employer                          -                  114,999              (114,999)
Contributions – employee                          -                    14,238                (14,238)
Net investment income                          -                (107,876)               107,876 
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions              (292,357)              (292,357)                         -   
     Net changes                469,826              (270,996)               740,822 

            5,341,914             4,286,149            1,055,765 Balances at June 30, 2022

Balances at July 1, 2021
Changes for the year:

Table 13.2 Changes in the Net Pension Liability (in thousands)

Balances at July 1, 2022
Changes for the year:

Balances at June 30, 2023
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – The October 1, 2022 
and 2021 actuarial valuations utilized the entry age 
actuarial cost method.  
 
Actuarial assumptions for October 1, 2022 and 2021 
included: 

2022 2021
Inflation 2.20% 2.20%

Rate of Investment Return net of 
administrative expenses (including inflation) 7.00% 7.00%

Projected salary increases 
(Including inflation) 3.5 - 4.1% 3.5 - 4.4%

Cost-of-living adjustments 0% 0%  
 
For purposes of determining actuarially required 
contributions, the actuarial value of assets was determined 
using techniques that spread effects of short-term volatility 
in the market value of investments over a 5-year period. 
The underfunded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized using a method that separately amortizes the 
initial unfunded liability as of October 1, 2021 over 20 years, 
the impact of the assumption changes over 20 years, and 
future experience gains and losses over 25 years and 15 
years, respectively.  Mortality rates were based on Pub-
2010 Teacher Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table with 
generational projection using scale MP-2020 for academic 
and administrative members and Pub-2010 General 
Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table with generational 
projection using scale MP-2020 for clerical and service 
members.     
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the October 1, 2022 and 
2021 valuation were based on the results of the most recent 
quinquennial study based of the University’s own 
experience covering 2016 to 2020.   
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total 
pension liability was 7.00%.  The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
employee contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that University contributions will be 
made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 
determined contribution rates and the employee rate.  
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current active and 

inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability.   
 

 Rate

2023 Net 
Pension 
Liability

2022 Net 
Pension 
Liability

1% Decrease 6.00% $1,959,956 $1,726,811
Current Rate 7.00% 1,254,814   1,055,765   
1% Increase 8.00% 672,695      492,627      

      (in thousands)

Table 13.3 Sensitivity of the Net Pension 
     Liability to Changes in the Discount 

 
 
Annual Rate of Return - The annual money-weighted rate 
of return is calculated as the internal rate of return on 
pension investments, net of pension plan investment 
expense.  The money-weighted rate of return expresses 
investment performance, net of pension plan investment 
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually 
invested.  The annual money-weighted rate of return on 
pension plan investments for the years ended June 30, 2023 
and 2022 was 3.9% and (1.8%), respectively.  
      

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long Term 
Expected 
Real Rate 
of Return

Public equity 34.0% 4.4%
Private equity 13.0% 5.1%
Sovereign bonds 8.0% 1.0%
Inflation linked bonds 9.0% 1.1%
Private debt 6.0% 6.9%
Risk balanced 12.0% 7.0%
Commodities 5.0% 4.5%
Real estate 13.0% 6.0%

100%

Table 13.4 - Asset Class Allocation 

 
 
Pension Expense- For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022, the Retirement Plan recognized pension expense of 
$284,907,000 and $196,499,000, respectively. Annual 
pension expense consists of service cost and interest on the 
pension liability less employee contributions and projected 
earnings on pension plan investments.  The difference 
between actual and expected earnings is recorded as 
deferred outflows/inflows of resources and recognized in 
pension expense over a five year period. 
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The pension expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 is summarized as follows:
 

2023 2022
Service cost $57,272 $60,290 
Interest       367,007        343,730 
Recognized portion of current-period difference between expected and actual 
experience         22,084          29,406 
Recognized portion of current-period difference for changes to assumptions                 -            62,454 
Contributions – employee        (13,866)         (14,238)
Projected earnings on pension plan investments      (294,229)       (321,365)
Recognized portion of current-period difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments

        27,471          85,848 

Recognition of deferred outflows of resources       281,397        128,922 
Recognition of deferred inflows of resources      (162,229)       (178,548)
Pension expense for fiscal year ended June 30, $284,907 $196,499 

Table 13.5 Pension Expense (in thousands)
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Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources- In accordance 
with GASB Statement No. 68, the University recognizes 
differences between actual and expected experience with 
regard to economic or demographic factors, changes of 
assumptions about future economic or demographic 
factors, and the difference between actual and expected 

investment returns as Deferred Outflows/Inflows of 
Resources.  At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Retirement Plan 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

As of June 30, 2023 2023 2022 2022
Differences between expected and actual experience             130,984                 4,417              122,369         6,725 
Changes in assumptions             118,600                      -                203,876               -   
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments               94,870                      -                          -         26,473 
Total 344,454 4,417 326,245 33,198 

Table 13.6 Deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions (in thousands)

 
 
The University recognizes differences between actual and 
expected investment performance included in deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources on a straight-line basis over 
five years.  Differences between expected and actual 
experience on actuarial assumptions are amortized over the 
average expected remaining service life of the University’s 
employees.  The following table summarizes the future 
recognition of these items: 
 

Fiscal Year Recognition
2024 127,152 
2025 60,138 
2026 125,275 
2027 27,472 

340,037 

Table 13.7 Future recognition of 

   Total

deferred outflows/(inflows) (in thousands)

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 
Plan Description - Employees hired after September 30, 
2012 participate in a single employer, defined contribution 
plan.  Each year the University contributes 2% of each 
employee’s eligible salary to a 401(a) plan.  Employees are 
able to contribute to a 457(b) and 403 (b) plan.  The 
University will match up to 3% of the employee’s 
contribution to the 457(b) plan with the University’s match 
funds going into the 401(a) plan.  Employees hired or rehired 
beginning October 1, 2019, will participate in a single 
employer, defined contribution plan.  Employees will be 
automatically enrolled in the plan to contribute 8% of 
eligible salary into a 457(b) plan.  Each year the University 
will match up to 8% of each employee’s eligible salary to a 
401(a) plan.  Employees in the defined contribution plans 
are immediately 100% vested in their contributions.  The 
University’s matching contributions vest following three 
years of consecutive or nonconsecutive service.   
 
The defined contribution plan recognized $47,846,000 and 
$37,385,000 of expense net of forfeitures of $6,162,000 and 
$5,859,000 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively.
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14. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
Plan Description – In addition to the pension benefits 
described in Note 13, the University operates a single-
employer, defined benefit OPEB plan. The University’s 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan provides 
postemployment medical, dental, and life insurance 
benefits to employees who retire from the University after 
attaining age 55 and before reaching age 60 with ten or 
more years of service, or after attaining age 60 with five or 
more years of service. As of January 1, 2018, employees 
must be 60 years old and have 20 years of service at the date 
of retirement to access the same percentage subsidy as 
retirees prior to January 1, 2018.  Employees with age plus 
years of service less than 80 but with more than 5 years of 
service as of January 1, 2018 receive a subsidy of $100 per 
year of service up to a maximum of $2,500 
annually.  Employees with less than 5 years of service as of 
January 1, 2018 do not receive an insurance subsidy and are 
not eligible to participate in the University’s plans. 
 
As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, 8,261 and 8,360 retirees, 
respectively, were receiving benefits, and an estimated 
6,594 active University employees may become eligible to 

receive future benefits under the plan. Postemployment 
medical, dental and life insurance benefits are also provided 
to long-term disability claimants who were vested in the 
University’s Retirement Plan at the date the disability 
began, provided the onset date of the disability was on or 
after September 1, 1990. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, 115 
and 119 long-term disability claimants, respectively, met 
those eligibility requirements. 
 
The terms and conditions governing the postemployment 
benefits to which employees are entitled are at the sole 
authority and discretion of the University’s Board of 
Curators. 
 
Basis of Accounting – The OPEB Plan’s financial statements 
are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, in 
accordance with GASB Statement No. 74.  Additionally, the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 75 are followed by the 
University for reporting its OPEB obligations and related 
footnote and required supplementary information 
disclosures.  The assets of the OPEB Trust Fund are 
irrevocable and legally protected from creditors and 
dedicated to providing postemployment benefits in 
accordance with terms of the plan. The OPEB Plan does not 
issue a separate financial report.
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Contributions and Reserves – Contribution requirements of 
employees and the University are established and may be 
amended by the University’s Board of Curators. For 
employees retiring prior to September 1, 1990, the 
University contributes 2/3 of the medical benefits premium 
and 1/2 of the dental plan premium. For employees who 
retired on or after September 1, 1990, the University 
contributes toward premiums based on the employee’s 
length of service and age at retirement.  
 
The University makes available two group term life 
insurance options. Option A coverage is equal to the 
retiree’s salary at the date of retirement, while Option B is 
equal to two times that amount. For each Option, graded 
decreases in coverage are made when the retiree attains 
specific age levels. The University pays the full cost of Option 
A and approximately 91% of the cost of Option B coverage. 
Coverage for group term life insurance ends on January 1 
following the retiree’s 70th birthday.  
 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, participants 
contributed $16,957,000 and $17,325,000, or 
approximately 53.6% and 52.2% respectively, of total 
premiums through their required contributions, which vary 
depending on the plan and coverage selection. In fiscal years 
2023 and 2022, the University contributed $14,706,000 and 
$15,846,000, respectively. 
 

The University makes available two long-term disability 
options to its employees. Option A coverage is equal to 60% 
of the employee’s salary on the date the disability began, 
when integrated with benefits from all other sources. 
Option B coverage is equal to 66-2/3% of the employee’s 
salary, integrated so that benefits from all sources will not 
exceed 85% of the employee’s salary. Both options have a 
149-day waiting period and provide benefits until age 65. 
The University pays the full cost of the Option A premium, 
while employees enrolled in Option B pay the additional 
cost over the Optional A premium. 
 
Net OPEB Liability – The total and net OPEB liabilities as of 
June 30, 2023 and 2022 were measured as of June 30, 2023 
and 2022, respectively, using actuarial valuations as of those 
dates. 
 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2023 2022

Total OPEB Liability 191,156$   199,702$   
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 42,410       39,922       
Net OPEB Liability 148,746     159,780     

22.19% 19.99%

Table 14.1  Net OPEB Liability (in thousands)

Net OPEB Liability Components:

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of Total OPEB Liability  
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Total OPEB 
Liability

Fiduciary Net 
Position

Net OPEB 
Liability

(TOL) (FNP) (NOL)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
$199,702 $39,922 $159,780 

Service cost                    2,180  -                   2,180 
Interest                    6,888  -                   6,888 
Differences between expected and actual experience                       858                          -                        858 
Changes in assumptions                  20,161                          -                   20,161 
Contributions – employer                          -                    14,706                (14,706)
Contributions – employee  -                  16,957                (16,957)
Net investment income  -                    2,509                  (2,509)
Expected/Actual benefit payments, including refunds of 
employee contributions                (14,727)                (31,684)                 16,957 
Change in benefit terms                (23,906)                          -                  (23,906)
     Net changes                  (8,546)                    2,488                (11,034)

$191,156 $42,410 $148,746 

Total OPEB 
Liability

Fiduciary Net 
Position

Net OPEB 
Liability

(TOL) (FNP) (NOL)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
$253,308 $39,491 $213,817 

Service cost                    4,380  -                   4,380 
Interest                    5,399  -                   5,399 
Differences between expected and actual experience                  (1,786)                          -                    (1,786)
Changes in assumptions                (46,087)                          -                  (46,087)
Contributions – employer                          -                    15,846                (15,846)
Contributions – employee  -                  17,325                (17,325)
Net investment income  -                         98                       (98)
Expected/Actual benefit payments, including refunds of 
employee contributions                (15,512)                (32,838)                 17,326 
     Net changes                (53,606)                       431                (54,037)

$199,702 $39,922 $159,780 Balances at June 30, 2022

Balances at July 1, 2021
Changes for the year:

Table 14.2 Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (in thousands)

Balances at July 1, 2022
Changes for the year:

Balances at June 30, 2023
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Consistent with the 
long-term perspective of actuarial calculations, the actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.  The entry age 
normal, as a level percent of pay, actuarial cost method was 
used in the June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 actuarial 
valuations.  
 
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
events far into the future. Examples include assumptions 
about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare 
cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision of actual results, are compared to past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required 

supplementary information following the notes to the 
financial statements, will present multiyear trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets 
is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Benefit projections for financial reporting purposes are 
based on the benefits provided under the terms of the 
substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and 
the historical pattern of cost sharing between the employer 
and plan members to that point. The projection of benefits 
for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly 
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual 
funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between 
the University and plan members in the future. 
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Total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions for all periods presented, unless otherwise 
specified:  
 

Inflation 2.20%

Total payroll growth
Varies based on age: 0.3% to 6.0% (including inflation) for academic and administrative; 0.2% 
to 3.1% (including inflation) for clerical and service

Discount Rate 3.65% for 2023 and 3.54% for 2022
Pre-65 Medical Plan trend rate 7.25% decreasing by 0.25% per year until an ultimate trend of 4.5% is reached
Pre-65 HSP Plan trend rate 6.5% decreasing by 0.25% per year until an ultimate trend of 4.5% is reached
Pre-65 Rx trend rate 8.25% decreasing by 0.25% per year until an ultimate trend of 4.5% is reached
Post-65 Medicare Base and Rx trend rate 3.02%, then 6.0% decreasing by 0.25% per year until an ultimate trend of 4.50% is reached.
Post-65 Medicare Buyup and Rx trend rate 11.5%, then 6.0% decreasing by 0.25% per year until an ultimate trend of 4.50% is reached.
Dental trend rates 2.00%
Administration expenses rate 3.00%

Healthy retiree mortality rates

For Academic and Administrative members: Pub-2010 Teacher Employee and Healthy 
Annuitant Headcount-Weighted Mortality tables, weighted 95% for males and 103% for 
females, with generational projection using Scale MP-2020.
For Clerical and Service members: Pub 2010 General Employee and Healthy Annuitant 
Headcount-Weighted Mortality Tables, weighted 124% for males and 112% for females, with 
generational projection using Scale MP-2020.

Disabled retiree mortality rates
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Annuitant Headcount-Weighted Mortality Table, weighted 
95% for males and females, with generational projection using Scale MP-2020.

Surviving spouse mortality rates
80% of the Pub-2010 Teacher Contingent Survivor Headcount-Weighted Tables and 20% of 
the Pub-2010 General Contingent Survivor Headcount-Weighted Tables projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2020.

14.3 Total OPEB Liability Assumptions
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Development of Discount Rate – The discount rates used 
to measure the total OPEB liability were 3.65% and 3.54% 
as of fiscal year June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, 
respectively.  The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that the University 
would not make additional contributions to the OPEB Trust 
and would continue to fund the plan on a pay-as-you-go 
basis.  Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s 
fiduciary net position was not projected to cover a full year 
of projected future benefit payments.  Therefore, all future 
benefit payments are discounted at the current index rate 
for 20 year, tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds 
with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. 
 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate and Healthcare 
Cost Trend Rates – The following presents the net OPEB 
liability of the University as well as what the University’s net 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current rate as well as the impact to the net 
OPEB liability if the healthcare cost trend rates were 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher. 
 
 
 
 
 

1% Decrease in Discount 
Rate (2.65%)

Current Discount Rate 
(3.65%)

1% Increase in Discount 
Rate (4.65%)

Net OPEB Liability $173,859 $148,746 $127,910

1% Decrease in Trend 
Rates  

Current Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates 

1% Increase in Trend 
Rates  

Net OPEB Liability $139,461 $148,746 $159,505

Table 14.4 Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Discount Rate and 
   Healthcare Cost Trend Rates  (in thousands)                 

 
 
OPEB Expense- For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022, the University recognized an OPEB expense of 
($68,962,000) and ($49,324,000), respectively.  Annual 

OPEB expense consists of service costs, interest on the total 
OPEB liability and the recognition of deferred 
outflows/inflows. 

 
The OPEB expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 is summarized as follows:
 

2023 2022
Service cost $2,180 $4,380 
Interest           6,888            5,399 
Recognized portion of current-period benefit changes        (23,906)                  -   
Recognized portion of current-period difference between expected and actual 
experience              210              (414)
Recognized portion of current-period difference for changes to assumptions           4,954         (10,668)
Recognized portion of current-period difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments

            (502)                (19)

Recognition of deferred outflows of resources           4,246            4,246 
Recognition of deferred inflows of resources        (63,032)         (52,248)
OPEB expense for fiscal year ended June 30, ($68,962) ($49,324)

Table 14.5 OPEB Expense (in thousands)

 
 
  

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-121 February 8, 2024



Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources- In accordance 
with GASB Statement No. 75, the University recognizes 
differences between actual and expected experience with 
regard to economic or demographic factors, changes of 
assumptions about future economic or demographic 
factors, and the difference between actual and expected 

investment returns as Deferred Outflows/Inflows of 
Resources.  At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the OPEB Plan 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to other postemployment 
benefits from the following sources: 

 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

As of June 30, 2023 2023 2022 2022
Changes of assumptions         15,208       116,523                   -       175,218 
Differences between expected and actual experience         10,879           8,421            14,477       12,258 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan 
investments                 -             2,255                   -              747 
Total 26,087 127,199 14,477 188,223 

Table 14.6 Deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB (in thousands)

 

The University recognizes differences between actual and 
expected investment performance included in deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources on a straight-line basis over 
five years.  Differences between expected and actual 
experience on actuarial assumptions are amortized over the 
average expected remaining service life of the University’s 
employees.  The following table summarizes the future 
recognition of these items: 

Fiscal Year Recognition
2024 (50,797)
2025 (42,538)
2026 (7,637)
2027 (140)

(101,112)

Table 14.7 Future recognition of 
deferred outflows/(inflows) (in thousands)

    Total  
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15. BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS 
Condensed combining information for the University’s blended component units as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 
and 2022 are presented as follows:  
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Table 15.1 Blended Component Units Condensed Financial Statements (in thousands)
Condensed Statement of Net Position

University Medical Alliance CSS CFMS Eliminations Total
Assets:

Current Assets 1,793,282$          59,406$              639$            468$         (716)$              1,853,079$      
Non Current Other Assets 4,328,032            37,626                -                   -                -                      4,365,658        
Capital, Lease and Subcription Assets, Net 3,909,607            89,085                -                   -                -                      3,998,692        

Deferred Outflows of Resources 426,771               -                          -                   -                -                      426,771           
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 10,457,692$        186,117$            639$            468$         (716)$              10,644,200$    
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities 720,318$             74,280$              3$                363$         (716)$              794,248$         
Noncurrent Liabilities 3,208,643            7,652                  -                   -                -                      3,216,295        

Deferred Inflows of Resources 160,420               -                          -                   -                -                      160,420           
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,089,381            81,932                3                  363           (716)                4,170,963        
Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,160,068            46,339                -                   -                -                      2,206,407        
Restricted - 

Nonexpendable 1,628,024            -                          -                   -                -                      1,628,024        
Expendable 696,484               4,779                  -                   -                -                      701,263           

Unrestricted 1,883,735            53,067                636              105           -                      1,937,543        
Total Net Position 6,368,311            104,185              636              105           -                      6,473,237        
Total Liabilities and Net Position 10,457,692$        186,117$            639$            468$         (716)$              10,644,200$    

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position

University Medical Alliance CSS CFMS Eliminations Total
Operating Revenues:

Other Operating Revenue 3,440,028$          231,259$            5$                5$             (2,260)$           3,669,037$      
Total Operating Revenues 3,440,028            231,259              5                  5               (2,260)             3,669,037        
Operating Expenses:

Depreciation and Amortization 262,261               15,246                -                   -                -                      277,507           
All Other Operating Expenses 3,787,570            248,429              44                861           (3,287)             4,033,617        

Total Operating Expenses 4,049,831            263,675              44                861           (3,287)             4,311,124        
Operating Income (Loss) (609,803)              (32,416)               (39)               (856)          1,027              (642,087)          
Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 930,760               5,276                  -                   -                -                      936,036           
Capital Contribution (Distribution) -                           -                          -                   1,027        (1,027)             -                       
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 320,957               (27,140)               (39)               171           -                      293,949           
Net Position, Beginning of Year 6,047,354            131,325              675              (66)            -                      6,179,288        
Net Position, End of Year 6,368,311$          104,185$            636$            105$         -$                    6,473,237$      

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
University Medical Alliance CSS CFMS Eliminations Total

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating 
Activities (334,554)$            (11,912)$             (35)$             (928)$        1,027$            (346,402)$        
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Noncapital 
Financing Activities 676,600               4,377                  -                   -                -                      680,977$         
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Capital and 
Related Financing Activities (430,045)              (1,142)                 -                   -                -                      (431,187)$        
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Investing 
Activities (25,958)                (9,217)                 -                   1,027        (1,027)             (35,175)$          
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (113,957)              (17,894)               (35)               99             -                      (131,787)          
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 807,076               31,432                516              94             -                      839,118           
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 693,119$             13,538$              481$            193$         -$                    707,331$         

2023

2023

2023
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Table 15.2 Blended Component Units Condensed Financial Statements (in thousands)
Condensed Statement of Net Position

University MREC Medical Alliance CSS CFMS Eliminations Total
Assets:

Current Assets 1,400,702$        -$               80,968$              677$            241$         -$                    1,482,588$         
Non Current Other Assets 4,619,982          -                 48,951                -                   -                -                      4,668,933           
Capital, Lease and Subcription Assets, Net 3,740,363          -                 94,147                -                   -                -                      3,834,510           

Deferred Outflows of Resources 404,080             -                 -                          -                   -                -                      404,080              
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 10,165,127$      -$               224,066$            677$            241$         -$                    10,390,111$       
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities 695,724$           -$               40,737$              2$                304$         -$                    736,767$            
Noncurrent Liabilities 3,172,523          -                 52,004                -                   3               -                      3,224,530           

Deferred Inflows of Resources 249,526             -                 -                          -                   -                -                      249,526              
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,117,773          -                 92,741                2                  307           -                      4,210,823           
Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,954,483          -                 48,798                -                   -                -                      2,003,281           
Restricted - 

Nonexpendable 1,582,260          -                 -                          -                   -                -                      1,582,260           
Expendable 691,694             -                 4,794                  -                   -                -                      696,488              

Unrestricted 1,818,917          -                 77,733                675              (66)            -                      1,897,259           
Total Net Position 6,047,354          -                 131,325              675              (66)            -                      6,179,288           
Total Liabilities and Net Position 10,165,127$      -$               224,066$            677$            241$         -$                    10,390,111$       

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position

University MREC Medical Alliance CSS CFMS Eliminations Total
Operating Revenues:

Other Operating Revenue 3,114,076$        -$               216,291$            45$              2$             -$                    3,330,414$         
Total Operating Revenues 3,114,076          -                 216,291              45                2               -                      3,330,414           
Operating Expenses:

Depreciation and Amortization 253,669             -                 14,851                -                   -                -                      268,520              
All Other Operating Expenses 3,447,937          58              240,117              44                1,576        (1,572)             3,688,160           

Total Operating Expenses 3,701,606          58              254,968              44                1,576        (1,572)             3,956,680           
Operating Income (Loss) (587,530)            (58)             (38,677)               1                  (1,574)       1,572              (626,266)            
Non-Operating Revenue (Expense) 495,578             (1,812)        7,527                  -                   -                1,812              503,105              
Capital Contribution (Distribution) 45,561               (3,038)        -                          -                   1,572        (2,418)             41,677                
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position (46,391)              (4,908)        (31,150)               1                  (2)              966                 (81,484)              
Net Position, Beginning of Year 6,093,745          4,908         162,475              674              (64)            (966)                6,260,772           
Net Position, End of Year 6,047,354$        -$               131,325$            675$            (66)$          -$                    6,179,288$         

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
University MREC Medical Alliance CSS CFMS Eliminations Total

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating 
Activities (313,875)$          (58)$           (48,771)$             (112)$           (1,697)$     1,572$            (362,941)$          
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Noncapital 
Financing Activities 748,326             -             9,515                  -               -            -                  757,841              
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Capital and 
Related Financing Activities (353,962)            -                 (2,717)                 -                   -                -                      (356,679)            
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Investing 
Activities (41,152)              (3,409)        32,580                -                   1,572        (606)                (11,015)              
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 39,337               (3,467)        (9,393)                 (112)             (125)          966                 27,206                
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 767,739             3,467         40,825                628              219           (966)                811,912              
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 807,076$           -$               31,432$              516$            94$           -$                    839,118$            

2022

2022

2022
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16. OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 

The operating expenses of the University are presented based on natural expenditure classifications.  The University’s 
operating expenses by functional classification are as follows: 
 
Table 16.1 - Operating Expenses by Functional and Natural Classifications (in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
 Salaries and 

Wages  Benefits 

 Supplies, 
Services and 

Other 

 Scholarships 
and 

Fellowships  Depreciation  Total 
Instruction 463,014$              151,268$           29,859$             -$                    -$                      644,141$              
Research 171,150                55,975               156,853             -                      -                        383,978                
Public Service 98,275                  35,916               100,325             -                      -                        234,516                
Academic Support 83,804                  33,191               52,328               -                      -                        169,323                
Student Services 53,746                  20,917               29,567               -                      -                        104,230                
Institutional Support 137,682                54,841               (19,945)             -                      -                        172,578                
Operation and Maintenance
   of Plant 38,297                  17,841               6,963                 -                      -                        63,101                  
Auxiliary Enterprises 933,905                227,293             1,019,361          -                      -                        2,180,559             
Scholarships and Fellowships -                            -                        -                        81,191            -                        81,191                  
Depreciation -                            -                        -                        -                      277,507             277,507                
    Total Operating Expenses 1,979,873$           597,242$           1,375,311$        81,191$          277,507$           4,311,124$           

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
  Restated

 Salaries and 
Wages  Benefits 

 Supplies, 
Services and 

Other 

 Scholarships 
and 

Fellowships  Depreciation  Total 
Instruction 444,034$              120,100$           6,377$               -$                    -$                      570,511$              
Research 159,724                42,596               115,928             -                      -                        318,248                
Public Service 77,129                  24,227               66,436               -                      -                        167,792                
Academic Support 74,780                  25,314               53,386               -                      -                        153,480                
Student Services 48,480                  16,524               26,312               -                      -                        91,316                  
Institutional Support 122,086                41,172               (12,205)             -                      -                        151,053                
Operation and Maintenance
   of Plant 34,473                  14,278               45,400               -                      -                        94,151                  
Auxiliary Enterprises 836,581                222,139             959,780             -                      -                        2,018,500             
Scholarships and Fellowships -                            -                        -                        123,109          -                        123,109                
Depreciation -                            -                        -                        -                      268,520             268,520                
    Total Operating Expenses 1,797,287$           506,350$           1,261,414$        123,109$        268,520$           3,956,680$            
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17. FIDUCIARY FUNDS – PENSION AND OPEB TRUST FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENTS 
Combining financial statements for the Fiduciary Funds – Pension and OPEB Trust Funds are as follows: 
 
Table 17.1 - Statement of Fiduciary Net Position (in thousands)

 Retirement  OPEB  Total  Retirement  OPEB  Total 
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 466,375$      43,340$   509,715$      729,317$      40,840$   770,157$      
Investment of Cash Collateral 18,392          -              18,392          31,802          -              31,802          
Investment Settlements Receivable 25,599          -              25,599          35,870          -              35,870          
Other Assets -                    923          923               -                    914          914               
Investments:

Debt Securities (2,745)           -              (2,745)           75,175          -              75,175          
Equity Securities 405,588        -              405,588        228,630        -              228,630        
Commingled Funds 2,255,888     -              2,255,888     1,996,345     -              1,996,345     
Nonmarketable Alternative Investments 1,157,194     -              1,157,194     1,289,517     -              1,289,517     
Total Assets 4,326,291     44,263     4,370,554     4,386,656     41,754     4,428,410     

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and

Accrued Liabilities -                    1,853       1,853            -                    1,832       1,832            
Collateral Held for

Securities Lending 18,392          -              18,392          31,802          -              31,802          
Investment Settlements Payable 30,635          -              30,635          68,705          -              68,705          

Total Liabilities 49,027          1,853       50,880          100,507        1,832       102,339        
Net Position Restricted for

Retirement and OPEB 4,277,264$   42,410$   4,319,674$   4,286,149$   39,922$   4,326,071$   

20222023
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Table 17.2 - Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position (in thousands) 

 Retirement  OPEB  Total  Retirement  OPEB  Total 
 Additions
Investment Income:

Interest and Dividend Income 29,735$        2,509$     32,244$        31,140$        98$          31,238$        
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in

Fair Value of Investments 140,958        -          140,958        (127,885)       -          (127,885)       
   Less Investment Expense (8,836)           -          (8,836)           (7,912)           -          (7,912)           
Net Investment Income 161,857        2,509       164,366        (104,657)       98            (104,559)       

Contributions:
University 132,849        14,706     147,555        114,999        15,846     130,845        
Members 13,866          16,957     30,823          14,238          17,325     31,563          
Total Contributions 146,715        31,663     178,378        129,237        33,171     162,408        
Total Additions 308,572        34,172     342,744        24,580          33,269     57,849          

Deductions
Administrative Expenses 4,986            -              4,986            3,219            -              3,219            
Payments to Retirees and Beneficiaries 312,471        31,684     344,155        292,357        32,838     325,195        

Total Deductions 317,457        31,684     349,141        295,576        32,838     328,414        
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position Restricted

 for Retirement and OPEB (8,885)           2,488       (6,397)           (270,996)       431          (270,565)       
Net Position Restricted for

Retirement & OPEB, Beginning of Year 4,286,149     39,922     4,326,071     4,557,145     39,491     4,596,636     
Net Position Restricted for
Retirement and OPEB, End of Year 4,277,264$   42,410$   4,319,674$   4,286,149$   39,922$   4,326,071$   

20222023

 

18. FINANCIAL IMPACTS FROM COVID-19 
AND RELATED FUNDING 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization 
designated the SARS-CoV-2 virus and the incidence of 
COVID-19 (COVID-19) as a global pandemic. Higher 
education, patient volumes and the related revenues were 
significantly affected by COVID-19 as various policies were 
implemented by federal, state, and local governments in 
response to the pandemic that led many people to remain 
at home and forced the closure of or limitations on certain 
businesses, as well as suspended elective procedures by 
health care facilities during the early stages of the 
pandemic.  As the pandemic continued, restrictions were 
eased and allowed for business to get closer to a pre-
pandemic state.  

During fiscal years 2022 and 2023, the University 
experienced increased in-person activity with growth in 
revenues as a result of the shift in the environment 
following the easement of restrictions.  Spending started 
trending towards pre-pandemic levels with pandemic 
related freezes in employee pay and other limits on 
discretionary spending being lifted. 
 
The University received stimulus funding of $21.5 million 
and $117.9 million in fiscal years 2022 and 2023, 
respectively from government agencies to help alleviate the 
fiscal burden caused during the pandemic. The University 
recognized the stimulus funding as government subsidies 
non-operating revenue on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
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Table 18.1 - COVID - 19 Funding Recognized (in thousands)
2023 2022

Higher Education Emergency Relief Funds - Round III

Student Aid         3,066        48,189 

Institutional         3,066        47,767 

Provider Relief Funds

   Healthcare 6,374       17,730       

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

   Healthcare         8,958           3,746 

Strengthening Institutions Program Award                 -              524 

Government Subsidies Nonoperating Revenue      21,464      117,956  
 
The funding received over fiscal years 2022 and 2023 are as 
outlined above, which were spent on providing student aid, 
refunds to students during lock downs, paying down 
student debt, course conversion to online learning, facility 
modifications, protective personal equipment, contract 
tracing and testing, cleaning and disinfecting supplies, 
COVID leave programs, internet and hardware for remote 
learning and work, as well as other similar costs related to 
remote learning and costs for reopening operations.  A 
portion of the funds were also used for replacement of lost 
revenues, which primarily consisted of tuition and state 
appropriations.  Provider Relief Funds and FEMA monies 
were received as a reimbursement of costs incurred by 
healthcare related to COVID. 
 

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
On June 30, 2023, the University entered into a 
reorganization agreement with The University of Missouri – 
Columbia Medical Alliance, CRMC Health Care, Inc. and 
Capital Region Medical Center (CRMC) to change the 
membership of CRMC effective July 1, 2023.  As of the 
effective date, the Medical Alliance became the sole 
member of CRMC with the sole power to appoint and 
remove the board of directors of CRMC.  The University of 
Missouri – Columbia Medical Alliance and CRMC are 
reported collectively as the blended component unit, 
Medical Alliance, in the University’s June 30, 2023 financial 
statements.  The change in memberships and board 
appointments does not change the reporting entity within 
the University’s financial statements.  However, the 
financial reporting standards utilized by CRMC will change 
from FASB to GASB accounting due to a governmental 
reporting entity appointing the board members of CRMC 
starting July 1, 2023. 
 
On August 31, 2023, CRMC executed a tender of the Series 
2020 bonds and full redemption of the Series 2017 bonds.  
The tender offer redeemed 79% of the Series 2020 bonds 
outstanding.  In consideration of the integration of CRMC as 
part of the reorganization agreement, the University has 
agreed and funded a cash grant to CRMC for an amount 
necessary for the bond redemptions.  The proceeds of the 
grant totaled approximately $34,415,000, which was used 
for the redemption of Series 2017 and Series 2017 bonds on 
August 31, 2023.  As of September 1, 2023, CRMC has 
$5,605,000 in par value of Series 2020 bonds remaining. 

OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-129 February 8, 2024



2023 2022~ 2021 2020 2019
Total pension liability
Service cost $57,272 $60,290 $65,786 $66,239 $62,845 
Interest 367,007 343,730 336,697 323,553 312,921 
Differences between expected and actual 
experience 78,356 114,655 (10,821) 68,943 23,046 
Changes of assumptions              - -        243,508              - -              - -              - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of 
employee contributions (312,471) (292,357) (283,941) (265,991) (241,020)
Net change in total pension liability 190,164 469,826 107,721 192,744 157,792
Total pension liability - beginning 5,341,914 4,872,088 4,764,367 4,571,623 4,413,831
Total pension liability - ending (a) $5,532,078 $5,341,914 $4,872,088 $4,764,367 $4,571,623 

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $132,849 $114,999 $115,006 $118,234 $115,980 
Contributions - employee 13,866 14,238 14,981 16,484 15,989 
Net investment income 156,871 (107,876) 1,056,355 28,604 183,826 
Benefit payments, including refunds of 
employee contributions

(312,471) (292,357) (283,941) (265,991) (241,020)

Other              - -              - -              - -              - -              - -
Net change in fiduciary net position (8,885) (270,996) 902,401 (102,669) 74,775 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 4,286,149 4,557,145 3,654,744 3,757,413 3,682,638
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $4,277,264 $4,286,149 $4,557,145 $3,654,744 $3,757,413 

Net pension liability – ending: (a)-(b) $1,254,814 $1,055,765 $314,943 $1,109,623 $814,210 
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability

77.32% 80.24% 93.54% 76.71% 82.19%

Covered-employee payroll* $970,746 $1,025,644 $1,116,123 $1,227,342 $1,187,435 
Net pension liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll

129.26% 102.94% 28.22% 90.41% 68.57%

*Covered-employee payroll as reported in the October 1, 201X funding valuation report
**Discount rate changed from 7.75% to 7.20%
~Discount rate changed from 7.20% to 7.00%

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year End June 30,
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2018** 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total pension liability
Service cost $63,624 $66,269 $68,328 $70,574 $71,995
Interest 305,781 296,885         288,438 275,762        263,566 
Differences between expected and actual 
experience 11,704 (22,741) (38,227) 13,226              - -
Changes of assumptions         257,616              - -              - -              - -              - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
contributions (233,083) (211,036) (203,300) (182,488)       (169,992)
Net change in total pension liability 405,642 129,377 115,239 177,074        165,569 
Total pension liability - beginning 4,008,189 3,878,812 3,763,573 3,586,499     3,420,930 
Total pension liability - ending (a) $4,413,831 $4,008,189 $3,878,812 $3,763,573 $3,586,499

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $92,200 $96,631 $99,454 $103,895 $113,688
Contributions - employee 15,299 15,218 14,976             14,486          14,113 
Net investment income 322,297 364,486 6,646             36,412        458,884 
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 
contributions

(233,083) (211,036) (203,300) (182,488)              (169,992)

Other              - -              - -              - -             (2,150)           (2,554)
Net change in fiduciary net position 196,713 265,299          (82,224) (29,845)                 414,139 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 3,485,925 3,220,626      3,302,850        3,332,695     2,918,556 
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $3,682,638 $3,485,925 $3,220,626 $3,302,850 $3,332,695

Net pension liability – ending: (a)-(b) $731,193 $522,264 $658,186  $       460,723 $253,804
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability

83.43% 86.97% 83.03% 87.76% 92.92%

Covered-employee payroll* $1,146,836 $1,144,412  $  1,129,784  $    1,109,431 $1,078,347
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll

63.76% 45.64% 58.26% 41.53% 23.54%

*Covered-employee payroll as reported in the October 1, 201X funding valuation report
**Discount rate changed from 7.75% to 7.20%
~Discount rate changed from 7.20% to 7.00%

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios – Last Ten Fiscal Years (continued) 
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year End June 30,
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Fiscal 
Year

Contributions 
made

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess)

Ended 
June 
30, 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
Level 1 and 

Level 2
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2

Level 1 and 
Level 2

2023  $      563,043  $  407,703  $    84,062  $   46,478  $       132,849 14.93% 11.40% 14.93% 11.40% 14.93% 11.40%                    -   
2022          577,882      447,762        73,160       40,791           114,999 12.66% 9.11% 12.66% 9.11% 12.66% 9.11%                    -   
2021          604,806      511,317        72,637       43,002           115,006 12.01% 8.41% 12.01% 8.41% 12.01% 8.41%                    -   
2020          641,902      585,440        73,177       45,430           118,234 11.40% 7.76% 11.40% 7.76% 11.40% 7.76%                    -   
2019          687,612      499,823        76,737       37,287           115,980 11.16% 7.46% 11.16% 7.46% 11.16% 7.46%                    -   
2018          733,289      413,547        68,856       22,662             92,200 9.39% 5.48% 9.39% 5.48% 9.39% 5.48%                    -   
2017          794,108      350,304 75,678       19,652             96,631 9.53% 5.61% 9.53% 5.61% 9.53% 5.61%                    -   
2016          857,918      271,866 82,446       15,442             99,454 9.61% 5.68% 9.61% 5.68% 9.61% 5.68%                    -   
2015          928,088      181,343 92,716       10,971           103,895 9.99% 6.05% 9.99% 6.05% 9.99% 6.05%                    -   
2014          984,787        93,560 106,160         6,334           113,688 10.78% 6.77% 10.78% 6.77% 10.78% 6.77%                    -   

                                                                                          

Schedule of Contributions – Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands)

* Covered-employee payroll as reported in the October 1 funding valuation report
** Net of employee contributions

Covered Employee 
Payroll*

Contributions as 
% of covered-

employee 
payroll**

Actuarially 
determined 

contribution as a 
Percentage of 

Payroll**

Contributions in 
relation to the 

actuarially 
determined 

contribution**
Actuarially determined 

contribution**

 
 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Money-
Weighted Rate 
of Return

3.9% (1.8%) 29.8% 0.6% 5.2% 10.2% 11.0% 0.3% 0.7% 16.2%

Fiscal Year End June 30,

Schedule of Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return on Pension Plan Investments - 
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information for Contributions

Valuation Date
Actuarial determined contribution rates are calculated as of September 30, 
21 months prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are 
reported.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal
Amortization Method Level dollar, Closed

Amortization Period
Unfunded liability 19 years for 2023, 20 years for 2022
Impact of assumption changes over 20 years
Experience gains and losses over 25 and 15 years, respectively

Asset Valuation Method

Market value of assets less unrecognized returns in each of the last five 
years. Unrecognized return is equal to the difference between the actual 
market return and the expected return on the market value, and is 
recognized over a five-year period. The actuarial value is further adjusted, if 
necessary, to be within 20% of the market value.

Actuarial Assumptions:
The actuarial assumptions used in the October 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021 
actuarial valuation were based on the results of an experience study for the 
period October 1, 2016 to September 30, 2020. 

Investment Rate of Return 7.0%, net of expenses
Inflation 2.20%

Projected Salary Increases
4.1% average (including inflation) for academic and administrative; 3.5% 
average (including inflation) for clerical and service

Cost-of-living Adjustments No future retiree ad-hoc increases assumed
Retirement Age Retirement rates vary between 5% at 55 to 100% at age 80.  

Mortality:

Healthy Non-annuitant lives
Pub-2010 Teacher Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, weighted 95% for 
males and 103% for females, with generational projection using Scale MP-
2020

Healthy Annuitant lives
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table, weighted 95% for 
males and females, with generational projection using Scale MP-2020

Disabled lives
Pub-2010 Teacher Employee Annuitant Mortality Table, weighted 95% for 
males and 103% for females, with generational projection using Scale MP-
2020

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
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2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $2,180 $4,380 $5,115 $4,019 $4,124
Interest 6,888 5,399 8,905 17,004        18,248 
Changes of benefit terms       (23,906)              - -              - -              - -               - - 
Differences between expected and actual experience 858 (1,786) (14,091) (4,425)     31,459       
Changes of assumptions 20,161 (46,087) (135,163) (81,032)       (17,565)
Benefit payments (14,727) (15,512) (18,438) (20,652)       (23,206)
Net change in total OPEB liability (8,546) (53,606) (153,672) (85,086)        13,060 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 199,702 253,308 406,980 492,066      479,006 
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $191,156 $199,702 $253,308 $406,980 $492,066 

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 14,706 15,846 18,551 20,672 23,363 
Contributions - employee 16,957 17,325 18,296 17,763 17,378 
Net investment income 2,509 98 12 920 1,469 
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (31,684) (32,838) (36,734) (38,413) (40,584)
Other                -                    -                - (2)                (1)
Net change in fiduciary net position          2,488             431           125           940          1,625 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 39,922 39,491 39,366 38,426 36,801 
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $42,410 $39,922 $39,491 $39,366 $38,426 
Net OPEB Liability  - ending (a) - (b) $148,746 $159,780 $213,817 $367,614 $453,640 

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB 
liability

22.19% 19.99% 15.59% 9.67% 7.81%

Covered-employee payroll  $  548,996  $  554,957  $574,498  $612,694  $  677,089 
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 27.09% 28.79% 37.22% 60.00% 67.00%

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year End June 30,
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $4,991 $9,414
Interest 17,434      14,557 
Differences between expected and actual experience              - -              - -
Changes of assumptions (18,998)       (23,880)
Benefit payments (22,828)       (24,934)
Net change in total OPEB liability (19,401)       (24,843)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 498,407      523,250 
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $479,006 $498,407 $523,250 

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 18,590          21,394              - -
Contributions - employee 16,480          14,750              - -
Net investment income 790                    914              - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (35,031)       (35,871)              - -
Other (172)                 (188)              - -
Net change in fiduciary net position 657                    999              - -
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 36,144          35,145              - -
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $36,801 $36,144 $35,145 
Net OPEB Liability  - ending (a) - (b) $442,205 $462,263 $488,105 

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB 
liability

7.68% 7.25% 6.72%

Covered-employee payroll  $721,517  $787,104 $1,157,156
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 61.29% 58.73% 42.18%

(Historical 
information prior to 
implementation of 
GASB 74/75 is not 

required)

(Historical 
information prior to 
implementation of 
GASB 74/75 is not 

required)

(Historical 
information prior to 
implementation of 
GASB 74/75 is not 

required)

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Last Ten Fiscal Years (continued)
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year End June 30,
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information for Net OPEB Liability
Benefit changes: 

Changes of assumptions: 

Discount Rate Changes:

2023 3.65%
2022 3.54%
2021 2.16%
2020 2.21%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%
2017 3.58%

The following plan changes were made effective January 1, 2023:
• Retiree health plan: in-network deductibles were increased and out-of-
network out-of-pocket maximums were increased.
• Healthy savings plan: in-network deductibles and out-of pocket maximums 
were increased and network coinsurance was decreased.

Based on past experience and future expectations, the following actuarial 
assumptions were changed:

• Claims and trends for all the Base and Buyup Medicare advantage plans 
were revised to reflect future expectations as of the June 30, 2019 
measurement date.

• The 75% pre-65 medical participation assumption was split to 90% in 
Retiree Health PPO Plan and 10% in the Healthy Savings Plan.  The 90% post-
65 participation assumption was split to 33% in the Base Plan and 67% in the 
BuyUp Plan at the January 1, 2017 effective date.

Discount Rates used in determining the Net OPEB Liability at June 30 
measurement dates are as follows:

• Claims and trends for all plans were revised to reflect future expectations 
as of the June 30 measurement date for fiscal years 2021-2023.

• New factors were used to estimate pre-65 individual retiree and spouse 
costs by age and gender based on a review of historical claims experience.  
The adjustment for morbidity or aging for post-65 per capital costs were 
eliminated.
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION Statistical Section

Supplementary Information ‐ Unaudited ‐ See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 331,177$              444,294$              490,771$              351,825$           357,065$          
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 375,126                 387,505                 301,526                 206,514              197,824             
Short‐Term Investments 447,368                 11,099                   26,123                   41,548                39,172               
Restricted Short‐Term Investments 64,886                   9,283                     6,319                     11,786                16,338               
Investment of Cash Collateral 787                        4,477                     9,230                     1,261                  3,616                 
Accounts Receivable, Net 478,576                 442,878                 403,958                 382,464              401,968             
Pledges Receivable, Net 45,521                   29,999                   34,796                   23,483                21,846               
Investment Settlements Receivable 10,600                   56,506                   218,197                 400,674              279,696             
Notes Receivable, Net 6,062                     6,719                     7,598                     7,854                  8,489                 
Leases Receivable, Net 2,124                     2,018                     1,770                     ‐                           ‐                          
Inventories 51,786                   52,511                   49,567                   42,648                41,155               
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 39,066                   35,299                   32,390                   28,689                29,501               
    Total Current Assets 1,853,079             1,482,588             1,582,245             1,498,746          1,396,670         

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,028                     7,319                     19,615                   4,699                  4,667                 
Pledges Receivable, Net 32,771                   39,686                   51,075                   40,125                40,677               
Notes Receivable, Net 31,774                   35,314                   38,580                   51,948                64,638               
Leases Receivable, Net 12,307                   13,310                   15,465                   ‐                           ‐                          
Deferred Charges and Other Assets 16,552                   14,916                   16,015                   12,413                18,352               
Long‐Term Investments 2,383,052             2,649,131             2,750,323             2,485,362          2,457,590         
Restricted Long‐Term Investments 1,888,174             1,909,257             2,079,815             1,688,180          1,525,301         
Capital Assets, Net 3,998,692             3,834,510             3,744,765             3,623,529          3,466,439         
    Total Noncurrent Assets 8,364,350             8,503,443             8,715,653             7,906,256          7,577,664         

Deferred Outflows of Resources 426,771                 404,080                 219,013                 486,517              335,808             

        Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources 10,644,200$         10,390,111$         10,516,911$         9,891,519$        9,310,142$       

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 170,287$              202,527$              206,727$              157,046$           194,885$          
Accrued Liabilities 229,417                 210,950                 194,217                 187,488              183,942             
Deferred Revenue 111,010                 108,681                 104,399                 92,516                93,268               
Funds Held for Others ‐                              ‐                              ‐                              ‐                           ‐                          
Investment Settlements Payable 14,907                   86,060                   378,200                 758,856              455,975             
Collateral Held for Securities Lending 787                        4,477                     9,230                     1,261                  3,616                 
Commercial Paper and Current Portion of 
  Long‐Term Debt 201,355                 53,337                   29,828                   16,882                399,074             
Long‐Term Debt Subject to Remarketing 66,485                   70,735                   74,820                   78,755                82,540               
    Total Current Liabilities 794,248                 736,767                 997,421                 1,292,804          1,413,300         

Noncurrent Liabilities

Unearned Revenue 13,471                   13,719                   13,967                   14,445                15,119               
Asset Retirement Obligation 62,433                   62,433                   62,433                   62,433                62,433               
Long‐Term Debt 1,629,283             1,812,677             1,792,336             1,765,871          1,199,968         
Derivative Instrument Liability 8,454                     16,248                   34,852                   45,958                35,542               
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability 148,746                 159,780                 213,817                 367,614              453,640             
Net Pension Liability 1,254,814             1,055,765             314,943                 1,109,623          814,210             
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 99,094                   103,908                 96,974                   92,177                85,771               
    Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,216,295             3,224,530             2,529,322             3,458,121          2,666,683         

    Deferred Inflows Resources 160,420                 249,526                 729,396                 133,851              83,480               

        Total Liabilities and Deferred
Inflows of Resources 4,170,963$           4,210,823$           4,256,139$           4,884,776$        4,163,463$       

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,206,407             2,003,281             1,967,055             1,882,134          1,801,977         
Restricted

Nonexpendable ‐ 
    Endowment 1,628,024             1,582,260             1,659,825             1,270,680          1,257,588         
Expendable ‐ 
    Scholarship, Research, Instruction & Other 574,519                 550,796                 558,475                 442,225              433,282             
    Loans 70,579                   73,990                   76,084                   79,000                82,217               
    Capital Projects 56,165                   71,702                   109,461                 41,205                66,364               

Unrestricted 1,937,543             1,897,259             1,889,872             1,291,499          1,439,038         
       Total Net Position 6,473,237             6,179,288             6,260,772             5,006,743          5,080,466         
            Total Liabilities & Net Position 10,644,200$         10,390,111$         10,516,911$         9,891,519$        9,243,929$       
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CHANGES IN NET POSITION Statistical Section

Supplementary Information ‐ Unaudited ‐ See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Operating Revenues

Tuition and Fees, Net 985,282$              931,616$              883,315$              873,335$           857,833$          
Less: Scholarship Allowances 350,952                 334,676                 300,642                 285,387              266,738             
    Net Tuition and Fees 634,330                 596,940                 582,673                 587,948              591,095             
Federal Grants and Contracts 233,777                 207,374                 186,052                 173,869              165,427             
State and Local Grants and Contracts 169,017                 126,388                 91,920                   90,723                89,386               
Private Grants and Contracts 105,485                 99,956                   93,937                   88,134                85,583               
Sales and Services of Educational Activities 23,908                   22,513                   19,821                   20,682                19,489               
Auxiliary Enterprises ‐
    Patient Medical Services, Net 1,906,047             1,733,615             1,643,468             1,505,424          1,510,024         
    Housing and Dining Services, Net 118,236                 108,868                 101,759                 89,917                102,603             
    Bookstores 31,302                   31,444                   29,025                   31,410                38,348               
    Other Auxiliary Enterprises, Net  358,792                 332,666                 320,638                 296,555              307,046             
Other Operating Revenues 88,143                   70,650                   68,976                   75,998                97,715               
        Total Operating Revenues 3,669,037             3,330,414             3,138,269             2,960,660          3,006,716         

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Wages 1,979,873             1,797,287             1,661,296             1,683,906          1,649,269         
Benefits 604,102                 506,350                 373,367                 605,309              579,385             
Supplies, Services and Other Operating Expenses 1,368,451             1,261,414             1,105,652             1,076,800          1,126,179         
Scholarships and Fellowships 81,191                   123,109                 93,895                   82,274                67,096               
Depreciation 277,507                 268,520                 239,883                 218,429              215,539             
        Total Operating Expenses 4,311,124             3,956,680             3,474,093             3,666,718          3,637,468         

Operating Loss before State Appropriations (642,087)               (626,266)               (335,824)               (706,058)            (630,752)           

State Appropriations 453,422                 424,949                 419,690                 364,412              408,797             
Operating Income (Loss) after State

Appropriations, Before Nonoperating

Revenues (Expenses) (188,665)               (201,317)               83,866                   (341,646)            (221,955)           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Federal Appropriations 29,273                   28,290                   27,964                   27,108                27,026               
Federal Pell Grants 55,221                   53,034                   55,539                   54,480                56,594               
Investment and Endowment Income (Losses), Net 196,801                 (147,423)               775,901                 32,285                199,243             
Private Gifts 121,805                 80,982                   84,233                   71,179                94,743               
Interest Expense (72,425)                 (74,846)                 (71,965)                 (64,696)               (66,585)              
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 19,466                   106,909                 169,576                 61,003                139                    
        Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 350,141                 46,946                   1,041,248             181,359              311,160             

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions, 

    Additions to Permanent Endowments,

    Extraordinary and Special Items 161,476                 (154,371)               1,125,114             (160,287)            89,205               

State Capital Appropriations 3,646                     682                        ‐                              ‐                           ‐                          
Capital Gifts and Grants 87,781                   30,528                   67,825                   40,648                67,106               
Gifts and Grants for Endowment Purposes 41,046                   41,677                   61,029                   45,916                30,524               
Extraordinary Item:

    Loss on asset impairment ‐                              ‐                              ‐                              ‐                           ‐                          
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 293,949                 (81,484)                 1,253,968             (73,723)              186,835             

Net Position, Beginning of Year 6,179,288             6,260,772             5,006,743             5,080,466          4,868,394         

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
    Principles ‐                              ‐                              61                          ‐                           25,237               

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Adjusted 6,179,288             6,260,772             5,006,804             5,080,466          4,893,631         
Net Position, End of Year 6,473,237             6,179,288             6,260,772             5,006,743          5,080,466         
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Operating Revenues

Tuition and Fees, Net 5.8% 5.5% 1.1% 1.8% ‐0.5%
Less: Scholarship Allowances 4.9% 11.3% 5.3% 7.0% 17.8%

    Net Tuition and Fees 6.3% 2.4% ‐0.9% ‐0.5% ‐7.0%
Federal Grants and Contracts 12.7% 11.5% 7.0% 5.1% 5.0%

State and Local Grants and Contracts 33.7% 37.5% 1.3% 1.5% 49.1%

Private Grants and Contracts 5.5% 6.4% 6.6% 3.0% 14.4%

Sales and Services of Educational Activities 6.2% 13.6% ‐4.2% 6.1% ‐25.6%
Auxiliary Enterprises ‐
    Patient Medical Services, Net 9.9% 5.5% 9.2% ‐0.3% 7.8%

    Housing and Dining Services, Net 8.6% 7.0% 13.2% ‐12.4% 1.8%

    Bookstores ‐0.5% 8.3% ‐7.6% ‐18.1% ‐7.4%
    Other Auxiliary Enterprises, Net  7.9% 3.8% 8.1% ‐3.4% 3.9%

Other Operating Revenues 24.8% 2.4% ‐9.2% ‐22.2% 65.3%

        Total Operating Revenues 10.2% 6.1% 6.0% ‐1.5% 5.5%

Operating Expenses

Salaries and Wages 10.2% 8.2% ‐1.3% 2.1% 3.6%

Benefits 19.3% 35.6% ‐38.3% 4.5% 21.8%

Supplies, Services and Other Operating Expenses 8.5% 14.1% 2.7% ‐4.4% 11.9%

Scholarships and Fellowships ‐34.0% 31.1% 14.1% 22.6% ‐1.4%
Depreciation 3.3% 11.9% 9.8% 1.3% 1.0%

        Total Operating Expenses 9.0% 13.9% ‐5.3% 0.8% 8.4%

Operating Loss before State Appropriations 2.5% ‐86.5% 52.4% ‐11.9% ‐25.1%
State Appropriations 6.7% ‐1.3% ‐15.2% 10.9% ‐1.8%
Operating Income (Loss) after State

Appropriations, Before Nonoperating

Revenues (Expenses) 6.3% 340.0% 124.5% ‐53.9% ‐116.8%
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Federal Appropriations 3.5% 1.2% 3.2% 0.3% 1.4%

Federal Pell Grants 4.1% ‐4.5% 1.9% ‐3.7% 2.2%

Investment and Endowment Income (Losses), Net 233.5% ‐119.0% 2303.3% ‐83.8% 0.1%

Private Gifts 50.4% ‐3.9% 18.3% ‐24.9% 21.6%

Interest Expense ‐3.2% 4.0% 11.2% ‐2.8% ‐6.3%
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) ‐81.8% ‐37.0% 178.0% 43787.1% ‐145.3%
        Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 645.8% ‐95.5% 474.1% ‐41.7% 8.2%

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions, 

    Additions to Permanent Endowments and

    Extraordinary Item ‐204.6% ‐113.7% ‐801.9% ‐279.7% ‐51.9%
State Capital Appropriations 434.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% ‐100.0%
Capital Gifts and Grants 187.5% ‐55.0% 66.9% ‐39.4% 218.3%

Private Gifts for Endowment Purposes ‐1.5% ‐31.7% 32.9% 50.4% ‐34.8%
Extraordinary Item:

    Loss on asset impairment 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% ‐100.0%
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 460.7% ‐106.5% 1800.9% ‐139.5% 29.5%

Net Position, Beginning of Year ‐1.3% 25.0% ‐1.5% 4.4% 5.8%

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
    Principles 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Adjusted ‐1.3% 25.0% ‐1.4% 3.8% 6.3%
Net Position, End of Year 4.8% ‐1.3% 25.0% ‐1.5% 4.4%

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(% increase / decrease from prior year)
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

+ Primary Reserve Ratio 0.60                       0.65                       0.73                       0.50                    0.54                   
/ Conversion Factor 0.133                     0.133                     0.133                     0.133                  0.133                 
= Strength Factor 4.51                       4.85                       5.50                       3.73                    4.04                   
x Weighting Factor 35% 35% 35% 35% 35%

= Ratio Subtotal 1.58                       1.70                       1.92                       1.31                    1.41                   

+ Return on Net Position Ratio 4.6% ‐1.3% 22.3% ‐1.5% 3.7%

/ Conversion Factor 0.020                     0.020                     0.020                     0.020                  0.020                 
= Strength Factor 2.32                       (0.66)                      11.13                     (0.73)                   1.87                   
x Weighting Factor 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

= Ratio Subtotal 0.46                       (0.13)                      2.23                       (0.15)                   0.37                   

+ Net Operating Revenues Ratio 4.6% 3.4% 10.6% ‐1.1% 2.4%

/ Conversion Factor 0.013                     0.013                     0.013                     0.013                  0.013                 
= Strength Factor 3.57                       2.60                       8.12                       (0.83)                   1.83                   
x Weighting Factor 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%

= Ratio Subtotal 0.36                       0.26                       0.81                       (0.08)                   0.18                   

+ Viability Ratio 1.36                       1.30                       1.33                       0.97                    1.16                   
/ Conversion Factor 0.417                     0.417                     0.417                     0.417                  0.417                 
= Strength Factor 3.26                       3.12                       3.19                       2.34                    2.79                   
x Weighting Factor 35% 35% 35% 35% 35%

= Ratio Subtotal 1.14                       1.09                       1.12                       0.82                    0.98                   

Composite Financial Index  3.54                 2.92                 6.08                 1.90               2.95              

Composite Financial Index ‐

Three Year Average 3.61                 3.63                 3.64                 2.72               3.26              

Composite Financial Index (CFI)  ‐ provides a methodology for a single overall financial measurement of the institution's health based on the four core 

ratios.  The CFI uses a reasonable weighting plan and allows for a weakness or strength in a specific ratio to be offset by another ratio result, which 

provides a more balanced measure.  The CFI provides a more holistic approach to understanding the financial health of the institution.  The CFI scores 

are not intended to be precise measures; they are indicators of ranges of financial health that can be indicators of overall institutional well‐being when 

combined with non‐financial indicators. 

Viability Ratio  ‐ measures the ability of the institution to cover its debt as of the balance sheet date, should the institution need to do so.  A positive 

ratio greater than 1.00 generally denotes strength.

Net Operating Revenues Ratio  ‐ measures whether the institution is living within available resources.  A positive ratio and an increasing amount over 

time generally reflects strength.

Return on Net Position Ratio  ‐ measures total economic return.  While an increasing trend reflects strength, a decline may be appropriate and even 

warranted if it represents a strategy on the part of the institution to fulfill its mission.

Primary Reserve Ratio  ‐ measures the financial strength of the institution by indicating how long the institution could function using its expendable 

reserves to cover operations should additional net position not be available.  A positive ratio and an increasing amount over time denotes strength.
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Primary Reserve Ratio (Expendable Financial Resources to Operations)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Scholarships,
Research, Instruction and Other 574,519                 550,796                 558,475                 442,225              433,282             
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Loans 70,579                   73,990                   76,084                   79,000                82,217               
Expendable Net Position 2,582,641$           2,522,045$           2,524,431$           1,812,724$        1,954,537$       

Operating Expenses 4,311,124$           3,956,680$           3,474,093$           3,666,718$        3,637,468$       
Less: Scholarships & Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Expendable Net Position 2,582,641$           2,522,045$           2,524,431$           1,812,724$        1,954,537$       
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Primary Reserve Ratio 0.60                     0.65                     0.73                     0.50                  0.54                 

Return on Net Position Ratio
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Change in Net Position 293,949$              (81,484)$               1,253,968$           (73,723)$            186,835$          
Average Net Position 6,326,263$           6,220,030$           5,633,788$           5,043,605$        4,987,049$       

Return on Net Position Ratio 4.6% ‐1.3% 22.3% ‐1.5% 3.7%

Net Operating Revenues Ratio (Annual Operating Margin)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Operating Inc (Loss) After State Appropriations (188,665)$             (201,317)$             83,866$                 (341,646)$          (221,955)$         
Federal Appropriations 29,273                   28,290                   27,964                   27,108                27,026               
Federal Pell Grants 55,221                   53,034                   55,539                   54,480                56,594               
Normalized Investment Income 264,427                 250,791                 227,911                 214,440              198,919             
Private Gifts 121,805                 80,982                   84,233                   71,179                94,743               
Interest Expense (72,425)                 (74,846)                 (71,965)                 (64,696)               (66,585)              
Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 209,636$              136,934$              407,548$              (39,135)$            88,742$             

Total Operating Revenues 3,669,037$           3,330,414$           3,138,269$           2,960,660$        3,006,716$       
Less: Scholarship & Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
State Appropriations 453,422                 424,949                 419,690                 364,412              408,797             
Federal Appropriations 29,273                   28,290                   27,964                   27,108                27,026               
Federal Pell Grants 55,221                   53,034                   55,539                   54,480                56,594               
Normalized Investment Income (a) 264,427                 250,791                 227,911                 214,440              198,919             
Private Gifts 121,805                 80,982                   84,233                   71,179                94,743               
Total Operating Revenues 4,511,994$           4,045,351$           3,859,711$           3,610,005$        3,725,699$       

(a)  Normalized investment income is equal to 5% of the rolling average balance of total cash and investments over

 the previous three fiscal years.

Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 209,636$              136,934$              407,548$              (39,135)$            88,742$             
Total Operating Revenues 4,511,994$           4,045,351$           3,859,711$           3,610,005$        3,725,699$       

Net Operating Revenues Ratio 4.6% 3.4% 10.6% ‐1.1% 2.4%

Viability Ratio (Expendable Financial Resources to Direct Debt)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted  $          1,937,543   $          1,897,259   $          1,889,872   $       1,291,499   $       1,439,038 
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Scholarships,
Research, Instruction and Other                 574,519                  550,796                  558,475               442,225               433,282 
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Loans                   70,579                    73,990                    76,084                  79,000                  82,217 
Expendable Net Position  $          2,582,641   $          2,522,045   $          2,524,431   $       1,812,724   $       1,954,537 

Expendable Net Position  $          2,582,641   $          2,522,045   $          2,524,431   $       1,812,724   $       1,954,537 
Total Direct Debt  $          1,897,123   $          1,936,749   $          1,896,984   $       1,861,508   $       1,681,582 

Viability Ratio                     1.36                      1.30                      1.33                    0.97                    1.16 
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Net Tuition per Student
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Gross Tuition and Fees 985,282$              931,616$              883,315$              873,335$           857,833$          
Less: Scholarship Discounts / Allowances (350,952)               (334,676)               (300,642)               (285,387)            (266,738)           
Less: Scholarship / Fellowship Expenses (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
Net Tuition 553,139$              473,831$              488,778$              505,674$           523,999$          

Net Tuition 553,139$              473,831$              488,778$              505,674$           523,999$          
Number of Students ‐ Fall Semester (FTEs) 51,906                   51,905                   51,967                   52,609                53,510               

Net Tuition per Student 10,657$           9,129$             9,406$             9,612$           9,793$          

State Appropriations per Student
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

State Appropriations 453,422$              424,949$              419,690$              364,412$           408,797$          
Number of Students ‐ Fall Semester (FTEs) 51,906                   51,905                   51,967                   52,609                53,510               

State Appropriations per Student 8,735$             8,187$             8,076$             6,927$           7,640$          

Educational Expenses per Student
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Total Operating Expenses 4,311,124$           3,956,680$           3,474,093$           3,666,718$        3,637,468$       
Less: Scholarships / Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
Less: Auxiliary Operating Expenses (1,958,318)            (1,958,318)            (1,958,318)            (1,860,131)         (1,790,379)        
Less: Grants and Contracts Expenses (508,279)               (433,718)               (371,909)               (352,726)            (340,396)           

Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Less: Auxiliary Interest Expense (13,260)                 (11,886)                 (11,886)                 (12,717)               (13,661)              
Net Educational Expenses 1,822,501$           1,504,495$           1,110,050$           1,423,566$        1,492,521$       

Net Educational Expenses 1,822,501$           1,504,495$           1,110,050$           1,423,566$        1,492,521$       
Number of Students ‐ Fall Semester (FTEs) 51,906                   51,905                   51,967                   52,609                53,510               

Educational Expenses per Student 35,112$           28,986$           21,361$           27,059$        27,892$       

Total Tuition Discount
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Scholarship Allowances 350,952$              334,676$              300,642$              285,387$           266,738$          
Scholarships / Fellowships Expense 81,191                   123,109                 93,895                   82,274                67,096               
Total Tuition Discounts ($) 432,143$              457,785$              394,537$              367,661$           333,834$          

Total Tuition Discounts ($) 432,143$              457,785$              394,537$              367,661$           333,834$          
Gross Tuition and Fees 985,282$              931,616$              883,315$              873,335$           857,833$          

Total Tuition Discount (%) 43.9% 49.1% 44.7% 42.1% 38.9%
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Unrestricted Financial Resources to Direct Debt
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Current Portion of Long‐Term Debt 201,355$              53,337$                 29,828$                 16,882$              399,074$          
Long‐Term Debt Subject to Remarketing 66,485                   70,735                   74,820                   78,755                82,540               
Long‐Term Debt 1,629,283             1,812,677             1,792,336             1,765,871          1,199,968         
Total Direct Debt 1,897,123$           1,936,749$           1,896,984$           1,861,508$        1,681,582$       

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       
Total Direct Debt 1,897,123$           1,936,749$           1,896,984$           1,861,508$        1,681,582$       

Unrestricted Financial Resources

to Direct Debt 1.02                 0.98                 1.00                 0.69               0.86              

Viability Ratio (Expendable Financial Resources to Direct Debt)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Scholarships,
Research, Instruction and Other 574,519                 550,796                 558,475                 442,225              433,282             
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Loans 70,579                   73,990                   76,084                   79,000                82,217               
Expendable Net Position 2,582,641$           2,522,045$           2,524,431$           1,812,724$        1,954,537$       

Expendable Net Position 2,582,641$           2,522,045$           2,524,431$           1,812,724$        1,954,537$       
Total Direct Debt 1,897,123$           1,936,749$           1,896,984$           1,861,508$        1,681,582$       

Viability Ratio 1.36                 1.30                 1.33                 0.97               1.16              

Total Financial Resources to Direct Debt
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Scholarships,
Research, Instruction and Other 574,519                 550,796                 558,475                 442,225              433,282             
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Loans 70,579                   73,990                   76,084                   79,000                82,217               
Net Position ‐ Restricted Nonexpendable 1,628,024             1,582,260             1,659,825             1,270,680          1,257,588         
Total Financial Resources 4,210,665$           4,104,305$           4,184,256$           3,083,404$        3,212,125$       

Total Financial Resources 4,210,665$           4,104,305$           4,184,256$           3,083,404$        3,212,125$       
Total Direct Debt 1,897,123$           1,936,749$           1,896,984$           1,861,508$        1,681,582$       

Total Financial Resources

to Direct Debt 2.22                 2.12                 2.21                 1.66               1.91              

Direct Debt per Student
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Total Direct Debt 1,897,123$           1,936,749$           1,896,984$           1,861,508$        1,681,582$       
Number of Students ‐ End of Fiscal Year (FTEs) 51,627                   51,627                   51,906                   51,466                52,827               

Direct Debt per Student 36,747$           37,514$           36,547$           36,170$        31,832$       
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Actual Debt Service to Operations
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Debt Service ‐ Principal 54,968$                 31,740$                 51,613$                 52,473$              36,441$             
Debt Service ‐ Interest 72,425                   72,644                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Total Debt Service 127,393$              104,384$              123,578$              117,169$           103,026$          

Operating Expenses 4,311,124$           3,956,680$           3,474,093$           3,666,718$        3,637,468$       
Less: Scholarships & Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Total Debt Service 127,393$              104,384$              123,578$              117,169$           103,026$          
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Actual Debt Service to Operations 3.0% 2.7% 3.6% 3.2% 2.8%

Capital Expense to Operations
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Depreciation Expense 277,507$              268,520$              239,883$              218,429$           215,539$          
Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Total Capital Expense 349,932$              343,366$              311,848$              283,125$           282,124$          

Operating Expenses 4,311,124$           3,956,680$           3,474,093$           3,666,718$        3,637,468$       
Less: Scholarships & Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Total Capital Expense 349,932$              343,366$              311,848$              283,125$           282,124$          
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Capital Expense to Operations 8.1% 8.8% 9.0% 7.8% 7.8%
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Unrestricted Financial Resources to Operations
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       

Operating Expenses 4,311,124$           3,956,680$           3,474,093$           3,666,718$        3,637,468$       
Less: Scholarships & Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Unrestricted Financial Resources

to Operations 0.45                 0.49                 0.55                 0.35               0.40              

Primary Reserve Ratio (Expendable Financial Resources to Operations)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Scholarships,
Research, Instruction and Other 574,519                 550,796                 558,475                 442,225              433,282             
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Loans 70,579                   73,990                   76,084                   79,000                82,217               
Expendable Net Position 2,582,641$           2,522,045$           2,524,431$           1,812,724$        1,954,537$       

Operating Expenses 4,311,124$           3,956,680$           3,474,093$           3,666,718$        3,637,468$       
Less: Scholarships & Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Expendable Net Position 2,582,641$           2,522,045$           2,524,431$           1,812,724$        1,954,537$       
Adjusted Total Operating Expense 4,302,358$           3,908,417$           3,452,163$           3,649,140$        3,636,957$       

Primary Reserve Ratio 0.60                 0.65                 0.73                 0.50               0.54              

Total Financial Resources per Student
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Net Position ‐ Unrestricted 1,937,543$           1,897,259$           1,889,872$           1,291,499$        1,439,038$       
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Scholarships,
Research, Instruction and Other 574,519                 550,796                 558,475                 442,225              433,282             
Net Position ‐ Restricted Expendable ‐ Loans 70,579                   73,990                   76,084                   79,000                82,217               
Net Position ‐ Restricted Nonexpendable 1,628,024             1,582,260             1,659,825             1,270,680          1,257,588         
Total Financial Resources 4,210,665$           4,104,305$           4,184,256$           3,083,404$        3,212,125$       

Total Financial Resources 4,210,665$           4,104,305$           4,184,256$           3,083,404$        3,212,125$       
Number of Students ‐ End of Fiscal Year (FTE) 51,627                   51,627                   51,906                   51,466                52,827               

Total Financial Resources per Student 81,559$           79,499$           80,612$           59,911$        60,805$       
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Net Operating Revenues Ratio (Annual Operating Margin)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Operating (Loss) After State Appropriations (188,665)$             (201,317)$             83,866$                 (341,646)$          (221,955)$         
Federal Appropriations 29,273                   28,290                   27,964                   27,108                27,026               
Federal Pell Grants 55,221                   53,034                   55,539                   54,480                56,594               
Normalized Investment Income 264,427                 250,791                 227,911                 214,440              198,919             
Private Gifts 121,805                 80,982                   84,233                   71,179                94,743               
Interest Expense (72,425)                 (74,846)                 (71,965)                 (64,696)               (66,585)              
Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 209,636$              136,934$              407,548$              (39,135)$            88,742$             

Total Operating Revenues 3,669,037$           3,330,414$           3,138,269$           2,960,660$        3,006,716$       
Less: Scholarship & Fellowships Expense (81,191)                 (123,109)               (93,895)                 (82,274)               (67,096)              
State Appropriations 453,422                 424,949                 419,690                 364,412              408,797             
Federal Appropriations 29,273                   28,290                   27,964                   27,108                27,026               
Federal Pell Grants 55,221                   53,034                   55,539                   54,480                56,594               
Normalized Investment Income (a) 264,427                 250,791                 227,911                 214,440              198,919             
Private Gifts 121,805                 80,982                   84,233                   71,179                94,743               
Total Operating Revenues 4,511,994$           4,045,351$           3,859,711$           3,610,005$        3,725,699$       

(a)  Normalized investment income is equal to 5% of the rolling average balance of total cash and investments over

 the previous three fiscal years.

Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 209,636$              136,934$              407,548$              (39,135)$            88,742$             
Total Operating Revenues 4,511,994$           4,045,351$           3,859,711$           3,610,005$        3,725,699$       

Net Operating Revenues Ratio 4.6% 3.4% 10.6% ‐1.1% 2.4%

Debt Service Coverage
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Total Debt Service 127,393$              104,384$              123,578$              117,169$           103,026$          

Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 209,636$              136,934$              407,548$              (39,135)$            88,742$             
Add Back:  Interest Expense 72,425                   74,846                   71,965                   64,696                66,585               
Add Back:  Depreciation Expense 277,507                 268,520                 239,883                 218,429              215,539             
Adjusted Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 559,568$              480,300$              719,396$              243,990$           370,866$          

Adjusted Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 559,568$              480,300$              719,396$              243,990$           370,866$          
Total Debt Service 127,393$              104,384$              123,578$              117,169$           103,026$          

Debt Service Coverage 4.39                 4.60                 5.82                 2.08               3.60              

Return on Net Position Ratio
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Change in Net Position 293,949$              (81,484)$               1,253,968$           (73,723)$            186,835$          
Average Net Position 6,326,263$           6,220,030$           5,633,788$           5,043,605$        4,987,049$       

Return on Net Position Ratio 4.6% ‐1.3% 22.3% ‐1.5% 3.7%
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Contribution Ratios
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

State Appropriations 453,422$              424,949$              419,690$              364,412$           408,797$          
Tuition and Fees, Net of Scholarship Allow/Exp 553,139                 473,831                 488,778                 505,674              523,999             
Auxiliary Enterprises 508,330                 472,978                 451,422                 417,882              447,997             
Grants and Contracts 508,279                 433,718                 371,909                 352,726              340,396             
Federal Pell Grants 55,221                   53,034                   55,539                   54,480                56,594               
Gifts 121,805                 80,982                   84,233                   71,179                94,743               
Normalized Investment Income (a) 264,427                 250,791                 227,911                 214,440              198,919             
Patient Care 1,906,047             1,733,615             1,643,468             1,505,424          1,510,024         
Other 141,324                 121,453                 116,761                 123,788              144,230             
Total 4,511,994$           4,045,351$           3,859,711$           3,610,005$        3,725,699$       

State Appropriations 10.0% 10.5% 10.9% 10.1% 11.0%

Tuition and Fees, Net of Scholarship Allow/Exp 12.3% 11.7% 12.7% 14.0% 14.1%

Auxiliary Enterprises 11.3% 11.7% 11.7% 11.6% 12.0%

Grants and Contracts 11.3% 10.7% 9.6% 9.8% 9.1%

Federal Pell Grants 1.2% 1.3% 1.4% 1.5% 1.5%

Gifts 2.7% 2.0% 2.2% 2.0% 2.5%

Normalized Investment Income (a) 5.9% 6.2% 5.9% 5.9% 5.3%

Patient Care 42.2% 42.9% 42.6% 41.7% 40.5%

Other 3.1% 3.0% 3.0% 3.4% 4.0%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

(a)  Normalized investment income is equal to 5% of the rolling average balance of total cash and investments over the previous three fiscal years.

Operating Expenses by Functional Classifications
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Instruction 644,141$              570,511$              506,739$              640,588$           691,250$          
Research 383,978                 318,248                 203,717                 217,016              209,365             
Public Service 234,516                 167,792                 158,967                 189,240              180,089             
Academic Support 169,323                 153,480                 129,833                 160,050              161,044             
Student Services 104,230                 91,316                   80,517                   102,503              103,966             
Institutional Support 172,578                 151,053                 90,697                   134,209              146,090             
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 63,101                   94,151                   92,409                   126,629              121,638             
Auxiliary Enterprises 2,180,559             2,018,500             1,877,436             1,795,780          1,741,391         
Scholarships and Fellowships 81,191                   93,895                   93,895                   82,274                67,096               
Depreciation 277,507                 268,520                 239,883                 218,429              215,539             
Total Operating Expenses 4,311,124$           3,927,466$           3,474,093$           3,666,718$        3,637,468$       

Instruction 14.9% 14.5% 14.6% 17.5% 19.0%

Research 8.9% 8.1% 5.9% 5.9% 5.8%

Public Service 5.4% 4.3% 4.6% 5.2% 5.0%

Academic Support 3.9% 3.9% 3.7% 4.4% 4.4%

Student Services 2.4% 2.3% 2.3% 2.8% 2.9%

Institutional Support 4.0% 3.8% 2.6% 3.7% 4.0%

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 1.5% 2.4% 2.7% 3.5% 3.3%

Auxiliary Enterprises 50.6% 51.4% 54.0% 49.0% 47.9%

Scholarships and Fellowships 1.9% 2.4% 2.7% 2.2% 1.8%

Depreciation 6.4% 6.8% 6.9% 6.0% 5.9%

Total Operating Expenses 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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Enrollment
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Undergraduate Students (Head Count) 51,837                   52,437                   51,466                   53,370 54,106

Graduate Students (Head Count) 13,706                   13,878                   13,801                   13,705 13,803

Professional Students (Head Count) 3,725                     3,519                     3,485                     3,403 3,351

Total Students (Head Count) 69,268 69,834 68,752 70,478 71,260

Undergraduate Students (FTE) 40,290                   40,781                   40,951                   41,575 42,406

Graduate Students (FTE) 7,734                     7,650                     7,567                     7,672 7,795

Professional Students (FTE) 3,604                     3,474                     3,449                     3,362 3,309

Total Students (FTE) 51,628 51,905 51,967 52,609 53,510

Acceptance Rate ‐ First‐time Freshmen 75% 76% 76% 75% 72%

Acceptance Rate ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 66% 69% 67% 64% 63%

Matriculation ‐ First‐time Freshmen 29% 29% 29% 32% 32%

Matriculation ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 59% 62% 63% 66% 66%

Demographics
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Male 46% 46% 47% 47% 48%

Female 54% 54% 53% 53% 52%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Missouri 83% 83% 83% 83% 83%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Out of State 17% 17% 17% 17% 17%

Undergraduate Full‐Time 71% 71% 73% 71% 72%

Undergraduate Part‐Time 29% 29% 27% 29% 28%

Graduate Full‐Time 46% 42% 40% 43% 45%

Graduate Part‐Time 54% 58% 60% 57% 55%

White 70.7% 71.6% 72.4% 72.0% 72.5%

Black or African American 8.2% 8.5% 8.8% 8.8% 8.8%

Non‐Resident Alien 6.3% 5.3% 4.8% 5.8% 6.2%

Asian / Pacific Is. 4.9% 4.9% 4.6% 4.6% 4.4%

Hispanic 6.1% 5.8% 5.5% 5.1% 4.7%

Other 3.8% 3.9% 3.9% 3.7% 3.4%

Degrees Awarded
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Baccalaureate 10,276                   9,826                     10,238                   10,855                11,401               
Graduate Certificate 1,096                     1,046                     1,017                     926                     1,026                 
Master's 4,249                     3,645                     3,657                     3,528                  3,577                 
Educational Specialist 95                          121                        130                        125                     106                    
Doctoral 708                        714                        744                        745                     754                    
First Professional Degree 965                        980                        953                        899                     882                    
Total 17,389                   16,332                   16,739                   17,078                17,746               
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Enrollment
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Undergraduate Students (Head Count) 23,745                   23,696                   23,383                   22,589 22,484

Graduate Students (Head Count) 5,764                     6,115                     6,172                     5,951 5,952

Professional Students (Head Count) 1,795                     1,590                     1,534                     1,474 1,407

Total Students (Head Count) 31,304 31,401 31,089 30,014 29,843

Undergraduate Students (FTE) 21,900                   21,702                   21,298                   20,525 20,566

Graduate Students (FTE) 3,172                     3,345                     3,449                     3,362 3,403

Professional Students (FTE) 1,713                     1,576                     1,522                     1,461 1,393

Total Students (FTE) 26,785 26,623 26,269 25,348 25,362

Acceptance Rate ‐ First‐time Freshmen 79% 77% 82% 82% 78%

Acceptance Rate ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 69% 71% 69% 71% 65%

Matriculation ‐ First‐time Freshmen 31% 32% 31% 34% 32%

Matriculation ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 65% 67% 64% 64% 60%

Demographics
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Male 44% 44% 45% 45% 46%

Female 56% 56% 55% 55% 54%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Missouri 79% 79% 80% 78% 78%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Out of State 21% 21% 20% 22% 22%

Undergraduate Full‐Time 93% 92% 91% 92% 92%

Undergraduate Part‐Time 7% 8% 9% 8% 8%

Graduate Full‐Time 45% 44% 48% 49% 53%

Graduate Part‐Time 55% 56% 52% 51% 47%

White 77.4% 77.1% 77.0% 76.5% 76.5%

Black or African American 5.5% 6.3% 6.7% 6.8% 7.0%

Non‐Resident Alien 4.5% 4.1% 4.3% 5.5% 6.2%

Asian / Pacific Is. 3.1% 3.0% 2.8% 2.6% 2.4%

Hispanic 5.3% 5.2% 5.0% 4.6% 4.3%

Other 4.2% 4.0% 4.2% 4.0% 3.6%

Degrees Awarded
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Baccalaureate 5,944                     5,092                     5,114                     5,641                  6,314                 
Graduate Certificate 464                        450                        381                        358                     386                    
Master's 1,598                     1,568                     1,423                     1,562                  1,473                 
Educational Specialist 63                          76                          91                          82                        59                       
Doctoral 321                        329                        366                        359                     426                    
First Professional Degree 437                        462                        426                        376                     357                    
Total 8,827                     7,977                     7,801                     8,378                  9,015                 
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Enrollment
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Undergraduate Students (Head Count) 10,179                   10,698                   11,027                   11,301 11,319

Graduate Students (Head Count) 3,767                     3,547                     3,346                     3,339 3,287

Professional Students (Head Count) 1,757                     1,758                     1,774                     1,748 1,769

Total Students (Head Count) 15,703 16,003 16,147 16,388 16,375

Undergraduate Students (FTE) 6,700                     7,079                     7,453                     7,744 7,853

Graduate Students (FTE) 2,298                     2,105                     1,871                     1,871 1,831

Professional Students (FTE) 1,718                     1,727                     1,749                     1,721 1,740

Total Students (FTE) 10,716 10,911 11,073 11,336 11,424

Acceptance Rate ‐ First‐time Freshmen 69% 76% 63% 61% 56%

Acceptance Rate ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 65% 70% 65% 56% 56%

Matriculation ‐ First‐time Freshmen 32% 30% 30% 33% 32%

Matriculation ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 57% 62% 64% 68% 65%

Demographics
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Male 42% 42% 42% 42% 43%

Female 58% 58% 58% 58% 57%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Missouri 78% 79% 78% 77% 77%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Out of State 22% 21% 22% 23% 23%

Undergraduate Full‐Time 55% 54% 55% 57% 58%

Undergraduate Part‐Time 45% 46% 45% 43% 42%

Graduate Full‐Time 49% 44% 34% 36% 37%

Graduate Part‐Time 51% 56% 66% 64% 63%

White 55.3% 58.7% 61.9% 62.2% 63.7%

Black or African American 9.8% 10.2% 10.3% 10.1% 9.6%

Non‐Resident Alien 11.5% 8.4% 5.8% 7.0% 7.0%

Asian / Pacific Is. 8.6% 8.4% 8.4% 8.2% 7.6%

Hispanic 10.0% 9.5% 8.5% 7.9% 7.5%

Other 4.8% 4.8% 5.1% 4.6% 4.6%

Degrees Awarded
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Baccalaureate 1,634                     1,623                     1,808                     1,903                  1,778                 
Graduate Certificate 87                          100                        72                          53                        64                       
Master's 1,498                     1,042                     1,102                     892                     859                    
Educational Specialist 12                          14                          16                          24                        24                       
Doctoral 132                        136                        135                        138                     135                    
First Professional Degree 484                        481                        480                        477                     486                    
Total 3,847                     3,396                     3,613                     3,487                  3,346                 

 2023 Financial Report  |  UM System  |  118   OPEN - AUD - INFO 3-151 February 8, 2024



STUDENT INFORMATION - MISSOURI S&T Statistical Section

Supplementary Information ‐ Unaudited ‐ See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report

Enrollment
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Undergraduate Students (Head Count) 5,498                     5,696                     6,083                     6,454 6,843

Graduate Students (Head Count) 1,582                     1,545                     1,559                     1,634 1,758

Professional Students (Head Count) ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                      ‐                     
Total Students (Head Count) 7,080 7,241 7,642 8,088 8,601

Undergraduate Students (FTE) 4,951                     5,078                     5,471                     5,739 6,123

Graduate Students (FTE) 932                        867                        874                        986 1,113

Professional Students (FTE) ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                      ‐                     
Total Students (FTE) 5,883 5,945 6,345 6,725 7,236

Acceptance Rate ‐ First‐time Freshmen 81% 85% 81% 79% 84%

Acceptance Rate ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 82% 80% 83% 70% 74%

Matriculation ‐ First‐time Freshmen 22% 25% 25% 29% 36%

Matriculation ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 46% 52% 54% 58% 65%

Note:   Rolla's pre‐application advising process encourages unqualified students to apply elsewhere, thereby producing misleading

acceptance rate figures.

Demographics
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Male 76% 77% 77% 76% 76%

Female 24% 23% 23% 24% 24%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Missouri 83% 84% 86% 86% 86%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Out of State 17% 16% 14% 14% 14%

Undergraduate Full‐Time 89% 89% 89% 88% 89%

Undergraduate Part‐Time 11% 11% 11% 12% 11%

Graduate Full‐Time 65% 59% 50% 56% 60%

Graduate Part‐Time 35% 41% 50% 44% 40%

White 73.1% 74.7% 75.7% 75.1% 75.5%

Black or African American 3.2% 3.4% 3.7% 3.4% 3.1%

Non‐Resident Alien 11.1% 9.3% 8.5% 9.9% 10.5%

Asian / Pacific Is. 4.1% 4.2% 4.0% 4.0% 3.7%

Hispanic 5.3% 5.0% 4.7% 4.3% 3.8%

Other 3.2% 3.4% 3.4% 3.3% 3.4%

Degrees Awarded
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Baccalaureate 1,205                     1,325                     1,427                     1,423                  1,388                 
Graduate Certificate 360                        347                        429                        410                     454                    
Master's 475                        400                        413                        427                     517                    
Educational Specialist ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                      ‐                     
Doctoral 89                          113                        118                        119                     101                    
First Professional Degree ‐                         ‐                         ‐                         ‐                      ‐                     
Total 2,129                     2,185                     2,387                     2,379                  2,460                 
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STUDENT INFORMATION - ST. LOUIS Statistical Section

Supplementary Information ‐ Unaudited ‐ See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report

Enrollment
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Undergraduate Students (Head Count) 12,415                   12,347                   10,973                   13,026 13,460

Graduate Students (Head Count) 2,593                     2,671                     2,724                     2,781 2,806

Professional Students (Head Count) 173                        171                        177                        181 175

Total Students (Head Count) 15,181 15,189 13,874 15,988 16,441

Undergraduate Students (FTE) 6,739                     6,924                     6,730                     7,568 7,865

Graduate Students (FTE) 1,331                     1,333                     1,372                     1,452 1,448

Professional Students (FTE) 173                        171                        177                        181 175

Total Students (FTE) 8,243 8,428 8,279 9,201 9,488

Acceptance Rate ‐ First‐time Freshmen 51% 57% 58% 52% 52%

Acceptance Rate ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 61% 64% 63% 63% 69%

Matriculation ‐ First‐time Freshmen 22% 17% 21% 25% 27%

Matriculation ‐ Undergraduate Transfers 57% 58% 64% 70% 72%

Demographics
Fall Semester 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Male 40% 40% 41% 41% 41%

Female 60% 60% 59% 59% 59%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Missouri 95% 94% 93% 94% 94%

Undergraduate Residence ‐ Out of State 5% 6% 7% 6% 6%

Undergraduate Full‐Time 34% 36% 45% 39% 40%

Undergraduate Part‐Time 66% 64% 55% 61% 60%

Graduate Full‐Time 30% 26% 27% 30% 30%

Graduate Part‐Time 70% 74% 73% 70% 70%

White 71.5% 72.2% 72.1% 72.0% 72.2%

Black or African American 14.4% 13.9% 14.5% 14.3% 14.2%

Non‐Resident Alien 2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 3.0% 2.9%

Asian / Pacific Is. 5.1% 5.4% 4.7% 4.8% 5.0%

Hispanic 3.9% 3.4% 3.4% 3.4% 3.2%

Other 2.5% 2.5% 2.7% 2.5% 2.5%

Degrees Awarded
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Baccalaureate 1,493                     1,786                     1,889                     1,888                  1,921                 
Graduate Certificate 185                        149                        135                        105                     122                    
Master's 678                        635                        719                        647                     728                    
Educational Specialist 20                          31                          23                          19                        23                       
Doctoral 166                        136                        125                        130                     92                       
First Professional Degree 44                          37                          47                          46                        39                       
Total 2,586                     2,774                     2,938                     2,835                  2,925                 
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Attachment B 

Management Representation Letter 
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University of Missouri System  October 18, 2023 

Attachment C 

Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements 
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University of Missouri System
ATTACHMENT

This analysis and the attached "Schedule ofUncorrected Misstatements (Adjustments Passed)" reflect the effects on the financial
statements if the uncorrected misstatements identified were corrected.

Business Type Activities (Government-Wide Statements)

QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS

Before
Misstatements

Subsequent to
Misstatements %

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets & Deferred Outflows

Cunent Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities & Deferred Inflows

Current Ratio

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows

Total Net Position

Total Revenue

Total Expense

Change in Net Position

1,853,079 6,844 r,8s9,92t 037%

8,79t,121 (8e3) 8,790,228 -0.01%

(794,248) (14,269) (808,517) 1.\OV.

(3,376,7rs) (J,376,71s)

2.33 2.30 -1.41%

10,644,200 5,951 I 0,650,1 5 I o.06%

(4,170,963) (14,269) (4,18s,232) 0.34%

(6,473,237) 8,318 (6,464,9r9) -o.13%

(4,679,496) (e,434) (4,688,930) 0.20%

4"385,547 29 4,385,576

(293,949) (e,40s) (303,3s4) 3.20o/o
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  February 8, 2024 
 OPEN – AUD – 1-1 

Engagement of Independent Auditors and Related Fees 
UM 

 
 
The Executive Vice President for Finance and CFO recommends that FORVIS, LLP be 
employed to provide audit services to the University of Missouri for fiscal year 2024 for 
fees of $616,0152 plus expenses not to exceed $74,581.  The total fees and expenses of 
$690,733 represents an overall increase of 1.6%.  The increase in fees is a result of an 
increase in scope for the NCAA agreed upon procedures for Division II programs, which 
are performed every three years as well as an increase in the Consumer Price Index over 
the prior year.  The increases were offset by a restructuring of financial statement audits in 
relation to the integration of Capital Region Medical Center into the University’s financial 
statement audit.  Beginning in fiscal year 2024, Capital Region Medical Center will no 
longer have separate audited financial statements and will be combined with the costs of 
audit procedures for the University’s Health Care System, resulting in a savings of $47,246.   
 
Fiscal year 2024 fees cover the following audit services:  combined financial statements of 
the University of Missouri System, compliance audit of the University of Missouri System 
in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance; and minimum agreed-upon procedures 
required by the NCAA for the Intercollegiate Athletics Departments of the Columbia, 
Kansas City, Missouri S&T and St Louis campuses.  The contract for audit services was 
competitively bid in 2020 with services covering audits for fiscal year 2021 through 2025.  
The University will begin another competitive bid process in the spring of 2025 for audits 
beginning in fiscal year 2026. 
 
Fees for required NCAA Athletic Department minimum agreed upon procedures increased 
by $35,950 due to the inclusion of the UM-St Louis and Missouri S&T athletic departments 
in the scope.  The NCAA requires that minimum agreed-upon procedures for a Division II 
university intercollegiate athletic program be performed every three years.  These 
procedures were last performed for the Missouri University of Science and Technology 
campus and the UM – St. Louis campus in fiscal year 2021 and will be required in fiscal 
year 2024.  As negotiated in the competitive bid process, FORVIS’s rates increase annually 
by inflation as measured by Consumer Price Index - Urban. 
 
  



  February 8, 2024 
 OPEN – AUD – 1-2 

No. 1 
 
 
 
Recommended Action –  Engagement of Independent Auditors and Related Fees, UM 
 
 
 
 It was recommended by Vice President Rapp, endorsed by President Choi, moved 
by Curator _________, seconded by Curator __________, that the following action be 
approved: 
 
 that the Vice President for Finance be authorized to employ the firm of FORVIS, 

LLP to provide audit services to the University of Missouri for fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2024 for fees of $690,733.   

 
 

Roll call vote of Committee:  YES   NO 
 
Curator Brncic 
Curator Holloway 
Curator Sinquefield 
Curator Williams 
 
The motion                       . 
 
Roll call vote:    YES  NO 

Curator Blitz 
Curator Brncic 
Curator Fry 
Curator Graves 
Curator Holloway 
Curator Layman 
Curator Sinquefield 
Curator Wenneker 
Curator Williams 

 
The motion                       . 

 



University of Missouri System
Audits of Fiscal year ended June 30, 2024

6/30/2023 
Fees

Inflation 
Adjustment

Known 
scope 

change

 Total Fees 
FY 2024 

6/30/2023 
Expenses

Inflation 
Adjustment

Known 
scope 

change

 Total 
Expenses 
FY 2024 

Total Fees & 
Expenses 
FY 2023

Total Fees & 
Expenses 
FY 2024

Combined financial statements of the 
University of Missouri System 253,066$    8,604$        -$                261,670$    43,303$      1,472$        -$                44,775$      296,368$    306,445$    

  
Compliance audit of the University of Missouri 
System in accordance with OMB Uniform 
Guidance 139,097$    4,729$        -$                143,826$    12,535$      426$           -$                12,961$      151,632$    156,787$    

  
Financial statements of the University Health 
System 89,740$      3,051$        50,000$      142,791$    9,914$        337$           4,500$        14,751$      99,654$      157,542$    

  
Financial statements of the Capital Region 
Medical Center 89,740$      3,051$        (92,791)$     (0)$              8,661$        294$           (8,955)$       0$               98,400$      (0)$              

  
Minimum agreed-upon procedures required 
by the NCAA for the Intercollegiate Athletics 
Departments of the Columbia, Kansas City, 
Rolla and St Louis campuses 32,817$      1,116$        33,933$      67,866$      1,192$        41$             861$           2,093$        34,009$      69,959$      

  
     Total 604,459$    20,552$      (8,858)$       616,152$    75,604$      2,571$        (3,594)$       74,581$      680,063$     690,733$    

CPI-U 3.2% Oct-23

Additional audit hours incurred beyond the anticipated normal scope of auditing services will be discussed with UMS management on a timely basis and additional billings will be negotiated at an hourly 
rate of $225.00.  The following instances are considered a change in the normal scope of the audits: 1)  greater than six major federal award programs under OMB Uniform Guidance Single Audit and 
the effects of requirements imposed on Federal dollars related to the stimulus funding  2) implementation of new Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, Accounting Standards 
Codifications (including the additional effects that ASC's may have at CRMC), or AICPA Auditing Standards, 3) scope of audit work changing dramatically, significant difficulties encountered beyond the 
expected scope of the audits, or inefficiencies caused by delays in PBC's not being completed according to originally agreed upon schedule.  The above noted fees assume between 150 and 200 hours 
of direct audit assistance will be provided from a University Intern.

Fees Expenses
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No. 2 
 
 
Recommended Action - Resolution for Executive Session of the Audit, Compliance and 

Ethics Committee, February 8, 2024 
 
 It was moved by Curator __________ and seconded by Curator __________, that 

there shall be an executive session with a closed record and closed vote of the Board Audit, 

Compliance and Ethics Committee meeting February 8, 2024, for consideration of: 

 

• Section 610.021(1), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which include 
legal actions, causes of action or litigation, and confidential or privileged 
communications with counsel; and 
 

• Section 610.021(3), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which include 
hiring, firing, disciplining, or promoting of particular employees; and  
 

• Section 610.021(12), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 
include sealed bids and related documents and sealed proposals and related documents or 
documents related to a negotiated contract; and  
 

• Section 610.021(13), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 
include individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings, or records 
pertaining to employees or applicants for employment; and  
 

• Section 610.021 (17), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 
include confidential or privileged communications between a public governmental body 
and its auditor. 

 
 

 
Roll call vote of the Committee:  YES  NO 

Curator Brncic 

Curator Holloway 

Curator Sinquefield 

Curator Williams  

 
 
The motion     . 

 
 



University of Missouri
Board of Curators Meeting | February 8, 2024

Mun Y. Choi, President 



Cotton Bowl Champions!
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We already surpassed the historic high and we’re only in January



Retention and Graduation Rates

4

86.9%

91.3%

86%

88%

90%

92%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

68.2%

76.0%

66%

68%

70%

72%

74%

76%

78%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Retention Rates 6-Year Graduation Rates



Graduation Rates
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6-Year
Graduation Rates

MU 76% (2023)
Truman State 72%
S&T 64% (2023)
MSU 59%
UMSL 57% (2023)
UMKC 55% (2023)
SEMO 54%
UCM 53%
Northwest Missouri 52%
Missouri Southern 37%
Missouri Western 36%
Lincoln 26%
Harris Stowe 19%

6-Year Pell
Graduation Rates

MU 67% (2023)
Truman State 61%
UMSL 55% (2023)
S&T 51% (2023)
MSU 48%
UMKC 46% (2023)
SEMO 46%
UCM 42%
Northwest Missouri 40%
Missouri Western 30%
Missouri Southern 29%
Lincoln 24%
Harris Stowe 17%

Graduation Rates
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6-Year Black/African American
Graduation Rates

MU 67% (2023)
Missouri State 47%
Truman State 47%
UMSL 46% (2023)
S&T 42% (2023)
UMKC 39% (2023)
SEMO 36%
UCM 34%
Missouri Western 26%
Lincoln University 22%
Northwest Missouri 21%
Harris-Stowe 16%
Missouri Southern 14%

6-Year Hispanic
Graduation Rates

UMSL 72% (2023)
MU 71% (2023)
Missouri State 61%
Truman State 56%
Northwest Missouri 49%
S&T 44% (2023)
UMKC 43% (2023)
UCM 39%
SEMO 39%
Lincoln University 38%
Missouri Southern 33%
Harris-Stowe 29%
Missouri Western 0%

Graduation Rates
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MizzouMade: Vibrant Student Experiences

Brian Thomas| M.D.-Ph.D. candidate
School of Medicine
• NIH F30 Fellow
• Researcher in Dr. Donald Burke’s lab

Cynthia Tang | M.D.-Ph.D. candidate
School of Medicine
• NIH F30 Fellow
• Researcher in Dr. Henry Wan’s lab

Grant Norfleet | Agricultural Education
• Selected National FFA Secretary
• Dedicating one year of service to the 

organization

Jenny Park| Biological Sciences and Psychology
• Rhodes Scholar finalist
• Goldwater Scholar

• 35% of incoming students ranked in 
the top 10% of their class in 2023 as 
compared to 29% in 2017

• 95.4% of 2022 undergrad students 
have successful career outcome 6 
months after graduation

• 2024 Freshmen class will be 33% 
higher than in 2017, with ~5,500 
students
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Why Students Choose Mizzou

#7 Best Value among 
flagships (USNWR)

#13 Best Public 
University for Future 

Leaders (TIME)

Commitment to 
experiential learning

Excellent 
academics, a 

beautiful campus, 
and the 

opportunity for 
lifelong friendships

Undergraduate 
studies that can 

lead to MD, DVM, 
JD, PhD, DPT, OPT 
(all on the same 

campus)

Provides real-life 
experiences for 
students to be 

successful
in their careers
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Why Students Choose Mizzou
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• 6,351: Students are members of Fraternity & 
Sorority Life
• 1,404: Students participating in study-abroad 
• 2,891: Students participating in intramural 

sports
• 4,069: Students participating in service learning
• 6,380: Students employed on campus
• Thousands of students participate in UG 

research
• Thousands of students participate in 

internships
• Tens of thousands of students enjoy SEC sports



Summer Bridge Program
• Average GPA for 2023 participants was >3.0
• 100% enrolled for Fall 2023

Freshman Interest Groups
• FIG students have 5% higher 6-year grad rate than campus average

Undergraduate Research Fellowships 
• Provided 50 training grants for $5K during first year
• Supports undergrads pursing graduate STEM education or 

research in NSF-GRFP funded fields
Academic Advisor Recruiting and Retention
• New Director of Advising Initiatives, 17 new academic advisors and 

increased professional development opportunities
Stellic Advising software
• Pilot launching soon
• Will improve student scheduling, progress tracking and academic 

advising
Summer Welcome Peer Advising Program

MizzouForward Student Success Investments
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Faculty Earn Top Honors

American Academy of Arts and 
Sciences Member

American Academy of Social 
Work & Social Welfare Fellow

Andy Frey
Social Work, CHS
Professor

Carol Ward
Pathology & Anatomical Sciences, SOM
Curators’ Distinguished Professor

Devin Fergus
History & Black Studies, CAS
Arvarh E. Strickland Distinguished 
Professor
National Humanities Center 
Fellow

Haval Shirwan
Pediatrics, Molecular Microbiology 
& Immunology, SOM Professor

National Academy of Inventors 
Fellow

Dae-Young Kim
Hospitality Management, CAFNR
Professor

Anne Sales
Nursing, SSN
Professor
American Academy of Nursing 
Fellow

Fulbright U.S. Senior Scholar 
(Spain)
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World-Class Researchers & Research
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§ ~$10M to student success investments
§ Includes classroom & lab upgrades, AI and 

undergraduate research opportunities

§ Hired 63 world-class faculty researchers since 2021
§ $54M+ invested in MizzouForward faculty start-ups
§ Hired 28 faculty in 2023, includes experts in nursing, 

economics, human development and chemistry

§ Priority areas added for recruitment
§ Artificial Intelligence
§ Advanced Materials
§ Energy Innovations
§ Precision Health

MizzouForward Updates
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Investments in State of the Art Facilities
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Children’s Hospital Topping Out

January

MURR West Groundbreaking

October

AugustMarch

Center for Energy Innovation Introduced

November

Graves-Chapple Facility Grand OpeningNextGen MURR Planning Study Announced



NSF Research Expenditures National 
Rankings

88 88

85

82
80

81
80

78

71
70

68

73

78

83

88

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$236M

$432M

$462M+ in research expenditures for 2023
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Association of American Universities
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Advancing Innovative Care
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MU School of Medicine
• 528 students enrolled
• 83% Missouri residents

• 54 students at Springfield Clinical Campus
• 78 students in Rural Scholars Program
• 113 graduates in 2023

NextGen Clinical & Translational Science Unit opens
• Dr. Kris Kelly is leading one of CTSU’s first trials 

studying neuromuscular diseases
MURR cancer treatment pilot
• MUHC initiated first treatment using targeted 

radioactive medicine for metastatic prostate 
cancer, includes lutetium-177 from MURR



• Adding services in Boonville, Mexico and Fulton where rural 
hospitals closed.

• Staffing hospital ERs in Hermann and Moberly.
• Placing medical aircraft in Kirksville, Moberly, Osage Beach 

and Sedalia for rapid access to MUHC’s Level 1 Trauma Center.
• Collaborating with medical centers in Kirksville and Moberly.
• Building a new Children’s Hospital to serve central MO.
• Training new physicians and serving SW MO at the MU School 

of Medicine’s Springfield Clinical Campus.
• Maintaining clinics throughout the state, including in Ashland, 

Fayette, California, Linn, Eldon, Owensville and Versailles.

Advancing Rural Health Care
In FY23, MU Health Care served 123K patients from rural-designated counties

• Integrated with Capital Region Medical Center to support health care in the Jefferson City region.
• Completed 46K+ visits from 26K+ rural county patients with MUHC’s Missouri Telehealth Network.
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Advancing Rural Health Care

University of Missouri School of Medicine 
Rural Scholars Program

Project leads: Dr. Whitney LeFevre, Family Medicine; 
Dr. Kathleen Quinn, Family and Community Medicine
$16M
Sponsor: Health Resources and Services Administration

Funding will support the University of Missouri School 
of Medicine’s Rural Scholars Program. Created in 1995, 
the program seeks to address primary care physician 
shortages and maldistribution in rural Missouri. 
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OF THE BOARD 

 
 

There are no materials for this information item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 



No. 1 
 
 
Recommended Action –  Resolution for Executive Session of the Board of Curators 

Meeting February 8, 2024 
 
  
 It was moved by Curator _________ and seconded by Curator __________, that 

there shall be an executive session with a closed record and closed vote of the Board of 

Curators meeting February 8, 2024 for consideration of: 

 
• Section 610.021(1), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 

include legal actions, causes of action or litigation, and confidential or privileged 
communications with counsel; and 
 

• Section 610.021(3), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 
include hiring, firing, disciplining, or promoting of particular employees; and 

 
• Section 610.021(12), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 

include sealed bids and related documents and sealed proposals and related documents 
or documents related to a negotiated contract; and 

 
• Section 610.021 (13), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 

include individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings, or records 
pertaining to employees or applicants for employment; and 

 
• Section 610.021(17), RSMo, relating to matters identified in that provision, which 

include confidential or privileged communications between a public governmental 
body and its auditor.  

 
 
Roll call vote of the Board:    YES  NO 

Curator Blitz 
Curator Brncic 
Curator Fry 
Curator Graves 
Curator Holloway 
Curator Layman 
Curator Sinquefield 
Curator Wenneker 
Curator Williams 
 
The motion _________________. 
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